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Jameel Yusuf S.St.
Chairman of the Board
As of June 30, 2022

I find utmost pleasure in presenting the extraordinary performance of the Board of Directors 
of TPL Trakker Limited (the “Company”) and imparting an overview of the Company’s 
notable achievements for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Board has provided its able 
and unique expertise which has led to the development of strategy, governance and 
human resources. Despite the numerous challenges experienced during the year, the 
Company has achieved a great deal of success and the Board is pleased with the progress 
of the Company.

I am delighted to report that the Company recorded a significant increase in profit for the 
year, due to the Management’s efficient functioning, leading to the continued success of 
the “Connected-Car & IoT” segment and the “Safe Transport Environment” project. The 
Company was awarded tenders in various public sector projects across Pakistan for 
tracking and monitoring. Notably, the Company has partnered with Telenor Pakistan to 
provide state-of-the-art IoT solutions. Moreover, the Board capably approved the 
demerger and  transfer of the Company’s mapping segment to a separate legal entity 
which will play a pivotal role in enhancing the footprint of the Company in digital mapping.

The Board composition of the Company is well balanced and diversified in terms of its skills, 
knowledge and industry experience, assisting the Management to thrive consistently and 
positively impact the growth of the Company. The Board has a strong ongoing 
commitment  to transparency, accountability and good corporate governance as a vital 
part of discharging its responsibilities. The Board sub-committees met adequately during 
the year and continued to provide the Board with the necessary assurance that audit and 
remuneration structures and processes were being correctly implemented by 
management.

We stay committed to growing all the Company’s businesses in the long term to develop 
and increase its value for all our stakeholders, by further strengthening its position in the 
market, increasing operational efficiency, boosting revenue and improving earnings. The 
Board  appreciates the efforts of the Management of the Company and the Compensation 
Committee and grants Employee Stock Options for deserving, hardworking and dedicated 
employees to provide them with incentives and appreciate their efforts. 

Significantly, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express my gratitude to the valued 
shareholders, management, employees and other stakeholders of the Company and pray 
that the Company continues to flourish and strive toward the profit trajectory in the years 
to come.



TPL Trakker Limited is proud of its 22 years of history and forte in the technology industry of Pakistan. 

In recent times, our core focus has shifted towards becoming future-ready by anticipating changes 
and challenges. With a systematic approach to dealing with the transition and transformation of our 
organizational goals, processes, and technologies, we have been able to boost company-wide 
growth. Understanding and navigating through social, technological, environmental, economic and 
often political adjustments is critical for any organization to embrace change. As an evolving 
organization, we proactively assess situations and adapt to shifting market trends.

Growth in Trakker Business:

We will soon launch our IoT platform to manage the connectivity of devices and allow developers to 
venture into new mobile applications. This platform will help spread out applications, remotely collect 
data and secure connectivity via an intricate set of components.

We consistently hone our connected car systems, smart security solutions, and autonomous farming 
solutions, and we diligently aim to provide a holistic IoT experience to our customers. One of our most 
prominent partnerships this year has been with Shell Pakistan to provide telematics solutions to their 
customers by linking their fuel cards and vehicle trackers onto one consolidated fleet management 
platform.

Another noteworthy partnership materialized with Telenor Pakistan to strengthen the IoT connectivity 
infrastructure. Through this joint venture, Trakker is offering a range of IoT services focusing on Video 
Monitoring & Analytics, Gen-set and Fuel Monitoring and Water Management solutions to Telenor 
Pakistan. Customers will benefit from these IoT services by acquiring valuable insights and actionable 
data to improve operational efficiency, optimal resource utilization and cost optimization.

MAPs Business Expansion:

TPL Maps division has quite a few noteworthy achievements. Prominent among them are being 
awarded the GIS Project by the Pakistan Telecommunication Authority (PTA) to monitor telecom 
service quality and 5G roll-out; delivering a custom surveying and digitizing scope to Rayn Group 
(funded by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation) for the Pakistan Polio Eradication Program; and 
being awarded the tender to provide LBS to the National Emergency Helpline. Furthermore, prominent 
partnerships were entered into with HBL, Khaddi and Cybernet for digital mapping and location 
services.

TPL Maps flagship product, TPL Maps App will be launched this year and positioned as the Maps App 
for Pakistan. The TPL Maps app will enable movers to have a wholesome travel experience in Pakistan 
by providing guidance, assistance, planning and facilitation through an integrated mapping platform. 
This app will be entirely Pakistani, bringing together the startup and entrepreneurial sectors to serve 
the end user and meet all of their travel and mobility requirements. TPL Maps app will also provide 
wide-ranging awareness of TPL Maps being in the digital mapping and location services space and 
provide recognition and a boost to the enterprise services.

TPL Maps division experienced consistent growth this past year and was able to distinguish itself as a 
prominent player in the digital mapping and location services arena. Considering this growth pattern, 
TPL Management has taken steps to carve out this division from TPL Trakker. The Maps division will now 
operate as a separate legal entity operating under the name of Astra Location Services. A HoldCo has 
been incorporated in Singapore with the OpCo registered in Pakistan. This enables the Maps business 
to seek external investor funding to capitalize on the current growth pattern. The new capital 
investment will be utilized to expand innovative product offerings, open up international markets and 
considerably increase the size of the team.



Thank you.

Initiatives: 

This year has been exceptionally rewarding for our staff with the 
introduction of various employee-focused programs. Activities 
that provide visibility and exposure to key individuals, leaders and 
teams in order to learn from their experience.

The Growth Catalyst Program is to create a targeted people 
strategy by training, attracting, and retaining the right people. 
Moreover, this program will ensure that we have the right people 
and skills needed to achieve our business objectives and identify, 
develop and engage internal talent to prepare them for the future 
state of business. 

The Employee Mentorship Program is designed to articulate 
appropriate engagement, development and career progression 
plans through training, coaching and mentoring of employees. 

The GenZ Internship Program and Management Trainee Program 
were launched to give young blood a fighting chance to represent 
their brilliance and vanguard at work, as well as fuel our growth 
initiatives with their new-age perspectives. Young individuals 
easily adapt to the new and frequent shifts in their work 
environment, be it new tools, innovative thinking or seizing 
creative opportunities and are quick to shoulder more cognitively 
complex roles.

With our various women’s initiatives, we acknowledge the 
importance of gender & work-space equality; their contribution 
towards Trakker’s business equity; and lead growth and 
advancement for the Company and its success. We believe in 
consistently building and multiplying work opportunities for our 
female colleagues at all levels. 

Strategic and analytic thinking and adapting to challenging 
situations on the fly are not innate gifts. Anyone with a passion for 
learning can develop them; our various teams are living proof of 
the collaborative utilization of skills and efforts for the growth and 
prosperity of Trakker. We cheer our teams for their 
problem-solving skills, potential for innovation, productivity and 
smart risk-taking; all the while ensuring their personal growth and 
a happy work environment. Our teams echo the voice we’ve been 
creating in our industry for years.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Jameel Yusuf – Chairman 

A businessman by profession and the Chairman of TPL Corp Ltd. He is the founding Chairman 
of Citizens-Police Liaison Committee (CPLC) and remained its Chairman from September 
1989 to March 2003. He is also the Director of Asia Crime Prevention Foundation (ACPF) and 
is the founding trustee of “PANAH”, a shelter established for women in distress. Mr. Yusuf has 
also been a member of the Advisory Council Fellowship (WWC) since 2004. He was awarded 
the Presidential Award “Sitara-e-Shujaat” for gallant services in August 1992 and was also 
nominated for the First United Nations Vienna Civil Society Award in 1999. He has also been 
appointed as a Member of the Committee formulated by National Accountability Bureau for 
redressal of business community’s grievances.

Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan – Chief Executive Officer

Sarwar Ali Khan is the CEO of TPL Trakker Limited, which has for over 19 years been a pioneer 
in the Telematics + IoT industry in Pakistan. TPL Trakker helps customers extract and turn 
data about vehicles and their use into intelligence that improves operations and safety while 
reducing costs and risks. Trakker provides reliable end-to-end solutions for  individuals, 
commercial fleets, businesses and automotive industry suppliers.

Mr.Khan started his career with Accenture, US where he worked for over 5 years. In 2010 he 
started working with National Bank of Pakistan where he headed the IT Department until 2012. 
On completion of his MBA in 2013 he was recruited by Samsung, Seoul to work for the 
Samsung Global Strategy Group which is part of the Samsung Chairman’s Office. During his 
time with Samsung, Mr.Khan developed the detailed product roadmap and go-to-market 
strategy for Samsung’s Smart Home business, assessed opportunities and identified new 
growth areas for different Samsung businesses to expand globally.

Mr.Khan has created and implemented a predictive analytics solution for correlating driver 
behavior with propensity to file insurance claims which enables TPL to offer usage based 
insurance products for the first time in Pakistan.

Mr.Khan has a disruptive mindset when it comes to business management, he has  
diversified TPL Trakker from a vehicle tracking company to an IoT solutions provider in just 
under 3 years. Today TPL Trakker has a services suite covering predictive maintenance, 
smart generator monitoring, fuel management, smart homes and digital App based 
solutions.

Mr.Khan received his BS in Computer Science from the University of Wisconsin - Madison in 
2005. He later went on to complete his MBA from INSEAD, France in 2013.



Mr. Mohammad Riaz – Director

Mr. Mohammad Riaz holds a Master’s degree in Development Economics from Williams 
College, Massachusetts USA and MSc in Defense and Strategic Studies from National 
Defence University.

He has served as Commercial and Economic Counselor in Paris and Counsel General, Turkey. 
Due to his active involvement in Public Affairs, he was posted as DG Social Sector at the Prime 
Minister’s Secretariat. Mr. Riaz has also served as Member/ DG Customs for 4 years. He retired 
as the Federal Secretary and his last posting was Secretary, National Assembly of Pakistan. 
He also served as Director, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in 2016. Moreover, he was a member 
of the Monetary Policy Committee of Pakistan.  Mr. Riaz has served the Government of 
Pakistan for over 37 years. He is presently the Independent director at Pakistan Tobacco 
Company Limited.

Mr. Ahmad Zuberi – Director

Mr. Ahmad is the Managing Director of Recorder Television Network (Private) Limited. Ahmad 
completed his primary and secondary school education in Karachi, Pakistan. After high 
school he received his Bachelors Degree from the Wharton School at the University of 
Pennsylvania. He graduated with High Honors in 2001 with a concentration in Finance and a 
Minor in Economics.

Mr. Ahmad worked as an Investment Banking analyst at Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette and 
then at Credit Suisse First Boston in New York, specializing in advising Media & Telecom 
companies on Mergers & Acquisitions as well as Equity and Debt offerings.

In 2004 he moved back to Pakistan to join his family's media business and expanded it from 
print into the electronic space. The company broadcasts Aaj News and Aaj Entertainment 
which are among Pakistan’s most watched TV channels. He also runs Apex Printry which is 
the county’s largest security printing business. He is also a Director of Emmay Zed 
Publications which publishes Pakistan’s only English financial daily, Business Recorder.

Mr. Ahmad is an active member of Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO) which is a global 
Organization of CEOs across the world. He is currently the Regional Chairman of YPO Middle 
East and North Africa. He also serves on the Board of Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.

Brigadier (R) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary

Brigadier (R) Chaudhary is on the Board of the Company and comes along with more than 
30 years of experience. Due to his known R & D skills and IT qualifications, he conceptualized 
and developed surveillance & Control system. He has also developed many projects related 
to Cyber Security recognized at national level.

Brigadier Chaudhary is MS (IT), M.Phil. Engineering Management and Ph.D. Scholar for 
Information Security Management. He is specialized in Engineering Project Management 
from Center for Advanced Studies in Engineering. Due to his acumen and highest 
qualification in the field of Information Technology and Information Security Management, 
he also framed “Pakistan’s Cyber Security Policy”.



Mr. Ali Asgher – Director

Mr. Ali Asgher is currently the CEO of TPL RMC. He is an experienced senior management 
professional, having working experience spanned over 14 years from textile, insurance, 
technology and real estate development with expertise in strategic business management, 
raising of equity & debt, financial management, value chain analysis, procurement and 
project management. He has an experience of implementing ERP solution and process 
automation. He has successfully advised the Group on state of the art construction project, 
financial close of foreign and local debt finances, new business feasibilities, debt swaps, 
private placements and rental deals. He is an Associate member of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants (CIMA), UK and also holds MBA degree with concentration in 
Finance. He is a certified director from the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) Karachi 
and attended Leadership Course at The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania.

Nausheen Javaid Amjad - Director

Nausheen has been in the Government Service for 36 years and retired as a Federal 
Secretary in April 2021. She held many key positions in the Federal Government including the 
Chairperson of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), also being the first female to finalize the 
Federal Budget 2021. She spent majority of her time in the Inland Revenue Services and held 
key positions in the field formation and at FBR headquarters including Member, 
Administration, Audit and Information Technology. She played a pivotal role in improving and 
formulating the Audit, IT along with external and internal Communication Policies. She has 
also garnered vast experience of working with international agencies including IMF, World 
Bank, OECD, DIFD and HMRC. Earlier, she has been the Chief Commissioner and 
Commissioner of largest tax jurisdictions of Pakistan i.e. Large Taxpayers Unit, Karachi. 
Nausheen being part of the policy team of FBR has evaluated the businesses from tax 
revenue perspective including reviewing the operational and financial business models of 
taxpayers. She was the key player which repivoted the tax jurisdictions and carved out the 
Large Taxpayers Unit and has served there for more than a decade, was also the first Chief 
Commissioner of second Large Taxpayers Unit of Karachi. 

She is a certified director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance and is 
representing Government of Pakistan on many important boards including, Pakistan Media 
Regulatory Authority, National Council of Arts, Academy of Letters etc. Nausheen is part of 
non-profit organizations including Parveen Shakir Foundation and has been an advocate of 
Women Empowerment and Diversity. To ensure advancement of women empowerment, she 
regularly mentors working women and fresh graduates.

Omar Askari - Director

Mr Askari is the founder and CEO of Wali Venture Technologies, a company that is making 
Islamic insurance and financing easily accessible for the Muslim world. Mr. Askari has 
previously been the global head of business development for Revolut in London and before 
that Head of Business for Uber in Pakistan. His career spans twenty years in investment 
banking, hedge fund asset management, real estate and energy. He has been a visiting 
lecturer in IBA and earned his Masters of Science from the London School of Economics and 
undergraduate degree from Brown University. 
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Sustainable Actions 

Annual Giving

 

SIUT

Childlife Foundation

JDC Foundation

At TPL, we proactively integrate sustainability into our routine decision-making processes. Dedicated 
to driving positive change, we are aligned with the goals of the United Nation’s 2030 Agenda for 
Sustainable Development.

TPL Corp has used the UNSDGs as a guiding document to develop its CSR strategy and framework and 
this approach is followed through all our social impact interventions.

TPLCares, the group’s CSR platform engages with the community via support for healthcare, 
education, gender equality and sports related initiatives. We continue to learn in this journey and 
going forward aspire to play an even greater role with respect to climate action.  

Our yearly donations have historically contributed to the healthcare and education sectors of 
Pakistan. This year we also created awareness for previously supported institutions by conducting 
formal visits to better understand their needs and how the private sector can assist in making a 
greater impact. We believe healthcare and education is a fundamental right and should be provided 
to every soul with dignity and compassion and without the discrimination of caste, creed, color or 
religion. Some of the institutions and initiatives we supported are featured below:

The Sindh Institute of Urology and Transplantation (SIUT) is regarded as one of the 
premier Institutes in the world. It provides free of cost treatment of urological and 
nephrological ailments, oncological treatments and organ transplantation 
facilities to the general public.
 
Our donation has resulted in providing 610 dialysis sessions to SIUT patients.

ChildLife is providing the full spectrum of medical care, from emergency rooms, 
to primary clinics, down to preventive practices. The Foundation has 11 
state-of-the-art model emergency rooms in Pakistan. ChildLife Foundation also 
runs 30 primary care clinics in Karachi’s slum area and runs a Preventive 
Healthcare Program that has reached over 190,000 families so far. 

Our contribution towards the Emergency Room (ER) has positively impacted 
approximately 1500 children’s well-being. 

Jaffriya Disaster Management Cell Welfare Organization (JDC) is a welfare and 
Non-Governmental Organization (NGO) commonly known as JDC Foundation 
Pakistan. It was established in 2009 and focusses on providing rehabilitation 
activities and medical emergency services in Sindh. 

Our collaboration with JDC provided iftar and sehri to 10,000 people observing 
fasts during the holy month of Ramadan. 



Employee Welfare & Support
CPR

L & D Training

Launch Of Employee Friendly Policies

 Child Education Policy

ECO TIPS

- Gender Equity Social Inclusion 
- Grievance Procedure 
- Work from Home  
- Flexible Hours

Technical Training: 81 employees
Some of the most well received awareness sessions were as 
follows: 
Prostate Cancer Awareness - 65 participants
Mental Health Awareness – 79 participants
World Literacy Day – 50 participants

Awareness Sessions: 390 employees
Soft Training: 254 employees

TPL conducted our annual Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) & Basic Life Support Training Sessions. 
By learning this life-saving technique, our employees will be able to assist in medical emergency 
situations. 50 members of our staff both male and females participated and were given the necessary 
skills to save a life. 

For the continuous growth of our employees in their professional endeavors, we regularly conduct 
training which include both soft and technical training along with awareness sessions. 

At TPL we believe that knowledge and education is one of the fundamental ways for society to progress. 
our Children Education Benefit Policy continues to provide our low-income employees’ children with full 
academic scholarships.

82 children were provided with quality education

A weekly email series for TPL Group has been launched which provides small tips that can be used in 
everyday life to create a sustainable environment for our future generations. This internal 
communication reaches out to over 1000 employees nationally. 



Volunteer Program 

TPL Visits Lady Dufferin Hospital

TPL at JPMC with Patients Aid Foundation(PAF)
 

Good Health & Well-being (UNSDG – 3) has been a key focus for TPL Corp’s CSR 
strategy. In line with this vision, TPL Corp partnered with Lady Dufferin Hospital and 
contributed to their efforts in providing quality maternal healthcare in Karachi.

TPL Corp’s support towards the hospital’s clinical room will serve approximately 
3,000 patients annually.  

TPL Corp Chairman Mr. Jameel Yusuf visited Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre 
(JPMC). He was accompanied by Mr. Mushtaq Chhapra (Vice-Chairperson PAF) 
and Dr. Tariq Mahmood (Head of Radiology & Oncology JPMC) who gave him a 
tour of the facility and an update on the work being done. PAF was made to 
alleviate the burden on JPMC and is providing free of cost high-quality healthcare 
with our contribution.

At TPL we believe volunteering reflects our values – what we care about, our vision for our community 
and our sense of responsibility for the planet and all those with whom we share it. Volunteerism is 
known to show improvements in emotional well-being, reduce stress and helps in building a 
community. This year we engaged our employees in the following activities:  

Blood Drive 

41 donors came forward (Male – 35, Female – 6) and were able to collect 31 blood bags for Indus Hospital. 
This translated to approximately 95 lives saved. 

Beach Cleanup 

UNSDG 15 – Life on Land encourages protection and restoration of terrestrial ecosystems and looks to 
reverse land degradation and halt biodiversity loss. Keeping in line with this, we collaborated for an 
Environment Day Drive on 7th June at Seaview Beach, Clifton. We recorded 40 hours of voluntary service 
and were successful in collecting approx. 140 kgs of waste of which 107 kgs was recycled and will not end 
up in landfills. 

TCF 

In line with our CSR efforts towards SDG 4 – Quality Education, we invited The Citizens Foundation (TCF) to 
present their volunteering programs for our colleagues. We are happy to report 10 colleagues have 
committed time for the Rahbar Program and will be engaged with TCF in the coming year. 

Earth Day Lights Out 

To make a positive impact with respect to energy conservation on Earth Day, we turned off the lights in all 
our offices on Friday, April 22nd from 12.00 – 1.00 PM. Our efforts resulted in saving approximately 20kw or 
2300 units of electricity. We aim to multiply these savings in our next energy conservation exercise by 
increasing the number of hours and expanding the program to incorporate our regional offices. 



Diversity and Inclusion 

• Carbon Emissions Management

• Waste Management i.e. reduce, reuse & recycle

• Green Office Program i.e. internal energy conservation and paper reduction project 

• Air Quality

Future Go Forward – Going Green

TPL strives to operate with integrity, promoting diversity and inclusion in the workplace. As an equal 
opportunity employer, management teams ensure that people from diverse backgrounds are 
recruited. 

TPL Corp partnered with NOWPDP to offer 3 month internships to the differently abled last year 
where 15 interns were hired and placed across TPL’s portfolio companies.

2 interns have transitioned to full-time employment and now working in our legal and sales teams 
respectively

As a group focused on sustainability, we adhere to the triple bottom line approach i.e. profits, 

people and the planet. Being green is no longer a cost of doing business but a catalyst 

foinnovation and business growth in new markets. We believe positive environmental practices 

lead to reduced expenses and boosting employee morale and engagement. Our interventions 

going forward are looking at the following areas:



Scaling for Impact
Over the years, TPL has supported more than 50 non-profit organizations, educational institutes and 
charitable trusts across Pakistan, ranging from local charities to international NGOs and universities. We 
aim to understand the challenges being faced by our communities to make collective change.
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Horizontal Analysis Balance Sheet

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2021 2020

Rupees Variance %

2019

Rupees Variance %

2022

Fixed Assets

Intangible Assets

Right-of-use assets

Long-term investments

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Deferred tax assets - net

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments

Interest accrued

Other receivables

Due from related parties 

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Other components of equity

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Government grant

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short-term financing

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Due to related parties

Taxation - net

Advance monitoring fees

-34%

0%

10%

0%

129%

44%

232%

-12%

-27%

-46%

6%

22%

66%

-39%

0%

-9%

0%

-13%

-123%

-79%

-27%

10%

-100%

-100%

-17%

-25%

-17%

-28%

-46%

85%

-9%

146%

6%

0%

49%

129%

-69%

-23%

-6%

71%

10%

-42%

-47%

127%

-40%

39%

0%

588%

55%

58%

131%

28%

167%

210%

-70%

-55%

38%

-31%

-83%

-4%

185%

370%

127%

-3%

-34%

86%

100%

0%

5%

-28%

788%

-8%

-22%

173%

41%

76%

111%

86%

-100%

-3%

30%

100%

-164%

-49%

31%

-49%

53%

100%

25%

106%

10846%

12%

-58%

-93%

100%

-20%

44%

0%

0%

100%

46%

-11%

431%

-18%

1%

-1%

-14%

131%

-26%

81%

220%

40%

54%

0%

-65%

143%

-50%

10246%

-52%

0%

9%

11%

-34%

5%

86%

53%

0%

25%

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

736,172,722

2,140,841,064

118,591,439

194,552,732

471,612

37,699,947

198,197,600

369,984,768

819,745,922

34,329,356

34,253,270

355,675,133

29,158,769

915,409,731

-

120,014,072

6,105,098,137

1,872,630,930

202,650,046

44,227,795

77,760,820

769,301,702

89,833,930

-

-

1,075,878,630

72,529,878

196,701,371

767,102,058

405,261,087

414,753,666

28,098,976

88,367,248

6,105,098,137

1,118,248,281

2,131,271,500

107,974,195

194,552,732

205,713

26,194,868

59,673,043

420,445,073

1,123,767,028

63,023,917

32,412,327

291,255,846

17,607,533

1,493,574,743

-

132,203,982

7,212,410,781

1,872,630,930

232,690,046

(189,432,169)

362,683,585

1,049,650,530

81,889,252

68,367,855

797,103

1,293,755,026

96,437,639

235,953,736

1,062,507,117

753,189,884

224,422,893

31,014,251

35,853,103

7,212,410,781

1,059,232,338

2,138,388,733

72,269,178

85,030,450

669,898

33,953,962

63,764,748

246,221,725

1,022,872,997

107,834,467

61,494,946

128,444,634

29,339,542

1,071,684,058

-

19,221,288

6,140,422,964

1,204,425,930

146,817,136

(82,063,384)

284,432,213

393,263,634

26,419,021

227,448,306

1,781,008

935,825,506

140,061,771

1,394,169,173

1,105,194,287

264,050,183

47,772,963

13,685,055

37,140,162

6,140,422,964

1,602,145,206

1,151,299,734

-

85,030,450

637,436

47,100,425

7,178,349

266,339,657

1,309,502,023

39,435,026

43,674,281

73,054,250

13,934,042

576,290,498

42,478,304

19,830,816

5,277,930,497

929,262,520

-

128,476,899

555,272,027

300,000,000

52,145,571

148,888,890

-

750,929,062

68,100,451

12,737,305

988,025,014

627,321,359

670,119,700

-

46,651,699

5,277,930,497
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Horizontal Analysis Profit and Loss Account

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2021 2020

Rupees Variance %

2019

Rupees Variance %

2022

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit / (loss)

Other expenses

Research and development expenses

Finance costs

Other Income

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (Loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss) 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) 

2,106,468,500

(1,360,234,223)

746,234,277

(105,861,119)

(359,924,460)

280,448,698

-

(77,654,755)

(326,958,014)

210,638,359

86,474,288

110,640,723

197,115,011

-

197,115,011

12%

6%

23%

9%

13%

48%

0%

0%

-16%

10%

-200%

-426%

-264%

-100%

-564%

1,886,241,808

(1,280,126,555)

606,115,253

(97,174,335)

(319,069,004)

189,871,914

-

(77,725,874)

(389,542,836)

191,100,087

(86,296,709)

(33,905,584)

(120,202,293)

77,760,820

(42,441,473)

18%

5%

58%

-7%

-14%

-306%

0%

238%

-24%

19%

-82%

-409%

-74%

-915%

-91%

1,605,235,951

(1,222,154,752)

383,081,199

(105,041,628)

(370,420,607)

(92,381,036)

-

(23,028,138)

(515,317,204)

161,224,750

(469,501,628)

10,984,235

(458,517,393)

(9,538,644)

(468,056,037)

-9%

59%

-62%

-63%

1%

-126%

-100%

100%

66%

162%

-764%

-132%

-1379%

-103%

-229%

1,771,864,595

(767,114,950)

1,004,749,645

(286,453,301)

(368,309,884)

349,986,460

(30,822,802)

-

(309,959,166)

61,484,097

70,688,589

(34,825,647)

35,862,942

327,456,882

363,319,824

7%

16%

1%

9%

-11%

8%

62%

0%

38%

28%

-45%

11%

-63%

100%

273%
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Vertical Analysis Balance Sheet

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2021 2020

Rupees Variance %

2019

Rupees Variance %

2022

Fixed Assets

Intangible Assets

Right-of-use assets

Long-term investments

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Deferred tax assets - net

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments

Interest accrued

Other receivables

Due from related parties 

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Other components of equity

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Government grant

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short-term financing

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Due to related parties

Taxation - net

Advance monitoring fees

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

736,172,722

2,140,841,064

118,591,439

194,552,732

471,612

37,699,947

198,197,600

369,984,768

819,745,922

34,329,356

34,253,270

355,675,133

29,158,769

915,409,731

-

120,014,072

6,105,098,137

1,872,630,930

202,650,046

44,227,795

77,760,820

769,301,702

89,833,930

-

-

1,075,878,630

72,529,878

196,701,371

767,102,058

405,261,087

414,753,666

28,098,976

88,367,248

6,105,098,137

12.06%

35.07%

1.94%

3.19%

0.01%

0.62%

3.25%

6.06%

13.43%

0.56%

0.56%

5.83%

0.48%

14.99%

0.00%

1.97%

100%

30.67%

3.32%

0.72%

1.27%

12.60%

1.47%

0.00%

0.00%

17.62%

1.19%

3.22%

12.56%

6.64%

6.79%

0.46%

1.45%

100%

1,118,248,281

2,131,271,500

107,974,195

194,552,732

205,713

26,194,868

59,673,043

420,445,073

1,123,767,028

63,023,917

32,412,327

291,255,846

17,607,533

1,493,574,743

-

132,203,982

7,212,410,781

1,872,630,930

232,690,046

(189,432,169)

362,683,585

1,049,650,530

81,889,252

68,367,855

797,103

1,293,755,026

96,437,639

235,953,736

1,062,507,117

753,189,884

224,422,893

31,014,251

35,853,103

7,212,410,781

15.50%

29.55%

1.50%

2.70%

0.00%

0.36%

0.83%

5.83%

15.58%

0.87%

0.45%

4.04%

0.24%

20.71%

0.00%

1.83%

100%

25.96%

3.23%

-2.63%

5.03%

14.55%

1.14%

0.95%

0.01%

17.94%

1.34%

3.27%

14.73%

10.44%

3.11%

0.43%

0.50%

100%

1,059,232,338

2,138,388,733

72,269,178

85,030,450

669,898

33,953,962

63,764,748

246,221,725

1,022,872,997

107,834,467

61,494,946

128,444,634

29,339,542

1,071,684,058

-

19,221,288

6,140,422,964

1,204,425,930

146,817,136

(82,063,384)

284,432,213

393,263,634

26,419,021

227,448,306

1,781,008

935,825,506

140,061,771

1,394,169,173

1,105,194,287

264,050,183

47,772,963

13,685,055

37,140,162

6,140,422,964

17.25%

34.82%

1.18%

1.38%

0.01%

0.55%

1.04%

4.01%

16.66%

1.76%

1.00%

2.09%

0.48%

17.45%

0.00%

0.31%

100%

19.61%

2.39%

-1.34%

4.63%

6.40%

0.43%

3.70%

0.03%

15.24%

2.28%

22.70%

18.00%

4.30%

0.78%

0.22%

0.60%

100%

1,602,145,206

1,151,299,734

-

85,030,450

637,436

47,100,425

7,178,349

266,339,657

1,309,502,023

39,435,026

43,674,281

73,054,250

13,934,042

576,290,498

42,478,304

19,830,816

5,277,930,497

929,262,520

-

128,476,899

555,272,027

300,000,000

52,145,571

148,888,890

-

750,929,062

68,100,451

12,737,305

988,025,014

627,321,359

670,119,700

-

46,651,699

5,277,930,497

30.36%

21.81%

0.00%

1.61%

0.01%

0.89%

0.14%

5.05%

24.81%

0.75%

0.83%

1.38%

0.26%

10.92%

0.80%

0.38%

100%

17.61%

0.00%

2.43%

10.52%

5.68%

0.99%

2.82%

0.00%

14.23%

1.29%

0.24%

18.72%

11.89%

12.70%

0.00%

0.88%

100%
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Vertical Analysis of Profit and Loss Account

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2021 2020

Rupees Variance %

2019

Rupees Variance %

2022

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit / (loss)

Other expenses

Research and development expenses

Finance costs

Other Income

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (Loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss) 

Total comprehensive income / (loss) 

2,106,468,500

(1,360,234,223)

746,234,277

(105,861,119)

(359,924,460)

280,448,698

-

(77,654,755)

(326,958,014)

210,638,359

86,474,288

110,640,723

197,115,011

-

197,115,011

100%

-65%

35%

-5%

-17%

13%

0%

-4%

-16%

10%

4%

5%

9%

0%

9%

1,886,241,808

(1,280,126,555)

606,115,253

(97,174,335)

(319,069,004)

189,871,914

-

(77,725,874)

(389,542,836)

191,100,087

(86,296,709)

(33,905,584)

(120,202,293)

77,760,820

(42,441,473)

100%

-68%

32%

-5%

-17%

10%

0%

-4%

-21%

10%

-5%

-2%

-6%

4%

-2%

1,605,235,951

(1,222,154,752)

383,081,199

(105,041,628)

(370,420,607)

(92,381,036)

-

(23,028,138)

(515,317,204)

161,224,750

(469,501,628)

10,984,235

(458,517,393)

(9,538,644)

(468,056,037)

100%

-76%

24%

-7%

-23%

-6%

0%

-1%

-32%

10%

-29%

1%

-29%

-1%

-29%

1,771,864,595

(767,114,950)

1,004,749,645

(286,453,301)

(368,309,884)

349,986,460

(30,822,802)

-

(309,959,166)

61,484,097

70,688,589

(34,825,647)

35,862,942

327,456,882

363,319,824

100%

-43%

57%

-16%

-21%

20%

-2%

0%

-17%

3%

4%

-2%

2%

18%

21%
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Cash Flow Analysis 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 86,474,288 (86,296,709) (469,501,628) 70,688,589

Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on operating fixed assets 250,020,167 254,267,804 240,308,576 216,323,634

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 69,110,403 66,938,503 82,131,716 -

Allowance / (Reversal) for expected credit loss (ECL) 4,025,029 (4,814,014) (21,406,034) 4,150,708

Amortisation of intangible assets 15,635,790 22,557,366 45,282,814 3,637,431

Finance cost 311,535,697 389,542,836 515,317,204 309,959,166

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (44,636,606) (39,300) (344,817) (3,034,752)

Reversal of Deferred Tax asset on surplus of revaluation of PPE 2,642,191 - - -

Amortization of government grant (5,950,600) (10,472,666) (2,416,771) -

Share based payment (30,040,000) 30,040,000

Exchange loss / (gain) - net 15,422,317 (3,173,759) (639,152) 11,151,268

587,764,388 744,846,770 858,233,536 542,187,455

Operating profit before working capital changes 674,238,676 658,550,061 388,731,908 612,876,044

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Stock-in-trade (144,402,615) (259,608,692) 20,117,932 (141,029,292)

Trade debts 299,996,077 (96,080,017) 278,242,209 (48,890,303)

Loans and advances 28,694,561 44,810,550 (68,399,441) 532,099

Trade deposits and prepayments (1,840,943) 29,082,619 (15,588,899) (4,319,719)

Other receivables (11,551,236) 11,732,009 1,594,500 4,990,375

Interest Accrued (64,419,287) (162,811,212) (108,680,690) (41,419,482)

Due from related parties 578,165,012 (421,890,685) (985,890,100) (257,654,734)

684,641,569 (854,765,428) (878,604,489) (487,791,056)

(Decrease)/ increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (233,298,713) 354,755,761 169,508,573 63,471,387

Due to a related party 190,330,773 176,649,930 (623,577,070) 233,262,538

Advance monitoring fees 52,514,145 (1,287,059) (9,511,537) 9,188,023

9,546,205 530,118,632 (463,580,034) 305,921,948

Cash generated from operations 1,368,426,450 333,903,265 (953,452,615) 431,006,936

Receipts / (payments) for :

Finance cost (320,045,485) (413,001,954) (411,482,742) (303,416,232)

Income taxes (33,441,300) (44,045,779) 9,753,822 (71,902,319)
(353,486,785) (457,047,733) (401,728,920) (375,318,551)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 1,014,939,665 (123,144,468) (1,355,181,535) 55,688,385

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of - property and equipment (76,174,886) (110,161,786) (17,379,690) (50,853,791)

                    - capital work-in-progress (23,466,625) (83,426,500) - (50,459,257)

                    - intangible (25,205,354) (15,440,133) (87,974,492) (2,929,530)

Sale proceed from fixed assets 222,818,617 334,965 323,464,876 3,427,814

Long-term deposits (11,505,079) (26,846,688) 18,146,463 5,868,076

Long-term loans (265,899) 464,185 (32,462) (200,859)

Sale proceed from encashment of term deposit receipts - - - 200,000,000

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 86,200,774 (235,075,957) 236,224,695 104,852,453

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lease liabilities repaid (84,761,115) (70,205,689) (90,639,000) (9,176,330)

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares - 801,846,000 - -

Long-term loans – net (137,097,578) (122,331,194) (82,715,125) (152,252,399)

Long term financing - net (556,814,232) 1,127,280,639 (205,807,641) (35,157,167)

Share issuance cost - (64,484,030) (13,324,060) -

Short-term financing (39,252,365) (1,158,215,437) 1,381,431,868 (6,443,899)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (817,925,290) 513,890,289 988,946,042 (203,029,795)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 283,215,149 155,669,864 (125,520,749) (42,488,957)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (930,303,135) (1,085,972,999) (968,194,198) (925,705,241)

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under the scheme - - 7,741,948 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (647,087,986) (930,303,135) (1,085,972,999) (968,194,198)

2021 2020 20192022

--------------------------Rupees--------------------------
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Ratio Analysis 

Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit to Sales

Net Profit to Sales

EBITDA Margin to sales

Return on Equity

Return on Capital Employed

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio

Quick / Acid test ratio

Cash to Current Liabilities

Cashflow from Operations to Sales

Activity/ Turnover Ratios

Inventory turnover

No of days in inventory 

Debtor turnover

No of days in Receivables 

Credit turnover

No of days in Payables

Net Operating cycle

Total asset turnover

Fixed assets turnover

Investment Valuation Ratios

Earnings / (Loss) per Share

Capital structure Ratios

Financial leverage Ratio

Debt Equity Ratio

Interest cover Ratio

percent

percent

percent

percent

percent

Ratio

Ratio

Ratio

Ratio

Number of times

Number of days

Number of times

Number of days

Number of times

Number of days

Number of days

percent

percent

Rs

Ratio

Ratio

Ratio

35%

9%

32%

9%

14%

0.96

0.84

0.035

0.48

6

64

2.57

142

1.26

289

-83

35%

61%

1.05

0.95

0.49

1.26

32%

-6%

31%

-5%

9%

0.96

0.84

0.035

-0.07

4

81

1.68

217

0.99

369

-70

26%

52%

-0.64

1.37

0.58

0.78

24%

-29%

26%

-30%

2%

0.68

0.62

0.005

-0.84

7

56

1.57

233

1.31

279

9

26%

46%

-3.81

2.14

0.68

0.09

57%

2%

34%

2%

18%

0.75

0.67

0.006

0.03

7

55

1.35

270

1.02

357

-33

34%

61%

0.30

1.27

0.56

1.23

2021 2020 20192022
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Graphical Presentation of Key Financial Ratios

 

Reveune vs Gross Profit
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

WEALTH GENERATED

Total revenue inclusive of sales tax & other income

Cost of Sales and services (excluding salaries)

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

To Employees

Salaries, benefits and other costs

To Government

Income tax, sales tax, excise duty and others

To Society

Donation towards education, health and environment

To Provider of Capital

Dividend to shareholders

Markup / Interest expenses on borrowed funds

To Company

Depreciation, amortisation & accumulated profits / losses

2,638,041,041

(1,028,771,756)

1,609,269,285

638,902,210

351,460,207

-

-

311,535,697

307,371,171

1,609,269,285

100%

40%

22%

0%

19%

19%

100%

2,375,714,524

(957,646,456)

1,418,068,068

621,588,471

359,747,604

-

-

389,542,836

47,189,157

1,418,068,068

100%

44%

25%

0%

27%

3%

100%

Rupees  % Rupees  %

2022 2021

Wealth Distribution 2022 Wealth Distribution 2021

To Employees

To Government

To Society

To Provider of Capital

To Company

44%

25%

0%

27%

3% To Employees

To Government

To Society

To Provider of Capital

To Company

40%

22%0%

19%

19%
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Directors’ Report

Going forward, for the automotive & its related industries, the macroeconomic indicators appear 

challenging. However, the inflationary pressure is expected to subside, along with an improved 

foreign exchange situation on account of the recent approval of the revival of the Extended Fund 

Facility program by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) for the country.

2. GROUP PERFORMANCE

Collective efforts around the world in response to the COVID-19 pandemic seemed to have 

stabilized the overall economic scenario to a certain extent. However, the Russia-Ukraine conflict 

created a new set of challenges not limited to rising commodity and energy prices, global 

monetary policy tightening, sustained supply chain disruptions and lower investor & business 

confidence.  

Business Performance       

For the financial year 2021-2022 ended, the Company achieved consolidated revenues of Rs. 2.34 

billion representing a growth of 11% when compared with last year. The Company also witnessed 

an improvement in its operating profit by 39% relative to the last year on consolidated basis. The 

Connected Car segment contributed 51% to the topline of the Company, where 7% growth was 

observed from last year, whereas the Digital Mapping & Location services exceeded expectation 

by achieving 21% over last year. The Company reported profit after tax of PKR 197.12 million and 

PKR 22.86 million on unconsolidated and consolidated basis respectively as compared to last 

year resulting in the bottom line improvement by 264% and 121% respectively.

Cumulative Sales of cars and light commercial vehicles witnessed growth of 54% during the FY 

2021-22 as compared to last year. The import of used vehicles also augmented by 32% in the 

same period respectively. Healthy performance by the auto finance sector coupled with the 

positive macro-economic indicators were the prime attributes for this, especially in first half of 

the FY 2021-22, however the external environment negatively affected the market in the second 

half. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors of TPL Trakker Limited, we are pleased to present the annual financial 

statements with the performance review of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.

1. ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

Although, the country witnessed GDP growth of 5.97% for the FY 2021-22, average inflation during 

the year clocked at 21%, the highest in the last 13 years. The central bank increased the policy rate 

from 7% to 13.75% periodically during the year; however, the PKR witnessed significant 

depreciation, especially in the last quarter of FY 2021-22. All of the aforementioned factors 

coupled with the ongoing political instability pose threats to the overall economic growth of the 

country.  

YE Jun 30, 

2022

YE Jun 30, 

2021

YE Jun 30, 

2022

YE Jun 30, 

2021

Turnover - net 2,106,469 1,886,242 Turnover - net 2,342,487 2,111,257

Gross Profit 746,234 606,115 Gross Profit 809,480 707,294

Operating Profit 280,449 189,872 Operating Profit 120,415 86,732

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 86,475 (86,297) Loss before Tax (87,777) (75,005)

Taxation 110,640 (33,905) Taxation 110,640 (33,905)

Profit / (Loss) after Tax 197,115 (120,202) Profit / (Loss) after Tax 22,863 (108,910)

EPS - basic & diluted 1.05 (0.64) EPS - basic & diluted 0.61 (0.31)

Unconsolidated

--------- Rs. In 000's --------- --------- Rs. In 000's ---------

Consolidated
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SBP regulations have further tightened impacting on the car financing and consumer buying 

power. Some OEM have started accepting bookings and market is anticipated to pick up. 

With rising fuel costs, Genset monitoring is a hot seller right now due to the need for optimization 

of fuel consumption. Sales of Video surveillance have also substantially picked up. 

Overall the market situation is challenging but the challenges also present opportunities with our 

focus on capturing the used car market as well as a renowned focus on fuel monitoring solutions.

Pakistan started facing heavy political and economic turmoil during last quarter of FY21-22; 

effects of which are still reaching into FY 22-23. Production of vehicles in Pakistan came to 

standstill due to unavailability and inaccessibility of importing materials for production. However, 

production has started albeit at a very slow pace. On the other side, sales of used cars have 

picked up mimicking a new car purchase behavior with consumers safeguarding their recent 

purchase with tracker installations. 

Future Outlook – Connected Car & Industrial Internet of Things (IOT)

TPL Trakker will continue its focus on capturing the IOT market by offering new and competitive 

solutions. TPLT will be launching an innovative IOT Platform this year which will make our tracking 

and IOT services device agnostic – thus enabling the Company to capture a larger share of the 

market by providing easy portability of services from our competitors. 

Pakistan is facing a natural calamity that has seen 33 million of the country’s population being 

displaced due to floods. Organizations are coming to together to serve the nation in their 

capacities – TPL Maps is in a strategic position to help out with relief and rehabilitation activities 

and is already collaborating to provide GIS and Location Services to National Disaster 

Management Authority and National Flood Coordination Center (NFRCC).

Future Outlook – Digital Mapping & Location Services

This past year saw some worthy achievements being made by the TPL Maps team, such as 

winning and executing the custom scope to Rayn Group (Funded by Bill and Melinda Gates 

Foundation) for the Pakistan Polio Eradication Program, being awarded the development of the 

GIS system for service quality monitoring and 5G roll-out to Pakistan Telecommunication 

Authority and being awarded the tender to provide LBS to the National Emergency Helpline. 

With these wins, TPL Maps has positioned itself as a formidable GIS player in the Pakistan’s market. 

With a recent collaboration to be a reseller of premium Satellite Imagery, new avenues of revenue 

are expected to open up. 

New digital mapping and location products are under research and conceptualization and will be 

ready to go into development with the capital influx coming through. This coming year will also 

see the anticipated release of the TPL Maps consumer app. TPL Maps app will provide wide 

reaching awareness of TPL being in digital mapping and location services space and provide 

recognition and a boost to the enterprise services. 

Considering this market reception, the TPL Management has decided to carve out the Maps 

division from TPL Trakker and launch it as a separate entity. Plans are underway to incorporate a 

HoldCo in Singapore and OpCo in Pakistan operating under the name of Astra Location Services. 

The vision behind this move is to invite external capital investment to boost up development and 

build new digital mapping products and services, and increase market reach through a 

dedicated growth team. This market positioning is expected to increase the growth of the Digital 

Maps and Location Services multifold. 

Directors’ Report
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The composition of the Board is as follows:

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz - Member

 Male Female

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Jameel Yusuf

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz

Category Names

Executive Directors Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan

 Ms. Nausheen Javaid Amjad

The total number of Directors are eight (08) as per the following:

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

TPL Maps will also capture the upcoming National Elections wave by focusing on developing 

solutions for major media companies, political parties, Election Commission of Pakistan and 

public figures to integrate maps in their newsrooms, campaigns and strategies. We hope to 

develop and will provide live updates from elections with real-time results counter on the map, 

updates from polling stations of each constituency along the past election data for comparison. 

The live maps will be able to provide insights about the voter turnout according to the 

constituency, along with providing the number of votes each candidate gets.

With the Maps carve-out and additional investment expected to come in, focus will heavily be on 

product innovations, product development, and direct business growth – both in B2B and B2G, to 

achieve an exponential growth for Digital Maps and Location Services. 

 Mr. Ali Asgher 

Audit Committee Mr. Ahmad Zuberi – Chairman

 Brigadier (Retd) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary

 Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan – Member

 Mr. Nader Nawaz – Secretary 

 7 1 

 Mr. Ahmad Zuberi

 Mr. Hashim Sadiq Ali – Secretary

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz – Member

HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Ahmad Zuberi – Chairman

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND THE BOARD COMMITTEES

Independent Directors Mr. Omar Askari

 Mr. Omar Askari – Member

Directors’ Report
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Mr. Mohammad Riaz 5

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors held 5 meetings during the financial year. Attendance of Directors is indicated 

below; 

Mr.Jameel Yusuf S.St. 4

Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan 4

Brigadier (Retd) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary 5

Ms. Nausheen Javaid Amjad 5

Name of Director Meetings Attended

Mr. Omar Askari 5

Ms. Ali Asgher 5 

DIRECTOR’S TRAINING

The Board is fully aware of its corporate responsibilities as envisaged under the Code of Corporate 

Governance, prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is pleased to 

certify that:

Ÿ The financial statements, prepared by the Company present its state of affairs fairly the result of its 

operations, cash flows and changes in equity. 

Ÿ The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 

monitored.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Ÿ Fundamentals of the Company are strong and there are no doubts about Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. 

Ÿ International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the 

preparation of the financial statements and any departure there from have been adequately 

disclosed and explained. 

A formal Director’s Remuneration policy approved by the Board is in place. The policy includes 

transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and 

the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance, 2019. As per the said policy, Directors are paid a 

remuneration of PKR 100,000/- for attending each meeting of the Board or its sub-committees. 

Appropriate disclosure for remuneration / bonuses / incentives / stock options paid during the year to 

Directors and the Chief Executive has been provided in Note 44 to the unconsolidated financial 

statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Ÿ The Company has followed consistently appropriate accounting policies in the preparation of 

Financial Statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

Majority of the Board members have completed their certification while the directors, who do not hold 

the certification, are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of a listed 

company. The Company, however, aims to encourage the remaining directors, to complete their 

certification.

Mr. Ahmad Zuberi 3

Ÿ The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required under Companies Act, 2017. 

Directors’ Report
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Ÿ Outstanding levies and taxes are given in the respective notes to the financial statements. 

Ÿ The Company has followed best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance as laid down in the 

listing regulation 

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

SPONSORS, DIRECTORS, CEO AND CHILDREN 4 4 0.00

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 4 121,352,588 64.80

A statement of pattern of shareholding of the Company as at 30 June 2022 is as follows:

Particulars No of Folio Balance Share Percentage

Ÿ Key operating and financial data for the last four years in summarized form, is included in this 

annual report. 

INSURANCE COMPANIES 1 2,499,000 1.33

MODARABAS AND MUTUTAL FUNDS 16 29,537,000 15.77

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

Pattern of holding shares held by the shareholders of the Company as at June 30, 2022:

GENERAL PUBLIC (LOCAL) 1,058 9,034,550 4.82

 309 1,001 5,000 887,132 0.4737

 2 65,001 70,000 136,500 0.0729

 88 5,001 10,000 767,417 0.4098

 26 1 100 131 0.0001

Company Total 1,203 187,263,093 100 

 1 80,001 85,000 83,000 0.0443

 1 135,001 140,000 140,000 0.0748

 1 150,001 155,000 154,000 0.0822

 4 40,001 45,000 171,000 0.0913

 2 155,001 160,000 314,500 0.1679

 6 95,001 100,000 600,000 0.3204

 8 30,001 35,000 269,500 0.1439

 3 70,001 75,000 225,000 0.1202

 5 35,001 40,000 190,000 0.1015

 12 45,001 50,000 593,500 0.3169

 385 101 500 191,917 0.1025

OTHERS 14 21,385,500 11.42

 2 50,001 55,000 110,000 0.0587

 239 501 1,000 237,908 0.127

 1 145,001 150,000 150,000 0.0801

 23 20,001 25,000 555,000 0.2964

 24 15,001 20,000 459,500 0.2454

 1 75,001 80,000 79,000 0.0422

 1 115,001 120,000 120,000 0.0641

GENERAL PUBLIC (FOREIGN) 106 3,454,451 1.84

 16 10,001 15,000 207,500 0.1108

 2 60,001 65,000 123,500 0.066

 1 160,001 165,000 163,500 0.0873

 7 25,001 30,000 203,500 0.1087

Directors’ Report
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 1 170,001 175,000 174,000 0.0929

 1 245,001 250,000 250,000 0.1335

 2 195,001 200,000 400,000 0.2136

 1 360,001 365,000 361,500 0.193

 2 265,001 270,000 537,000 0.2868

 1 290,001 295,000 291,500 0.1557

 1 320,001 325,000 325,000 0.1736

 1 175,001 180,000 180,000 0.0961

 1 310,001 315,000 315,000 0.1682

 1 210,001 215,000 213,000 0.1137

 1 410,001 415,000 411,000 0.2195

 1 440,001 445,000 445,000 0.2376

 1 510,001 515,000 510,500 0.2726

 1 560,001 565,000 561,000 0.2996

 1 565,001 570,000 567,500 0.303

 1 1,985,001 1,990,000 1,989,500 1.0624

 2 995,001 1,000,000 1,996,000 1.0659

 1 3,245,001 3,250,000 3,250,000 1.7355

 1 4,150,001 4,155,000 4,152,000 2.2172

 1 1,995,001 2,000,000 2,000,000 1.068

 1 5,980,001 5,985,000 5,981,500 3.1942

 1 655,001 660,000 660,000 0.3524

 1 2,820,001 2,825,000 2,824,500 1.5083

 1 8,140,001 8,145,000 8,140,500 4.3471

 1 8,330,001 8,335,000 8,333,000 4.4499

 1 9,430,001 9,435,000 9,431,000 5.0362

 1 120,115,001 120,120,000 120,117,588 64.1438

 1 2,495,001 2,500,000 2,499,000 1.3345

 1203 Total 187,263,093  100 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

 1 1,545,001 1,550,000 1,546,500 0.8258

 1 1,665,001 1,670,000 1,667,000 0.8902

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL GROWTH FUND  9,431,000 

CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND  267,000 

CDC - TRUSTEE AL HABIB STOCK FUND  200,000 

 (June 30, 2022)

CDC - TRUSTEE AKD OPPORTUNITY FUND  1,667,000 

Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties (name wise details) No of shares held

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL INVESTMENT FUND  5,981,500 

Mutual Funds (name wise details) 

CDC - TRUSTEE NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND  120,000 

TPL CORP LIMITED 120,442,588

TPL HOLDINGS (PRIVATE) LIMITED 660,000

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND  213,000 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND  1,546,500 

TPL DIRECT INSURANCE LIMITED EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND 250,000

 NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Mr. Ahmad Zuberi 

Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan 1

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended holding the profit for the year as retained earnings to meet 

the Working Capital requirements and for investment in potential projects to enhance future profitability 

of the Company.

Mr. Omar Askari 

Brigadier (Retd) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary 1

Ms. Nausheen Javaid Amjad 

We would like to thank the shareholders of the Company for the confidence they have placed in us. We 

also appreciate the valued support and guidance provided by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan, the Federal Board of Revenue and the Pakistan Stock Exchange. We would also 

express our sincere thanks to the employees, strategic partners, vendors, suppliers and customers for 

their support in pursuit of our corporate objectives.

Details of trading in the shares by the directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary, 

and their spouses and minor Children 

Following directors are the executive directors of the Company and have 

shares of the Company as of June 30, 2022. 

NONE OF DIRECTORS, CEO, COMPANY SECRETARY, AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDREN HAS 

TRADED IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY DURING THE YEAR. 

Mr. Ali Asgher -

Following directors are the independent directors of the Company and do not 

have any shares of the Company as of June 30, 2022. 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND  157,500 

NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED - MF  996,000 

MULTILINE SECURITIES LIMITED - MF  50,000 

Following directors are the non-executive / nominee directors of the Company 

and have shares of the Company as of June 30, 2022.  

CDC - TRUSTEE AL HABIB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND  35,000 

Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children (name wise details) 

Mr. Jameel Yusuf 1

CDC-TRUSTEE HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND  79,000 

Mr. Mohammad Riaz 1

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL EQUITY FUND  8,140,500 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND  291,500 

CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND  361,500 

JAMEEL YUSUF (S.ST.)
CHAIRMANCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SARWAR ALI KHAN
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ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ

 �EPSدى اور � �ہ  ١٫٠٥   (٠٫٦٤   �EPSدى اور � �ہ  ٠٫٦١   (٠٫٣١ 

١.  �� ��ہ

�ن اوور-� آ��  ٢٬١٠٦٬٤٦٩   ١٬٨٨٦٬٢٤٢  �ن اوور-� آ��  ٢٬٣٤٢٬٤٨٧   ٢٬١١١٬٢٥٧ 

�رو�رى �ر�د�:

� �� ���� ����� � و� د�� د� �۔ ��، � � � � ا��ا� ��� � � آ� �� ��، آ���و اور اس � � �ں � �، �و ا�� ا�ر� 

 م� �� و�� � �� �رى � و� � زر�د� � � �ر�ل � ��، ا�اط زر � د�ؤ � �� � �� �۔  (IMF)� �� � � �� �و�ا

 � � ا� �� � � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �� � �  � � ��� ��� ��ارے � �ر�د� � ��ہ �ا� ا�م �ل٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢٢ � �� �� 

ا�� �ت �س � ر� �۔

٢.�وپ � �ر�د�۔

 ٧٤٦٬٢٣٤   ٦٠٦٬١١٥  �� ��  ٨٠٩٬٤٨٠   ٧٠٧٬٢٩٤  �� ��

  �ل ا�م �ل ا�م  �ل ا�م �ل ا�م

��ت  ١١٠٬٦٤٠   (٣٣٬٩٠٥) ��ت  ١١٠٬٦٤٠   (٣٣٬٩٠٥ )

 ناو� �� ٢١ � ر�، � �� ١٣ ��ں � � � ز�دہ  ا�� � � �� �ل ٢٠٢١-٢٢ � � � ڈى � � �ح � ٩٧ء٥ � د�، � �ل � دورا

 نو� �� �� ر� � ٧ � � �� � ٧٥ء١٣ � � د�۔ ��، ��� رو� � �ص �ر � �� �ل ٢٠٢١-٢٢ � آ�ى �  �۔ ��ى � � �ل � دورا

�� � ��ں � د� �۔ �رى �� �م ا�م � �� ��رہ �� �م �ا� � � �� ا�دى �� � � �ہ �۔

و�� �ض �و�-١٩ � �ف د� � � ا�� ��ں � �� � �� � ا� � � � � �۔ ��، روس – ��ا� �ز� � �� �ت و � � ا� 

� �ڑ �ا � � � � �ف ا�س اور �ا�� � �ں � ا��، �� ��� �� � � ، �� � � � ر�و�ں اور ��� �روں اور �رو�رى � و ا�د 

� � � �ود � ر�۔

 ز�ل  ٢٢٬٨٦٣   (١٠٨٬٩١٠ )  ز�ل  ١٩٧٬١١٥   (١٢٠٬٢٠٢) �/(�ن) �ا �/(�ن) �ا

 �  ��   

 ز�ل  (٨٧٬٧٧٧)  (٧٥٬٠٠٥ )  ز�ل  ٨٦٬٤٧٥   (٨٦٬٢٩٧) �ن � ا �/(�ن) � ا

   �٣٠ن، ٢٠٢٢  �٣٠ن، ٢٠٢١   �٣٠ن، ٢٠٢٢  �٣٠ن، ٢٠٢١

 ن�روں اور � �� �ڑ�ں � �� �و� � �� �ل � �� � ٥٤ � ا�� د� �۔ ا� �� � ا�ل �ہ �ڑ�ں  �� �ل ٢٠٢١-٢٢ � دورا

� � � ��� �٣٢ ا�� �ا۔ آ� �� � � ا� �ر�د� � �� �� � �و ا�� ا��ز اس � � ا� او�ف �، �ص �ر � ��  � درآ

�ل ٢٠٢١-٢٢ � � �� �، �� دو�ى �� � �و� ��ل � �ر� � � �ر � �� �۔

   - - - - - - رو� ٠٠٠ �- - - - - -  - - - - - - رو� ٠٠٠ � - - - - - - 

ا�� ��  ٢٨٠٬٤٤٩   ١٨٩٬٨٧٢  ا�� ��  ١٢٠٬٤١٥   ٨٦٬٧٣٢ 

( (
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� � ��ہ - ڈ� � اور �� �و�۔

���� �ل ٢٠٢١-�٢٠٢٢ ا�م �� �، � � ٣٤ء�٢ رو� � �� آ�� �� �۔ � �� �ل � �� � ١١ � ا�� � ��� �� �۔ �  � �� � ����� ����� � � � � �پ �� � ٥١ � � � ڈا�، �ں � �ل � � �� �ر  � ا� ا�� �� � � � �ل � �� � ٣٩ � �ى د� �۔ 

�� � ٧ � ا�� د� �، � � ڈ� � اور �� �و� � � �ل � �� � ��ت � �وز �� �� �٢١ �� �� �۔ � � 

 ز�ل �� � ا�ع دى � � �  �� �ل � �� � ��� ١٢ء١٩٧ � ��� رو� اور ٨٦ء٢٢ � ��� رو� � � اور � �دوں � � ا

� ���٢٦٤ � اور ١٢١ � � � � � �ى آ�۔
� �� �� � �� ���� ����(IOT)�� �� �ر اور ا��� ا�� آف  � � ��ہ – 

�ا�� � �� �� ا�ا�ت � ��، ا�� � � � � �� � �ورت � و� �  ���Genset اس و� ا� � � ز�دہ � وا� �وڈ� �۔ 
� � �و� � � �� ا�� �ا �۔���� و�� �و

��� �� ���� � � � � �رے ا�ل �ہ �روں � �ر� � �� �� � �� �� ا�� � �ا� � ��� � �� ����� �� �ر � �ر� � �ر�ل 

�� � �� �ا� � � �� �۔

�� � اور �ر� � �ت �� � ا� ڈا� �۔ �  �OEM � �ل �� �وع � دى � اور �ر� � �ى آ� � �� ���  �SBP �ا� � �� � � �ر �

�۔

 م� �  �Raynوپ  اس � �ل �  �TPL Maps � � �� � � �� �ر ���ں �� � � �، � � ��ن � �� � �� � �و�ا
� �

 ��۔ �وس � �ر � �ا� ��� � ��،  �GIS � ڈو� � �ازا ��ا � �ؤ�� � ذر� �ڈ) � ا� �� � دا�ہ �ر � � اور اس � � درآ ��(� ا�  ������  � ر� �۔�� � ا�ر� �٥ Gرول آؤٹ �� اور � ا�� � �� �  �LBSا� �� � � �ر � �ازا اور ��ن � �

� ��� ا�ى � رى � � � � ����  ن��ت � ��،  �TPL Maps �د � ��ن � �ر� � ا� �ط  �GIS � �ر � �ا � د� �۔ ��  ا

�� �ون � ��، آ�� � � را� � � ا� �۔

رے � �ر � �وع �� �  �ر� � اس ��ا� � د� ��، � � ا� � � � � ا� �� � � �ت � ڈو�ن � ا� �� اور ا� ا� �ہ ادا

� � �۔ ��ر � ا�  HoldCoاور ��ن �  �OpCo �� �� � �� �رى � �  �Astra Location Services �م � �م � ر� �۔ 

 م� � � � � � ڈ� � ��ت � �� � �وغ د� اور �و� � �� � � �و� ��� �رى � �� �� �، اور ا� � و� �و� �  اس ا�ا

� ذر� �ر� � ر�� � ��� �۔ �ر� � اس �ز� � ڈ� � اور �� �و� � �� � � � ا�� �� �۔

 ن� �� �� �وع �ا۔ � � ا�ات ا� � �� �ل ٢٢-�٢٣ � ر� �۔   ن�رى �� اور ا�دى �ا ��ن � �� �ل ٢١-٢٢ � آ�ى � �� � دورا

 ر� � ر�رى � �وع ��  � � �م ��د� اور �م د�� �۔ �� �اوا  ررك � � � � و� �وڈ� � � ��ن � درآ ��ن � �ڑ�ں � �اوا

�۔ دو�ى �ف، ا�ل �ہ �روں � �و� � ا�� �ا � � � �ر � ��ارى � � رو� � � �� �� �ر� � �� � � � �� ا� 

�� ��ارى � �� � �� �۔

�� �TPL Trakker اور �� � � � �  �IOTر� � � �� � ا� �� �رى ر� �۔  TPLTاس �ل ا� ا�ا� /��  �IOT �رم �رف  ������� � � �  ہا� ���ں � �� ��ت � �� اور �ر �ا� � � �رى �� اور  �IOTو� � آ� � �د �ر �� � – اس �ح � � اس �� �� � � و

�ا� � � �ر� � �ا � �� � �۔

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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درج ذ� � �� ڈا�� � � �اد آ� (٨) �۔

� ڈ� � اور �� �وڈ� � اور �ر � � اور ��� � آ� � �� ڈو� � � �ر �ں �۔ اس آ� وا� �ل �  �TPL Mapsرف 

ا� � �� ر� � � آ� �۔  TPL Mapsا�  �TPL ڈ� � اور �� �و� � �� � �� � �رے � و� �� � آ�� �ا� 

�ے � اور ا��ا� �و� � �ن اور �وغ �ا� �ے �۔

��ن ا� �ر� آ� � �� � ر� � � � د� �� � � � � ٣٣ � آ�دى �ب � و� � � � � � �۔ � /آر��� ا� ��ں � 
�� �ز� � � اور � � � � ����� ���� �م � �� � � ا� � ر� � -  TPL Mapsا�اد اور �� � ���ں � �د �� � � ا� ا� ����� � �� � � GIS  � (NFRCC)اور �� �و� �ا� �� � �ون � ر� �۔�� �� �آرڈ ڈ�ا� � ا�ر� اور � 

�� �� اور � �ں � � � ��ط �� ���������  �TPL Mapsى �� �ں، �� ��ں، ا� � آف ��ن اور �ا� �ت � � ا� �ز رو�، 

 �� (real-time) رى� �Maps � � �� ر �� � �� ��ز �� �� آ� وا� �� ا��ت � � � � �و� �ر ���۔ � ا�� �� � �

� �ؤ� � �� ا��ت � �� اپ ڈ� �ا� �� �، �از� � � � � � �� ا�ں � �� �� � ا�� ا�اد و �ر � �� اپ ڈ� �ا� 

 ر� � وا� وو�ں � �اد �ا� �� �  �� �۔ �� � � � �� وو� �ن آؤٹ � �رے � ا�رو� ��ت �ا� �� � �� �� � ا�وا

�� �ں �۔

� �زى اور ا�� ��� �رى � آ� � �� � ��، ڈ� � �ت اور �� � �و� � � ��ں �� �� �� � � -  B2Bاور  B2Gدو�ں 

� - ��ت � ا�ا�ت، ��ت � ��، اور �اہ را� �رو�رى ���ى � �� ��ز � �� �۔

�رڈ اور �رڈ �ں � � :

�رڈ � � درج ذ� �۔
� ��ى �م�������  

د ڈا��ز �ب � �ى  آزا

  �� �� �و� ا�

  �ب ا� ز�ى

٧ ١  

ا�� ڈا��ز �ب �ور � �ن

  ��� (ر��ڈ) � �� ��رى

  �د �ا�

� ا�� ڈا��ز �ب � �� ا� ۔ا� �

  �ب � ر�ض 

  �ب � ا�

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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  �ب � ر�ض - �

�� �� �و� ا� ٥

ا� آر اور �و� � �ب ا� ز�ى - �� 

 ن� � �ں � دى �۔ �رڈ � درج �ا

آڈٹ � �ب ا� ز�ى - �� 

�رڈ � �:

  �ب � �ى - � 

�ب � �� ا�۔ا�۔�۔ ٤

  �ب �� �دق � - ��ى

�ب �ور � �ن ٤

�ب � �ى ٥

ڈا�� � �م ��ئ �

 ن٥ � � �۔ � � ڈا��ز � ��ى درج ذ� �ن � � �۔ �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � اس �� �ل � دورا

  �ب �ور � �ن – �

  �ب � ر�ض - �

 ز– ��ى   �ب �در �ا

��� (ر��ڈ) � �� ��رى ٥

�ب ا� ز�ى ٣

�ب � ر�ض ٥

�ب � ا� ٥

ڈا�� ز � �و�/ ��ہ:

�رڈ آف ڈا��ز � ذر� �ر �ہ ، ا� ��� ڈا��ز � �و� �� ��د �۔ اس �� � � ا� ، ٢٠١٧ اور �ر�ر� �ر� � درج �ہ � �ڈ 

�ٔ�� �ر �� �۔ �رڈ اور � � /ز�� � � � ا�س � �� �� � اس � � � � �٢٠١٩ �� ڈا��وں � �و� � � ا� �ف �

 نڈا��ز اور � ا�� � ادا � � �و�/ ��/ �ا�ت/  � �� �� � � ڈا��ز � ١٠٠،٠٠٠ ��� رو� � �و� د� �� �۔ �ل � دورا

ا�ك آ� � � �� ��ت �ٹ �٤٤ � � ��� ��اروں � �ا� � � �۔

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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�� � ر�� � درج �۔���� � � �م �ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر� � �� ��ں � �وى و � � � � �  Ÿ

ر�ں � �� آ�� �� � اور اس �ت �  �ر� ا� ا� � آف ��ن � ذر� �ر �دہ �ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر� � � �رڈ � ا� �ر�ر� ذ� دا

�� �� � �� �س �� � �:

��� ا�، � � � � �ف � � � � � � اس � �روا�ں ، � �ؤ اور ا�� � ��ؤ � � �� �ر � � � � �۔ Ÿ

� � ر�ں ��� �� � � ڈا��ز � �ر � ا� �ا� اور ذ� دا  ہڈا��ز � � �س �� � �،   ن� ا�� � ا� �� � � � � � و �رڈ �ا

 ہا� �� � � ��۔ � �� وا� �۔ ��، � � � �� ڈا��ز � �� ا�ا� �� �، �� و

�ر�ر� اور �� ر�ر� �� ورك � �ن / ��:

 رر� � � � � آرڈ� ٢٠١٧ � �۔ �� آف ا�ؤ� � �� �� � ��ا  � � Ÿُ

� ا��ا� ��� ر�ر� ا�رڈ ، � � ��ن � � � �� ا�ق � ، �� ��ت � �رى � اس � � � � � اور ر�ر� � � � �ح � روا� �  Ÿ

�� �ر � ا�ف اور و�� � � �۔

� � ��� ا� � �رى � � ا�ؤ� � ��ں � �وى � � اور �� � � �ل اور �ط � � � �۔ Ÿ

ا�رو� ا�م � �ول �� � �م � � �� �� � �ر � � اور �� �ٔ� �� � ا� �ذ � � � اور اس � �ا� � � �ر� �۔ Ÿ

� � �دى ا�ل �ط � اور � � ��ں � �رے � �� � � �� �� � � � �� �� � �ر� �۔ Ÿ

ڈا�� ز � �� :

� ��� � �� / ��ٔ �ر:

�ر� اور � �� �ز ١٦ ٢٩،٥٣٧،٠٠٠ ٧٧ء١٥

�م �گ (� ��) ١٠٦ ٣،٤٥٤،٤٥١ ٨٤ء١

�� �ر ��ں � �رى ا� آ�� اور �� ا�اد و �ر � �� � � � ، اس ��� ر�رٹ � �� � � �۔ Ÿ

�م �گ (��) ١،٠٥٨ ٩،٠٣٤،٥٥٠ ٨٢ء٤

�ت �� � �اد � � �

 واور � ٤ ٤ ٠٠ء٠ �و� ڈا��ز، � اى ا

� �ں ١ ٢،٤٩٩،٠٠٠ ٣٣ء١

� � � �� ١،٢٠٣ ١٨٧،٢٦٣،٠٩٣ ٠٠ء١٠٠ُ

٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٢ � � � � ��� � �� � ا� ��ارہ درج ذ� �۔

��� ا� � � �ٹ � �� �ل اور ادا�� وا�� � �� � �۔ Ÿ

د�  ١٤ ٢١،٣٨٥،٥٠٠ ٤٢ء١١

ا�� ا� �ں ٤ ١٢١،٣٥٢،٥٨٨ ٨٠ء٦٤

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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٨ ٣٠٠٠١ ٣٥٠٠٠ ٢٦٩٥٠٠ ٠.١٤٣٩ 

٢ ٥٠٠٠١ ٥٥٠٠٠ ١١٠٠٠٠ ٠.٠٥٨٧ 

١ ١٣٥٠٠١ ١٤٠٠٠٠ ١٤٠٠٠٠ ٠.٠٧٤٨ 

٢ ١٥٥٠٠١ ١٦٠٠٠٠ ٣١٤٥٠٠ ٠.١٦٧٩ 

٢٦ ١ ١٠٠ ١٣١ ٠.٠٠٠١ 

 �ز ��رز � �اد ا�ا� �اد ا�� �اد ز�ِ �� �ز �

٨٨ ٥٠٠١ ١٠٠٠٠ ٧٦٧٤١٧ ٠.٤٠٩٨ 

١٦ ١٠٠٠١ ١٥٠٠٠ ٢٠٧٥٠٠ ٠.١١٠٨ 

٢ ٦٠٠٠١ ٦٥٠٠٠ ١٢٣٥٠٠ ٠.٠٦٦ 

٣ ٧٠٠٠١ ٧٥٠٠٠ ٢٢٥٠٠٠ ٠.١٢٠٢ 

٦ ٩٥٠٠١ ١٠٠٠٠٠ ٦٠٠٠٠٠ ٠.٣٢٠٤ 

�٣٠ن ٢٠٢٢ � � � � ��رز � �� � ��د ��� � � ��:

٢٣ ٢٠٠٠١ ٢٥٠٠٠ ٥٥٥٠٠٠ ٠.٢٩٦٤ 

٢ ٦٥٠٠١ ٧٠٠٠٠ ١٣٦٥٠٠ ٠.٠٧٢٩ 

١ ١١٥٠٠١ ١٢٠٠٠٠ ١٢٠٠٠٠ ٠.٠٦٤١ 

٥ ٣٥٠٠١ ٤٠٠٠٠ ١٩٠٠٠٠ ٠.١٠١٥ 

٤ ٤٠٠٠١ ٤٥٠٠٠ ١٧١٠٠٠ ٠.٠٩١٣ 

١ ١٥٠٠٠١ ١٥٥٠٠٠ ١٥٤٠٠٠ ٠.٠٨٢٢ 

١ ٨٠٠٠١ ٨٥٠٠٠ ٨٣٠٠٠ ٠.٠٤٤٣ 

٢٤ ١٥٠٠١ ٢٠٠٠٠ ٤٥٩٥٠٠ ٠.٢٤٥٤ 

٢٣٩ ٥٠١ ١٠٠٠ ٢٣٧٩٠٨ ٠.١٢٧ 

٣٨٥ ١٠١ ٥٠٠ ١٩١٩١٧ ٠.١٠٢٥ 

٣٠٩ ١٠٠١ ٥٠٠٠ ٨٨٧١٣٢ ٠.٤٧٣٧ 

٧ ٢٥٠٠١ ٣٠٠٠٠ ٢٠٣٥٠٠ ٠.١٠٨٧ 

١٢ ٤٥٠٠١ ٥٠٠٠٠ ٥٩٣٥٠٠ ٠.٣١٦٩ 

١ ٧٥٠٠١ ٨٠٠٠٠ ٧٩٠٠٠ ٠.٠٤٢٢ 

١ ١٤٥٠٠١ ١٥٠٠٠٠ ١٥٠٠٠٠ ٠.٠٨٠١ 

١ ١٦٠٠٠١ ١٦٥٠٠٠ ١٦٣٥٠٠ ٠.٠٨٧٣ 

١ ١٧٠٠٠١ ١٧٥٠٠٠ ١٧٤٠٠٠ ٠.٠٩٢٩ 

١ ٢١٠٠٠١ ٢١٥٠٠٠ ٢١٣٠٠٠ ٠.١١٣٧ 

١ ٢٤٥٠٠١ ٢٥٠٠٠٠ ٢٥٠٠٠٠ ٠.١٣٣٥ 

١ ١٧٥٠٠١ ١٨٠٠٠٠ ١٨٠٠٠٠ ٠.٠٩٦١ 

٢ ٢٦٥٠٠١ ٢٧٠٠٠٠ ٥٣٧٠٠٠ ٠.٢٨٦٨ 

١ ٣١٠٠٠١ ٣١٥٠٠٠ ٣١٥٠٠٠ ٠.١٦٨٢ 

٢ ١٩٥٠٠١ ٢٠٠٠٠٠ ٤٠٠٠٠٠ ٠.٢١٣٦ 

١ ٢٩٠٠٠١ ٢٩٥٠٠٠ ٢٩١٥٠٠ ٠.١٥٥٧ 

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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١ ٣٢٠٠٠١ ٣٢٥٠٠٠ ٣٢٥٠٠٠ ٠.١٧٣٦ 

١ ٣٦٠٠٠١ ٣٦٥٠٠٠ ٣٦١٥٠٠ ٠.١٩٣ 

١ ٤١٠٠٠١ ٤١٥٠٠٠ ٤١١٠٠٠ ٠.٢١٩٥ 

١ ٤٤٠٠٠١ ٤٤٥٠٠٠ ٤٤٥٠٠٠ ٠.٢٣٧٦ 

١ ٥١٠٠٠١ ٥١٥٠٠٠ ٥١٠٥٠٠ ٠.٢٧٢٦ 

١ ٥٦٠٠٠١ ٥٦٥٠٠٠ ٥٦١٠٠٠ ٠.٢٩٩٦ 

١ ٥٦٥٠٠١ ٥٧٠٠٠٠ ٥٦٧٥٠٠ ٠.٣٠٣ 

١ ٦٥٥٠٠١ ٦٦٠٠٠٠ ٦٦٠٠٠٠ ٠.٣٥٢٤ 

٢ ٩٩٥٠٠١ ١٠٠٠٠٠٠ ١٩٩٦٠٠٠ ١.٠٦٥٩ 

١ ١٥٤٥٠٠١ ١٥٥٠٠٠٠ ١٥٤٦٥٠٠ ٠.٨٢٥٨ 

١ ١٦٦٥٠٠١ ١٦٧٠٠٠٠ ١٦٦٧٠٠٠ ٠.٨٩٠٢ 

١ ١٩٨٥٠٠١ ١٩٩٠٠٠٠ ١٩٨٩٥٠٠ ١.٠٦٢٤ 

١ ١٩٩٥٠٠١ ٢٠٠٠٠٠٠ ٢٠٠٠٠٠٠ ١.٠٦٨ 

١ ٢٤٩٥٠٠١ ٢٥٠٠٠٠٠ ٢٤٩٩٠٠٠ ١.٣٣٤٥ 

��� ������٥،٩٨١،٥٠٠ � � � ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� ا�

ا�� ��ت:

�� �ز (�ت �ظ �م) ِ

�
��� �� (� ت �ظ �م) ز�ِ �� �ز � �اد (�٣٠ن ٢٠٢٢)ِ����� ا�� ا� �ں، ��ن اور 

� ڈى � – �� � ا�ك � ٢٦٧،٠٠٠

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� �و� �  ٩،٤٣١،٠٠٠

١ ٨١٤٠٠٠١ ٨١٤٥٠٠٠ ٨١٤٠٥٠٠ ٤.٣٤٧١ 

١ ٨٣٣٠٠٠١ ٨٣٣٥٠٠٠ ٨٣٣٣٠٠٠ ٤.٤٤٩٩ 

١ ٩٤٣٠٠٠١ ٩٤٣٥٠٠٠ ٩٤٣١٠٠٠ ٥.٠٣٦٢ 

١ ٢٨٢٠٠٠١ ٢٨٢٥٠٠٠ ٢٨٢٤٥٠٠ ١.٥٠٨٣ 

١ ٤١٥٠٠٠١ ٤١٥٥٠٠٠ ٤١٥٢٠٠٠ ٢.٢١٧٢ 

  ١٢٠٣ �� ١٨٧٢٦٣٠٩٣ ٠٠ء١٠٠

١ ٥٩٨٠٠٠١ ٥٩٨٥٠٠٠ ٥٩٨١٥٠٠ ٣.١٩٤٢ 

� � ا� ��� (�ا�ٹ) � ٦٦٠،٠٠٠

� � ا� ڈا�� ا�ر� � ا�� �وو�� � ٢٥٠،٠٠٠

١ ٣٢٤٥٠٠١ ٣٢٥٠٠٠٠ ٣٢٥٠٠٠٠ ١.٧٣٥٥ 

١ ١٢٠١١٥٠٠١ ١٢٠١٢٠٠٠٠ ١٢٠١١٧٥٨٨ ٦٤.١٤٣٨ 

� � ا� �ر�ر� � ١٢٠،٤٤٢،٥٨٨

 ���رز � �اد ا�ا� �اد ا�� �اد ز�ِ �� �ز �

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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� � � – ا� ا� ٩٩٦،٠٠٠

�� �� �و� ا� 

درج ذ� ڈا��ز � � ا�� ڈا��ز � اور ٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٢ � � � �ز ر� �۔ 

درج ذ� ڈا��ز � � �د�ر ڈا��ز � اور ٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٢ � � � �� �ز � ر� �۔ 

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� آ� � ا� ا�� � � ٢٩١،٥٠٠

�ب � ر�ض ١

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� ا�� � ٨،١٤٠،٥٠٠

��� (ر��ڈ) � �� ��رى ١

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� � ا� � ٢١٣،٠٠٠

��ر� � – ا� ا� ������٥٠،٠٠٠  �� �

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� � ا� ا�� � � ٣٦١،٥٠٠

� ڈى � – �� ا� ا� ا�� � ٣٥،٠٠٠

 ن� ��ِ �ت اور ��� � (�ت �ظ �م)   واور ا ڈا��ز، � اى ا

درج ذ� ڈا��ز � � � ن ا�� / ��د ڈا��ز � اور ٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٢ � � � �ز ر� �۔ 

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� ا�� ا�� � ١٥٧،٠٠٠

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� ا�ك � ١،٥٤٦،٥٠٠

�ب � ��  ١

��
 ے� ڈى آ��� � �١،٦٦٧،٠٠٠ � ڈى � – �� ا

� ڈى � – �� ا� � � ا�� ��� ا�� � ١٢٠،٠٠٠

� ڈى � – �� ا� ا�ك � ٢٠٠،٠٠٠

� ڈى � – �� ا� � ا� ا�� ا�ك � ٧٩،٠٠٠

�ب � ا� -

�ب � �ى 

�ب ا� ز�ى 

 ن� ��ِ �ت اور ��� �ں � �� � اس �ل  � � ڈا��، � اى او، � ا� او، � ��ى اور ا

� � �ز � ��� � � � ۔

�ب �ور � �ن ١

 ن� ��ِ �ت اور ��� �ں � �� � �ز � ��� �  ڈا��، � اى او، � ا� او، � ��ى اور ا

�ت  

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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ڈ���:

� �����  � � � اور � � ��� � � �ور�ت � �را  � � �� ور�   رر� �� آ�� � �ر � ر� � �رش �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �ل � � �� � ��ا

� � �� � ��� � � � ��ں � ��� �رى � � �۔

ا�ر �:ِ

��ر� ا� ا� � آف ��ن ، �رل �رڈ آف ر�� اور ��ن ������  ن� �ِ دل � �� ادا �� �۔ �   � � � ��رز � � � � ا�د � ا�ر � اس � ا

ِا�ك ا� � � � �و� اور ر�� � � �اج � � �� �۔ � ا� �ز� ، �رو�رى �ر�ز، و�رز، ��ز اور �ز � � �ص دل � ��  ِ

 رادا �۔ ادا �� � � ا�ں � �رے �� � �ل � ا� ��ر �دا

� �����

� �� (ا� ۔ا� �۔) �ور � �ن

� ا��� آ�

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of TPL 

Trakker Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the requirements 

of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 

of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 

party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 

of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the 

Audit Committee. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the 

Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight 

any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries 

of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply 

with the Regulations. 

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the 

accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 

approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control 

covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the 

Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks. 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 

of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with 

the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 

June 30, 2022.

UDIN: CR2022100670pCbXqdW6 Engagement Partner: Zulfikar Ali Causer

DATED: September 26, 2022        CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KARACHI     BDO EBRAHIM & CO. 

Tel: +92 21 3568 3030
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239
www.bdo.com.pk

2nd Floor, Block-C,
Lakson Square
Building No.1
Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan

to the members of TPL Trakker Limited on the Statement of Compliance 
contained in the  Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019 
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies 
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

1. The total number of Directors are eight (08) as per the following: 

 Male Female

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 

 7 1

2. The composition of the Board is as follows: 

Category Names

 Ms. Nausheen Javaid Amjad

Executive Directors Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan

 Mr. Ahmad Zuberi

 Brigadier (R) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Jameel Yusuf

Independent Directors Mr. Omar Askari

Name of company  : TPL Trakker Limited

Year ended  :  June 30, 2022

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 

been taken by Board/ Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2017 (“Act”) and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance), 2019 (“Regulations”).

9. The Board is in the process of compliance with the Directors’ Training Program as required under 

Regulation 19 of the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance, 2019. Three of the Board 

members have completed their certification while the directors, who do not hold the certification, 

are well conversant with their duties and responsibilities as directors of a listed company. The 

Company, however, aims to encourage the remaining directors, to complete their certification.

NOTE: For the purposes of the rounding up of fraction, the Company has not rounded up the fraction, 

as one, since the Company considers that the Board has adequate Independent Directors.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director 

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and 

the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board. 

 Mr. Ali Asgher

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 

policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant 

policies, approved at group level, along with the dates on which they/polices were approved or 

amended has also been maintained by the Company. 

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 

companies, including this Company. 

8. The Board of Directors has a formal policy, at group level, and transparent procedures for 

remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations. However, the same 

will be presented to the Board at its meeting for the approval of the annual accounts.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 

been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 

procedures. 
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18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the 

Regulations have been complied with. 

HR and Remuneration Committee 2 meetings were held during the Year. The meeting of 

the HR and Remuneration Committee is held on a 

half-yearly basis. 

 Mr. Hashim Sadiq Ali – Secretary

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz – Member

 Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan – Member 

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised 

to the Committees for compliance. 

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and 

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) of the Committees were as per 

following: 

Audit Committee Mr. Ahmad Zuberi – Chairman

 Mr. Omar Askari – Member

 Mr. Mohammad Riaz - Member

HR and Remuneration Committee Mr. Ahmad Zuberi – Chairman

Name of Committee Frequency of Meeting

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 

rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight 

Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do 

not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 

International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by  ICAP 

and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative (spouse, 

parents, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial 

officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company. 

 

11. The Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer have duly endorsed the financial 

statements before approval of the Board.

 Mr. Nader Nawaz – Secretary 

Audit Committee 4 meetings were held during the Year. The meetings 

of the Audit Committee are held on a quarterly basis

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified 

and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the 

Company. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 

other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory 

requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 

regard. 

JAMEEL YUSUF (S.ST.)
CHAIRMANCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SARWAR ALI KHAN
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of TPL Trakker Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 

Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 

the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 

Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 

(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part 

thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 

respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the 

profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then 

ended.

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of TPL Trakker Limited (the 

Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement 

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of 

cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained 

all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for 

the purposes of the audit.

Opinion

Tel: +92 21 3568 3030
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239
www.bdo.com.pk

2nd Floor, Block-C,
Lakson Square
Building No.1
Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan
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Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit 

2. Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

(Refer note 6 to the accompanying 

unconsolidated financial Statements)

The intangible assets include goodwill, 

intangible assets with indefinite life and 

intangible assets under development having 

carrying value aggregating to Rs. 2,086.102 

million as of June 30, 2022 and tested for 

impairment at least on an annual basis. 

The determination of recoverable amount 

requires judgement in both identifying and then 

valuing the relevant Cash Generating Units 

(CGUs), and the impairment assessment for 

such assets involves significant judgments and 

estimates about future business performance, 

with key assumptions including cash flows, 

inflation rates, the overall long-term growth 

rates, discount rates used and to the extent 

relevant, the fair value less costs to dispose. 

Changes in these assumptions might lead to a 

significant change in the carrying values of the 

related assets, for such reasons we considered 

this as a key audit matter.

Ÿ assess the key assumptions and 

methodologies used in the impairment 

analysis, in particular growth rates, inflation 

rate and discount rate applied;

Ÿ examined the approved business plans and 

assumptions used by management, 

including forecasted revenue base, profit 

from operations capital calculations and 

cash flows necessary for the continuing use 

of the CGU's assets and allocated goodwill; 

and

We assessed the methodologies used by the 

management in the impairment analysis and 

determination of CGUs, to which it relates.

We involved our specialist to:

Our audit procedures amongst others, included 

a review of the Company's intangible assets 

impairment process and evaluating the 

Company's assumptions used in assessing the 

recoverability of intangible assets, in particular, 

revenue and cash flow projections, useful 

economic lives and discount rates.

Following are the key audit matters:

1.  Revenue recognition

(Refer note 35 to the accompanying 

unconsolidated financial statements)

Revenue from rendering of monitoring services is 

recognized over the time i.e. as and when the 

services are rendered. 

We have considered revenue from the rendering 

of monitoring services as a key audit matter as 

determination of the amount of revenue to be 

recognized for each contract requires complex IT 

systems integration and there is a risk that 

revenue is recorded in the wrong accounting 

period.

Ÿ We have performed cut-off procedures and 
recalculations of revenue recognized over 
the time to ensure that revenue has been 
recorded in the correct accounting period.

Ÿ We tested the operating effectiveness of the 
controls to ensure that they operated 
throughout the year as intended.

Our audit procedures include the following:

Ÿ We obtained an understanding of key IT 
systems, including interfaces involved in the 
recording of revenue along with the IT 
general controls.

Ÿ We have performed tests of details over 
revenue and tested manual journal entries 
posted into relevant revenue accounts in the 
sub-ledgers and general ledger.



Annual Report 2021-22 55

Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Ÿ We also checked the relationship between 
the market capitalization for relevant CGU, 
using the Level 1 input of the fair value 
hierarchy i.e. quoted prices, and its book 
value, among other factors.

Ÿ evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed 
by management around the key 
assumptions for various CGU's as well as 
performing break—even analysis on key 
assumptions and challenged the outcomes 
of the assessment.

   
3. Acquisition of Trakker Middle East LLC

(Refer notes 8 and 43.6 to the accompanying 

financial statements) 

We considered the valuation of the Subsidiary as 

a key audit matter due to the judgment involved 

in estimating future cashflows in relation to the 

Subsidiary for the purpose of applying valuation 

techniques.

The Company has an investment in the 

Subsidiary namely Trakker Middle East LLC. which 

is measured at fair value on the basis of 

observable market prices, where such prices are 

available, and by applying valuation techniques, 

where quoted prices are not available.

We also assessed the adequacy of the related 

disclosures in the financial statements in 

accordance with the financial reporting 

standards.

Ÿ checked the accuracy of key inputs used in 

the valuation such as the expected cash 

flows, discount and inflation rates used by 

benchmarking them with external data; and

Our audit procedures amongst others, 

comprised of understanding the management 

process for valuation of investments, 

considering whether the application of 

methodologies are consistent with generally 

accepted valuation methodologies and prior 

periods, and that assumptions and inputs used 

are consistent, in all material respects, with the 

business’ past performance and management 

business strategy.

Ÿ assessed whether, for a selection of models, 

the model valuation methodology is 

appropriate;

We checked the allocation of investments to the 

correct level (1, 2 and 3) within the fair value 

hierarchy in line with the established policy, and 

that the policy classifications were appropriate.

We involved our specialists to assess the 

appropriateness of the methodology and 

assumptions used by the management to 

determine the fair value of the investment in the 

unquoted Subsidiary. As part of these audit 

procedures, our specialists:
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 

thereon. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

1. We draw attention to note 1.2 of notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, which states 

that the Board approved the demerger of the mapping segment of the business from the 

Company by creating a separate entity in Pakistan and transferring the net assets to the same, 

consequent to which a new entity as a subsidiary of the Company by the name of "Astra Location 

Services (Private) Limited" was incorporated subsequent to year end on July 05, 2022. Moreover, 

the Board has also authorized the management to incorporate a foreign entity in a suitable 

jurisdiction for investments in the mapping business. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 

of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 

requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

Emphasis of Matters

2. We draw attention to note 6 of notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, which discloses 

that goodwill acquired through business combination, intangibles with indefinite lives and 

intangible assets under development are subject to impairment reviews which are based on 

underlying assumptions. However, changes to the assumptions may result in adjustments to the 

carrying values of the assets. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 

public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 

(XIX of 2017);

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern.

b) the statement of unconsolidated financial position, statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 

together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 

(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
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c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 

purpose of the Company’s business; and

Other Matter

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 

deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 

of that Ordinance.

The unconsolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited 

by another firm of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements 

vide their report dated September 18, 2021.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

DATED: September 26, 2022         CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
5 736,172,722 1,118,248,281
6 2,140,841,064 2,131,271,500
7 118,591,439 107,974,195

Long-term investments 8 194,552,732 194,552,732
9 471,612 205,713
10 37,699,947 26,194,868

Deferred tax assets - net 11 198,197,600 59,673,043

3,426,527,116 3,638,120,332

12 369,984,768 420,445,073
13 819,745,922 1,123,767,028

Loans and advances 14 34,329,356 63,023,917
Trade deposits and prepayments 15 34,253,270 32,412,327

16 355,675,133 291,255,846
17 29,158,769 17,607,533
18 915,409,731 1,493,574,743
19 120,014,072 132,203,982

2,678,571,021 3,574,290,449

6,105,098,137 7,212,410,781

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital

2,850,000,000 2,850,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 20 1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930
Capital reserves 202,650,046 232,690,046

44,227,795 (189,432,169)
Other components of equity 77,760,820 362,683,585

2,197,269,591 2,278,572,392

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

22 769,301,702 1,049,650,530
23 89,833,930 81,889,252
24 - 68,367,855
25 - 797,103

859,135,632 1,200,704,740

ASSETS

Stock-in-trade

CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Long-term loans  

Right-of-use assets

Lease liabilities
Long-term loans
Government grant

Share capital

Long-term deposits

Long-term financing

Trade debts 

Interest accrued

Revenue reserve

TOTAL ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

Other receivables
Due from related parties 

285,000,000 (2021: 285,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

CURRENT LIABILITIES

26 1,075,878,630 1,293,755,026

27 72,529,878 96,437,639

28 196,701,371 235,953,736

29 767,102,058 1,062,507,117

30 405,261,087 753,189,884
31 414,753,666 224,422,893

Taxation - net 32 28,098,976 31,014,251

33 88,367,248 35,853,103

3,048,692,914 3,733,133,649

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,105,098,137 7,212,410,781

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 34

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Short-term financings

Current portion of non-current liabilities 

Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up

Advance monitoring fees

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Due to related parties

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

As at June 30, 2022

Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
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2022 2021

Rupees

            

Note

           

35      2,106,468,500 1,886,241,808

36     (1,360,234,223)      (1,280,126,555)

         746,234,277           606,115,253 

37          (105,861,119) (97,174,335)

38      (359,924,460)        (319,069,004)

       280,448,698             189,871,914 

39 (77,654,755) (77,725,874)

40       (326,958,014)       (389,542,836)

41          210,638,359             191,100,087 

          86,474,288         (86,296,709)

42           110,640,723         (33,905,584)

             197,115,011        (120,202,293)

   Fair value gain on equity instruments designated at fair

 value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), net of tax - 77,760,820

             197,115,011           (42,441,473)

Earnings / (Loss) per share – basic and diluted 47                        1.05                     (0.64)

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Finance costs

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 

Taxation

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other income 

Operating profit

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Research and development expenses

Turnover – net

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 
other Comprehensive Income 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Balance as at July 01, 2020      1,204,425,930 146,817,136 - -      (82,063,384)            284,432,213 -       349,185,965       1,553,611,895 

Issuance of ordinary shares 668,205,000 - - - - - - - 668,205,000

Share premium on issuance of ordinary 

shares - - 133,641,000 - - - - 133,641,000 133,641,000

Loss for the year - - - -     (120,202,293) - - (120,202,293)      (120,202,293)

Other comprehensive loss for the year, 

net of tax - - - - - - 77,760,820 77,760,820 77,760,820

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (120,202,293) - 77,760,820 (42,441,473) (42,441,473)

Transaction cost on issuance of ordinary

shares - - (77,808,090) - 13,324,060 - - (64,484,030) (64,484,030)

Share based payment reserve - - - 30,040,000 - - - 30,040,000 30,040,000

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment realised on account of:

   incremental depreciation charged 

  on related assets - net of tax - - - - (490,552) 490,552 - - -

Balance as at June 30, 2021 1,872,630,930 146,817,136 55,832,910 30,040,000 (189,432,169) 284,922,765 77,760,820 405,941,462 2,278,572,392

Profit for the year - - - -            197,115,011 - - 197,115,011            197,115,011 

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, 

net of tax - - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 197,115,011 - - 197,115,011 197,115,011

Share based payment reserve - - - (30,040,000) - - - (30,040,000) (30,040,000)

Deficit on revaluation of property, plant 

and equipment realised - - - - - (248,377,812) - (248,377,812) (248,377,812)

Transfer of revaluation on surplus on disposal - - - - 36,544,953 (36,544,953) - - -

Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,872,630,930 146,817,136 55,832,910 - 44,227,795 - 77,760,820 324,638,661 2,197,269,591

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

-------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------

Capital reserves Other components of equity

Revenue 
reserve – 

Fair value 
reserve of 
financial 

assets 
designated at 

FVTOCI

Total reservesShare Capital

Reserve 
created 
under 

Scheme of 
Arrangement

Share 
premium

Other capital 
reserve

accumulated  
profits / 
(losses)

Surplus on 
revaluation of 

property, plant 
and equipment

Total equity

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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2022 2021

Rupees

            

Note

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

*No non-cash item is included in investing and financing activities

(137,097,578) (122,331,194)

(39,252,365) (1,158,215,437)

(817,925,290) 513,890,289

283,215,149 155,669,864

(930,303,135) (1,085,972,999)

46 (647,087,986) (930,303,135)

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Long-term loans – net

Short-term financings – net

- 801,846,000

- (64,484,030)

(556,814,232) 1,127,280,639

Lease liabilities repaid 23.1 (84,761,115) (70,205,689)

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares

Share issuance costs

Long-term financings – net

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

86,474,288 (86,296,709)

5.1.2 250,020,167 254,267,804

7.4 69,110,404 66,938,503

6.1 15,635,790 22,557,366

38 4,025,029 (4,814,014)

40 311,535,697 389,542,836

41 (44,636,606) (39,300)

41 (5,950,600) (10,472,666)

(30,040,000) 30,040,000
40 15,422,317 (3,173,759)

587,764,389 744,846,770

674,238,677 658,550,061

(144,402,616) (259,608,692)

299,996,077 (96,080,017)

28,694,561 44,810,550

(1,840,943) 29,082,619

(64,419,287) (162,811,212)

(11,551,236) 11,732,009

578,165,012 (421,890,685)

684,641,568 (854,765,428)

(233,298,713) 354,755,761

190,330,773 176,649,930

52,514,145 (1,287,059)

9,546,205 530,118,632

1,368,426,450 333,903,265

(320,045,485) (413,001,954)

32 (33,441,300) (44,045,779)

(353,486,785) (457,047,733)

1,014,939,665 (123,144,468)

5.1 (76,174,886) (110,161,786)

5.2 (23,466,625) (83,426,500)

6.3 (25,205,354) (15,440,133)

222,818,617 334,965

(265,899) 464,185

(11,505,079) (26,846,688)

86,200,774 (235,075,957)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

11.1 2,642,191 -Reversal of deferred tax asset on surplus of revaluation of PPE

Amortisation of government grant

Share based payment

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Allowance / (Reversals) for expected credit loss (ECL)

Finance costs

Depreciation on ROUA

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation on operating fixed assets

Amortisation 

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  – net

Exchange loss / (gain) - net

Operating profit before working capital changes

Due from related parties

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts 

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments

Other receivables

Interest accrued 

Trade and other payables 

Due to related parties

Advance monitoring fees

Cash flows from operations

Payments for:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES*

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Finance costs

Income taxes

Purchase of - property, plant and equipment

                    - capital work-in-progress

                    - intangible assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Long-term loans

Long-term deposits
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities
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Rupees

Property, plant and equipment              3,060,660 
Intangible assets           940,064,721 
Right-of-use assets                4,368,331 
Long-term deposits                  140,000 
Trade debts            26,436,830 
Cash and bank balances               7,692,902 

          981,763,444 

Assets:

1.2 During the year, in the meeting held on September 18, 2021 the Board approved the demerger of 
the mapping segment of the business from the Company by creating a separate entity in 
Pakistan and transferring the net assets to the same, consequent to which a new entity as a 
subsidiary of the Company by the name of "Astra Location Services (Private) Limited" was 
incorporated subsequent to year end on July 05, 2022 under section 16 of the Companies Act, 
2017. Moreover, the Board has also authorized the management to incorporate a foreign entity in 
a suitable jurisdiction for investments in the mapping business.

1.1 TPL Vehicle Tracking (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on December 
27, 2016 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now 
Companies Act, 2017). Effective from November 30, 2017, the name of the Company was changed 
to TPL Trakker (Private) Limited. The Company was later converted into a public company on 
January 17, 2018 and accordingly, the name was changed to TPL Trakker Limited. On August 10, 
2020, the Company got listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is subsidiary of 
TPL Corp Limited and TPL Holdings (Private) Limited is the ultimate parent company. 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

 The registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 1, Sector # 24, near Shan Chowrangi, 
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. The principal activities of the Company include installation and 
sale of tracking devices, vehicle tracking, fleet management, digital mapping & location based 
services.

 The Company has identified the following Net Assets as at June 30, 2022 to be transferred to the 
new entity;

          

Long-term financing               9,769,207 
Trade and other payables              51,919,876 
Accrued mark-up          245,708,976 
Current portion of non-current liabilities            22,888,320 
Due to related parties           527,566,321 

         857,852,700 

           123,910,744 

Liabilities:

Net Assets
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 Corporate office, Karachi Plot No. 1, Sector #24, near Shan Chowrangi, Korangi Industrial 
Area, Karachi – 74900

 Regional offices:

 Islamabad office II Workpad Building, Plot 67, Street 35, I&T Center, Sector G-10/1, 
Islamabad.

1.3 The geographical location and addresses of business units are as under:

 Location Address

 Lahore office Tower 75, 4th Floor, L Block, Gulberg III, Kalma Chowk, Main Ferozpur 
Road, Lahore

 Islamabad office I 10th floor (South) ISE Towers, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, 
Islamabad.

 Faisalabad office Office No. 2, 4th Floor, Mezan Executive Tower, Liaquat Road, 
Faisalabad.

 Multan office House No. 2, Shalimar Colony, Haider Street, Bosan Road, near 
Northern Bypass, Multan

 Hyderabad office 2nd Floor, Plot # 15/5, Railway Cooperative Housing Society, Main 
Auto Bhan Road Latifabad, Hyderabad.

1.4

Shareholding

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Ultimate Parent Company -

TPL Corp Limited Parent Company -

Trakker Middle East LLC Subsidiary Company 50%

TPL Insurance Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated Company -

TPL Properties Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

HKC (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

Common Directorship -

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

The Resource Group Pakistan Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Logistics (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Life Insurance Limited Common Directorship -

TPL E-Ventures (Private) Limited Associated Company -

TPL Mobile (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

Trakker Energy (Private) Limited Associated Company -

Trakker (Private) Limited Staff Provident Fund Retirement Benefit Fund -

Details of related parties

Name of related party Basis of relationship

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited
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2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting 
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting 
Standards (IFAS) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified 
under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the ‘historical cost’ 
convention, unless otherwise specifically stated.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 New standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements to approved accounting 
standards and the framework for financial reporting that became effective during the year

 4.1.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting 
standards that are effective.

 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 
4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments introduce a 
practical expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial 
liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an 
‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for by 
updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 
16 for lessees when accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The 
amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the regular, strict rules around 
hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly affected by the interest rate 
benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier application 
permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes 
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.

4.1.2 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022:

 - Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective 
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the 'cost of 
fulfilling a contract' for the purposes of the onerous contract assessment comprises 
the costs that relate directly to the contract, including both the incremental costs 
and an allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to 
apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations 
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the 
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative 
information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize 
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, 
at the date of initial application.

4.1.3 The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

 - IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received 
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by 
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ 
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial 
liability.
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 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) 
amendments apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been added to further 
clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect 
of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s 
right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments 
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

 (ii) clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other 
events or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be 
disclosed; and

 (i)  requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than 
their significant accounting policies;

 - The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two 
additional examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy 
disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) introduce a new definition 
for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial 

 (iii) clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, 
other events or conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial 
statements.

 - IFRS 16 – The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying 
IFRS 16 by excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by 
the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that 
might arise in lease incentives.

 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the 
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 
of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those 
amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 
2022.

 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 
16) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that 
sales proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant 
and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are 
recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity 
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. 
The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds 
from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only 
to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and 
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the 
financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall 
recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an 
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other components of 
equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 
2) – the IASB has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure 
of accounting policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy 
disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:
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 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting 
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the Company’s 
accounting policies. Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated 
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future 
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in 
any future periods affected.

 - The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the above amendments 
and improvements.

 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendment amends accounting 
treatment on loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce 
new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-
up of certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date 
for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader 
review.  

 a)  Operating fixed assets and intangible assets

 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made 
the following judgments, estimates and assumptions which are significant to these 
unconsolidated financial statements:

  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets 
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are 
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. 
Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to the 
recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized as expense in the 
profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of 
revalued assets is treated as revaluation decrease.

  The Company reviews the useful lives, methods of depreciation / amortisation and 
residual values of operating fixed assets on the reporting date. Any change in the 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
operating fixed assets and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment. 

statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also 
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by 
specifying that an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective 
set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply 
prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 
policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in 
which the company applies the amendments.

 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 
(Amendments to IAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so 
that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary 
differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a 
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease 
and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the 
associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the 
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect 
recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at 
that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

4.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
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 The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. However, in certain cases, the Company may 
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information 
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in 
full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. The 
Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with 
forward-looking information. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances 
and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and 
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual 
default in the future. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are 
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Any change might 
affect the carrying value and amount of expected credit loss charge to profit or loss.  

 e)  Recognition of tax and deferred tax

 4.3.1 Owned

 c) Stock-in-trade 

 Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
profits, together with future tax planning strategies. The management consider tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

 d) Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of certain financial assets

 The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution 
in the carrying values. Net realisable value is determined with reference to estimated 
selling price less estimated expenditure to make the sales.

 b)  Investment in subsidiaries

 The Company values its investment in subsidiaries at fair value using fair value hierarchy; 
Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets, Level 2 - valuations based on 
directly or indirectly observable market input and Level 3 - valuations based on 
unobservable market input. The determination of fair value of unquoted subsidiaries 
involves inherent subjectivity, key assumptions (such as future cash flow forecasts, 
discount and growth rates and volatility), and estimation relation to valuation inputs and 
techniques. Any change in these assumptions and estimates may have significant 
impact on the fair value of investments with corresponding impact in other 
comprehensive income.

 The provision for taxation is accounted for by the Company after taking into account the 
relevant laws and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances, where the 
Company's view differs from the view taken by the tax authorities at the assessment 
stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in 
accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities / assets. 

 Other areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions involved are disclosed in 
respective notes to these financial statements.

 Property, plant and equipment (except for leasehold land and buildings on leasehold 
land) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Leasehold land and buildings on leasehold land are stated at revalued 
amounts, which are the fair value at the date of revaluation. Subsequently, these are 
stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying the straight-
line method. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of 
addition when the asset is available for use, whereas, depreciation on disposals is 
charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.
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 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, 
and consist of expenditure incurred in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of 
their acquisition, erection, construction and installation. The assets are transferred to 
relevant category of operating fixed assets when they are available for use.

 A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset 
revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the  extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the 
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A 
revaluation deficit is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing 
surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. 

 Major renewals and improvements for assets are capitalised and the assets so replaced, 
if any, are retired. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss, as and 
when incurred.

 Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and 
adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount.

 Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued 
asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount at the reporting date. 
Accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the 
asset. 

4.4 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

 An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to unappropriated profit is made for the 
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and 
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus 
relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit. 

4.5 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets other than goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related 
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related 
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, as their useful life 
is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles, amortisation is charged 
to the profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby, the cost of intangible asset is 
written off over its useful economic life. The amortisation rate of the intangible assets are stated in 
note 6.1 to these financial statements. Full month's amortisation is charged in the month of 
addition when the asset is available for use, whereas, amortisation on disposals is charged upto 
the month in which the disposal takes place.

 Rates of depreciation which are disclosed in note 5.1 to these financial statements are 
designed to write-off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

 4.3.2 Capital work-in-progress

 4.5.1 Intangible assets under development

 Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred in respect of  intangible assets under 
development in the course of their acquisition, erection, development and installation. The 
assets are transferred to relevant category of intangible assets when they are available 
for use.

 An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or 
losses on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the 
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is charged to profit or loss.
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 The Company uses acquisition method of accounting for acquisition of assets or class of 
assets, whereby, the purchase consideration is allocated to the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed based on the fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred and included in 
administrative expenses.

  The Company acts as a lessee and applies a single recognition and measurement 
approach for all the leases except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (if 
any). The Company recognises lease liability to make lease payments and right-of-use 
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

 a) Right-of-use assets

 4.5.2 Business combinations and Goodwill

 a) the aggregate of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree and in a business combination achieved in stages, the 
acquisition date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and

 b) the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed.

 Goodwill is initially measured at the acquisition date, being the excess of:

  In case, the fair value attributable to the Company’s interest in the identifiable net assets 
exceeds the fair value of consideration, the Company recognises the resulting gain in the 
profit or loss on the acquisition date.

4.6 Leases

 The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if 
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. 

  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured subsequent to initial 
recognition, at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is tested annually or 
whenever, there is an indication of impairment. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 4.6.1 Company as a lessee

  The Company recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date 
of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are 
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, if any. The cost of ROU 
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, if 
any, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease 
incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the 
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised ROU assets are depreciated on 
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term, on the 
rates as disclosed in the note 7.1 to these financial statements. ROU assets are subject to 
impairment.

 b) Lease liabilities

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 
lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any 
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, 
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments 
also include the exercise price of a purchase option (if any) reasonably certain to be 
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease 
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the 
period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

4.7 Financial instruments

 The Company has the option, under its lease arrangements to lease the assets for 
additional term under the contract. The Company applies judgement in evaluating 
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all 
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the 
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant 
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to 
exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy). Any 
change is accounted for change in estimate and applied prospectively with 
corresponding change in ROU assets and lease liabilities.

 Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income 
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in 
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

4.7.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value 
through profit or loss.  

 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing 
them. With the exception of trade debts, the Company initially measures a financial asset 
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price determined under 
IFRS 15.

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases 
(i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement 
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets 
recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

 The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, 
together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably 
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is 
reasonably certain not to be exercised.

4.6.2 Company as a lessor

4.7.1 Financial assets 

 In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date. After the commencement date, the 
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for 
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the in-
substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the 
underlying asset.
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 - the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective 
interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

 b) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative 
gains and losses (debt instruments) 

  Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity 
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they 
meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are 
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis. 

 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell 
the asset.

  This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures 
financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the 
SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Company’s business model for 
managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to 
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following 
categories:

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

  For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange 
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss 
and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised 
cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, 
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

  Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. 
Dividends are recognised as dividend income in the profit or loss when the right of 
payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such 

 a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 - the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both 
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and 

4.7.1.2 Subsequent measurement

  The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the 
following conditions are met:

 c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative 
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 
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4.7.1.3 Derecognition

 - the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of 
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit 
or loss.  

proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such 
gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI 
are not subject to impairment assessment.

  The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments, if any, 
under this category.

 d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for 
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through 
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term.  Financial assets with cash flows that are 
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the 
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through 
OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through 
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an 
accounting mismatch.

  This category includes listed equity investments which the Company had not 
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity 
investments are also recognised as dividend income in the profit or loss when the 
right of payment has been established.

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s 
statement of financial position) when:

 - the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement� and either (a) the Company 
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the 
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset,  but has transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

 When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company 
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has 
retained. 

4.7.1.4 Impairment
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between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the 
original effective interest rate. 

 The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other 
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. For trade and other 
receivables (if any), the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. 
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a 
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has 
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, 
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic 
environment. For other assets including deposits, accrued interest and bank balances 
that are held with reputational banks and other third parties, the Company applies low 
credit risk simplifications. At each reporting date, the Company evaluates whether these 
assets are considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable 
information that is available without un-due cost or effort including their credit ratings 
assessed by reputable agencies and therefore assessed to have immaterial impact of 
allowances for ECL.

4.7.2 Financial liabilities

4.7.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.  

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

4.7.2.2 Subsequent measurement

 The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past 
due over the agreed credit terms. However, in certain cases, the Company may also 
consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates 
that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before 
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is 
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash 
flows.

 a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in 
the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the 
criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. 

 b) Loans and borrowings 

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the profit or loss.  

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below:
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4.7.2.3 Derecognition 

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss. 

4.7.2.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

4.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of 
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount.

 Investment in subsidiaries are stated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on 
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or 
observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either 
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may be impaired.

 Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 
recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill 
relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment 
loss is recognised.

4.9.1 Investments in subsidiaries

 In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. 
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 
companies or other fair value indicators.

 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

 Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

4.9 Investments in subsidiaries and associates

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
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 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 

 Current

 Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after 
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior 
years. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax 
rates under such regime.

 Deferred 

4.13 Taxation

 The Company’s investment in its associate is accounted at cost less accumulated 
impairment losses, if any, under the exemption available in relevant accounting 
standards. 

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arising 
at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.

4.9.2 Investments in associates

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in-first-out basis and net 
realisable value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
incurred thereon.

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax 
losses and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forwards of unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits can be utilised.

 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks 
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash 
and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank 
overdraft, if any.

 An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant 
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the 
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies. The considerations made in 
determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to 
determine control over subsidiaries.  

4.10 Stock-in-trade

 Spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable 
value, except items in transit, which are stated at cost. Spare parts and loose tools are charged to 
cost of goods sold on an estimated consumption pattern.

4.11 Cash and cash equivalents

4.12 Staff retirement benefits - Defined contribution plan

 The Company operates a recognised provident fund (defined contribution scheme) for its 
permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal 
monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 
percent of the basic salary. The contribution from the Company is charged to the profit or loss for 
the year.
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 The Company is in the business of sale of equipment and provides associated monitoring 
and other services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of 
the goods and services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
and services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue 
arrangements because it typically controls the goods and services before transferring 
them to the customer.

 -  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the 
goods is transferred to the customer i.e. when goods are installed.

 The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are 
separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be 
allocated (e.g., right of returns, volume rebates). In determining the transaction price for 
the sale of goods and rendering of services, the Company considers the effects of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash 
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

4.16.2 Other revenues

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax 
authority.

4.16 Revenue recognition

4.16.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

 Payments made under ijarah arrangements / agreements are charged to the profit or loss on a 
straight line basis over the ijarah term.

 -   Revenue from rendering of monitoring services is recognised over the time i.e. as and 
when services are rendered, revenue from rendering of other associated services are 
recognised at the point in time when services are rendered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or 
credited to the  profit or loss.

4.15 Ijarah arrangements

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at 
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 -  For maps navigation business, revenue from sale of goods and rendering of map 
navigation services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods 
and services are transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of goods and 
rendering of services for installation of goods.

 a) Rental income from equipment is recognised on accrual basis. 

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in the other comprehensive income is 
recognised in the other comprehensive income and not in profit or loss.

 b) Income on bank accounts are recognised using effective interest rate.

4.14 Provisions

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as 
a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and accordingly adjusted to reflect current 
best estimates.
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 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (i.e. a single segment at the Company level). Segment results, 
assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment capital 
expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets. 

4.22 Employees share option plan

 Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

4.20 Government grant

4.18 Borrowing costs

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rate ruling at the 
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.21 Segment reporting

4.17 Foreign currency translation

 Government grant is recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant related to an expense 
item, it is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that 
the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to 
an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related 
asset.

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period, in 
which these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before 
the financial statements are authorised for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to these financial 
statements.

 c) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established 
and other income, if any is recognised on accrual basis. 

4.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

 Eligible employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, 
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled 
transactions). The cost of share option transactions is determined using intrinsic value method. 
That cost is recognised in salaries and benefits expense, together with a corresponding increase 
in equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the service and, where applicable, the 
performance conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for 
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss for the 
year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of 
that year. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share.
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2022 2021

Rupees

            

Note

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

5.1 551,014,458 956,556,642

5.2 185,158,264 161,691,639

736,172,722 1,118,248,281

Operating fixed assets

Capital work-in-progress

5.1 Operating fixed assets

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

%

411,000,000 (165,000,000) - - - - - -
***(246,000,000)

16,406,766 (9,000,000) - 4,892,231 136,723 - - 5

(5,028,954) (5,028,954)

*** (2,377,812)

289,171,671 38,400,420 266,567,421 225,133,450 60,900,972 226,254,446 40,312,975 33.33

(61,004,670) (59,779,976)

5,123,665 1,600,040 6,723,705 4,390,032 368,439 4,758,471 1,965,234 20

1,109,240,926 1,664,705 1,227,842,587 699,781,111 8,931,063 793,370,801 434,471,786 20

** 214,904,960 142,559,692

* (43,573,391) ** 19,763,144

(54,394,613) *(23,531,351)

(54,132,858)

181,566,630 1,844,218 134,436,315 157,410,836 11,554,770 120,052,486 14,383,829 20

(48,974,533) (48,913,120)

44,427,620 31,969,003 69,039,623 9,260,792 4,816,878 9,281,861 59,757,762 20

(7,357,000) (4,795,809)

6,048,277         (6,048,277) - 6,048,277           (6,048,277) - - 20

8,459,977 696,500 5,089,840 7,972,161 988,486 4,966,968 122,872 33.33

(4,066,637) (3,993,679)

2,071,445,532          76,174,886       1,709,699,491        1,114,888,890         230,257,023       1,158,685,033          551,014,458 

   (360,874,684)       (182,692,673)
 *        (43,573,391)  *           (23,531,351)

 **       214,904,960  **             19,763,144 
 ***      (248,377,812)

* Represents transfer from owned assets to stock-in-trade

** Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets

*** Represents revaluation loss booked during the year

As at July 01,
 2021

Additions / 
(disposals) / 

transfers

As at June 30, 
2022

As at July 01,
 2021

Charge for 
the year / 

(disposals) / 
transfers

As at June 30, 
2022

As at June 30, 
2022

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Depreciation 
Rate

Construction of shed

Mobile phones

June 30, 2022

-------- --------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------Owned

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land 

Computers and accessories 

Generators

Electrical devices 

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles
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WRITTEN

DOWN

Depreciation 

Rate

%

411,000,000 - 411,000,000 - - - 411,000,000 -

16,406,766 - 16,406,766 4,071,893 820,338 4,892,231 11,514,535 5

189,421,226 101,475,312 289,171,671 146,968,807 79,804,665 225,133,450 64,038,221 33.33

(331,000) (246,155)

** (1,393,867) ** (1,393,867)

4,423,665                   700,000 5,123,665 4,363,265 26,767 4,390,032 733,633 20

1,048,008,449 2,360,675 1,109,240,926 579,187,949 147,106,704 699,781,111 409,459,815 20

 * 117,678,857  *** (26,513,542)

*** (58,807,055)

177,223,156 4,380,141 181,566,630 140,647,078 16,800,424 157,410,836 24,155,794 20

** (36,667)  ** (36,666)

9,863,338  **                    (41,500) 44,427,620 1,424,171 2,566,548 9,260,792 35,166,828 20

 ****              34,605,782 

 ** (41,500)

**** 5,311,573

6,048,277                              -   6,048,277 6,048,277                              -   6,048,277 - 20

11,137,197 * 1,245,658 8,459,977 9,853,434 1,830,785 7,972,161 487,816 33.33

(857,230) (646,410)

** (3,065,648)  ** (3,065,648)

1,873,532,074                110,161,786          2,071,445,532           892,564,874             248,956,231           1,114,888,890           956,556,642 

               (1,188,230)                (892,565)

 *              117,678,857  **               (4,537,681)

**             (4,537,682)            (26,513,542)

***          (58,807,055)

***

                  5,311,573 

****             34,605,782 
****

* Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets

** Represents assets written off during the year

*** Represents transfer from owned assets to stock-in-trade

**** Represents assets transferred from ijarah lease

Generators

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles

Construction of shed

Mobile phones

June 30, 2021

Electrical devices 

the year / 

(disposals) / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

As at June 30, 

2021

 -------------------------------------------------------------(Rupe es) ------------------------------------------------------------

As at July 01, 

2020

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land 

Computers and accessories 

Owned

As at July 01, 

2020

Additions / 

(disposals) / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

VALUE

Charge for 

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
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2022 2021

Rupees

            

Note

5.1.2

36 210,041,942 213,610,381

37 6,775,547 6,890,658

38 11,845,374 12,057,415

39 21,357,304 21,709,350

250,020,167 254,267,804

Research and development

Depreciation charge for the year has been 

Cost of sales and services

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

5.1.1 Computers and accessories and vehicles includes assets costing Nil (2021: Rs. 4.443 
million) and Nil (2021: Rs. 1.972 million) respectively purchased on maturity of ijarah 
agreements. 

5.1.3 During the year, the Company has transferred tracking devices from stock-in-trade at a 
cost of Rs. 214.904 million (2021: Rs. 117.679 million) to owned assets. As of the reporting 
date, assets costing Rs. 1.041 billion (2021: Rs. 951.208 million) are in possession of third 
parties, on rental basis. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to 
several numbers of parties involved.

5.1.4 Included in operating fixed assets are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs. 421.938 
million (2021: Rs. 542.001 million).

5.1.6 The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

5.1.5 During the year, the Company has written off fully depreciated assets costing Rs. 1.795 
million (2021: Rs. 4.538 million).

Leasehold land 165,000,000 - 165,000,000 203,879,310 38,879,310

Building on leasehold land 9,000,000 - 9,000,000 11,120,690 2,120,690

174,000,000 - 174,000,000 215,000,000 41,000,000

Computers and accessories 61,004,670 59,779,976 1,224,694 454,211 (770,483)  Various  Various  Karachi 

Electrical devices 54,394,613 54,132,858 261,755 155,000 (106,755)

Vehicles 7,357,000 4,795,809 2,561,191 7,084,741 4,523,550

Construction of shed 6,048,277 6,048,277 - - -

Furniture and fittings 48,974,533 48,913,120 61,413 - (61,413)  Various  Various  Karachi 

Mobile phones 4,066,637 3,993,679 72,958 124,665 51,707  Various  Various  Karachi 

181,845,730 177,663,719 4,182,011 7,818,617 3,636,606

2022 355,845,730 177,663,719 178,182,011 222,818,617 44,636,606

2021 1,188,230 892,565 295,665 334,965 39,300

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------

Aggregate amount of 

assets disposed off having 

WDV more than Rs. 

Aggregate amount of 

assets disposed off not 

having WDV more than Rs. 

5,000,000 each

Mr. M. Rafay Razzaq
Mr. A.Wasey Razzaq
Mr. Muhaymin Akram
Mr. Moiz Akram

KarachiNegotiation

Owned

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------

Original /   
revalued cost

Mode of 
disposal

Particulars of 
buyers

LocationWritten 
down value

Accumulated  
depreciation

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / (loss) 
on disposals

Original /   
revalued cost

Mode of 
disposal

Particulars of 
buyers

LocationWritten 
down value

Accumulated  
depreciation

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / (loss) 
on disposals
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance 161,691,639 78,265,139

Additions during the year 23,466,625 83,426,500

Closing balance 5.2.1 185,158,264 161,691,639

5.2.1 Represents expenditure in respect of leasehold improvements and renovation of office premises.

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Amortisation 

rate

%

Owned

Goodwill - note 6.2 403,380,571 - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 

intangible assets - note 6.2 453,635,249 - 453,635,249 - - - 453,635,249 -

Marketing related 

intangible assets - note 6.2 289,021,582 - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 

computer softwares 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares 327,552,022 - 327,552,022 314,208,091 8,110,606 322,318,697 5,233,325 20-33.33

PTA license 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 - 6.67

Decarta maps 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 - 20

Maps database           147,858,790 - 147,858,790 90,827,990 7,525,184              98,353,174 49,505,616 5

1,671,173,409 - 1,671,173,409 454,761,276 15,635,790 470,397,066 1,200,776,343

------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------ 

2022

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION COST

As at July 01, 

2021

Additions / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2022

As at July 01, 

2021

Charge for the year 

/ transfers

As at June 30, 

2022

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

6.

6.1 1,200,776,343 1,216,412,133

6.3 940,064,721 914,859,367

2,140,841,064 2,131,271,500

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets

Intangible assets under development

As at June 30, 

2022
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Owned

Goodwill - note 6.2 403,380,571 - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 

intangible assets - note 6.2 453,635,249 - 453,635,249 - - - 453,635,249 -

Marketing related 

intangible assets - note 6.2 289,021,582 - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 

computer softwares 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares 324,352,222 3,199,800 327,552,022 299,175,909 15,032,182 314,208,091 13,343,931 20-33.33

PTA license                1,000,500 - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500

- 6.67

Decarta maps            22,884,695 - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695

- - 20

Maps database           147,858,790 - 147,858,790 83,302,806 7,525,184 90,827,990 57,030,800 5

1,667,973,609 3,199,800 1,671,173,409 432,203,910 22,557,366 454,761,276 1,216,412,1332021

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Amortisation 

rate

%------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------ 

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION COST

As at July 01, 

2020

Additions / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

As at July 01, 

2020

Charge for the year 

/ transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

As at June 30, 

2021

 Goodwill acquired through business combinations and intangibles with indefinite useful lives 
have been allocated and monitored at the Company level (tracking business - excluding non-
operating assets). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives include customer and marketing 
related intangibles assets. The Company has performed its annual impairment test as at June 30, 
2022. The recoverable amount of the Company is determined based on using cash flow 
projections from financial budgets approved by the senior management covering a five year 
period. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 15.7 percent (2021: 16.9 percent). The 
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 5.8 percent (2021: 
5.6 percent). As a result of this assessment, the management did not identify any impairment for 
the cash generating unit to which these assets are allocated.

6.2 Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

 - Key business assumptions

 Discount rates

 Key business assumptions

 These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates and management assess how 
the unit’s position might change over the projected period. Management expects revenues and 
margins to improve on the basis of multiple strategies planned including increase in vehicle 
tracking sales volume and greater focus on container tracking business.

 The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the 
business and is calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate reflects the 
Weighted Average Cost of Capital of the Company.

 Key assumptions used in discounted cashflow calculations

 The calculation of discounted cashflow is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

 - Discount rates
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 Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably possible 
change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to 
materially exceed its recoverable amount.

 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

6.2.1 The Company has also determined the recoverable amount based on fair value less cost 
to sell considering the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 
input of the fair value hierarchy - quoted prices of the Company, and its book value, 
among other factors. As a result of this analysis also, the management did not identify 
any impairment for the cash generating unit to which goodwill and intangible asset with 
indefinite useful lives are allocated.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

6.3 Intangible assets under development

Opening balance 914,859,367 902,619,034

Additions during the year 25,205,354 12,240,333

Closing balance 6.3.1 & 6.3.2 940,064,721 914,859,367

6.3.1 Represents expenditure incurred for development of map database including business 
intelligence and applications solutions, etc. which is expected to be completed earliest by 
the first quarter of the fiscal year 2023. The Company has estimated that the total cost 
required to complete the development of these intangible assets aggregates to Rs. 1,620 
million, out of which Rs. 940.064 million has been incurred by the Company as of the 
reporting date. 

 Key assumptions used in discounted cashflow calculations

 The calculation of discounted cashflow is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

 - Discount rates

 - Key business assumptions

 Discount rates

 The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the 
business and is calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate reflects the 
target Weighted Average Cost of Capital of the Company.  

 Key business assumptions

 These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates, management assess how the 
technology might change over the projected period. Management expects revenues and 
margins to improve on the basis of multiple strategies planned including, greater focus on 
development of new databases, applications and solutions, and expected increase in navigation 
business.

6.3.2 The management has carried out an annual impairment assessment for intangible 
assets under development based on the discounted cashflow calculations. The discount 
rate applied to the cashflow projections is 15.7 percent (2021: 16.9 percent) and the growth 
rate used to extrapolate the cashflows beyond the five year period is 5.8 percent (2021: 5.6 
percent). As a result of this assessment, the management did not identify any impairment 
in the carrying value of intangible assets under development as of the reporting date. 
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6.4 Amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales and services 36 13,135,627 18,950,443

Distribution expenses 37 423,730 611,305

Administrative expenses 38 2,076,433 2,995,618

15,635,790 22,557,366

7.1 Net carrying value basis - 2022

Opening net book value - July 01, 2021

Additions during the year

Closing net book value - June 30, 2022

Net carrying value basis - 2021

Opening net book value July 01, 2020

Additions during the year

Closing net book value - June 30, 2021

Less: Depreciation charge for the year 

Less: Depreciation charge for the year

 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

 Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably possible 
change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to 
materially exceed its recoverable amount.

6.3.3 The Company has also determined the recoverable amount based on fair value less cost 
to sell considering the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 
input of the fair value hierarchy - quoted prices of the Company, and its book value, 
among other factors. As a result of this analysis also, the management did not identify 
any impairment for the cash generating unit to which goodwill and intangible asset with 
indefinite useful lives are allocated.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

6.5 Included in intangible assets are fully amortized assets having cost of Rs. 355.581 million (2021: Rs. 
343.163 million).

 The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year is as 
follows:

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Vehicles

Computers 
and 

accessories

Regional 

offices Total

397,690 16,819,589             90,756,916 107,974,195

                         -                             -   79,727,647 79,727,647

(397,690)         (16,819,589) (51,893,124) (69,110,403)

- - 118,591,439 118,591,439

1,590,762 42,048,972            28,629,444 72,269,178

                         -                             -   102,643,520 102,643,520

(1,193,072)       (25,229,383) (40,516,048) (66,938,503)

397,690 16,819,589 90,756,916 107,974,195

----------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

7.2 Gross carrying value basis - 2022

400,378,950 320,651,303

(281,787,511) (212,677,108)

Net book value 118,591,439 107,974,195

Cost

  Less: Accumulated depreciation

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

7.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales and services 36 58,059,650 56,235,035

Distribution expenses 37 1,872,892 1,814,034

Administrative expenses 38 9,177,862 8,889,434

69,110,404 66,938,503
8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Designated at FVTOCI

Investment in a subsidiary company 

Trakker Middle East LLC (TME) 194,552,732 194,552,732

8.4 Investment in subsidiary company has been made in accordance with the requirement of 
Companies Act, 2017.

 M.M.R International FZE P.O.Box 7073, Umm Al Quwain, UAE.

 Name Addresses

8.3 The name of the General Manager is Tanzil Tahir and name/addresses of beneficial owners is as 
follows:

8.2 TME is a limited liability company registered in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The registered 
office of the Company is at Dubai, United Arab Emirates. The principal activities of TME are selling, 
marketing and distribution of products and services in the field of wireless, fleet management, 
tracking and telemetry services. 

8.1 The Company has calculated the fair value of its investment based on discounted cash flow 
calculations and, the discount rate applied to cashflow projections is 11.8 percent and the growth 
rate used to extrapolate the cashflows beyond the five-year period is 1.70 percent. The Company 
holds 50% (2021 : 50%) of share in subsidiary.
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9.

Executives 122,076 482,270

Employees 2,738,896 1,000,554

2,860,972 1,482,824

Less: Current portion of long-term loans (2,389,360) (1,277,111)

471,612 205,713

9.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of 
  loans to executives

Opening balance 482,270 1,601,108

Disbursements - -

Less: Repayments (360,194) (1,118,838)

Closing balance 122,076 482,270

9.2 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of 
  loans to employee

Opening balance 1,000,554 1,162,375

Disbursements 3,080,000 562,000

Less: Repayments (1,341,658) (723,821)

Closing balance 2,738,896 1,000,554

9.1 & 9.3

14

9.2 & 9.3

LONG-TERM LOANS 
(secured, considered good)

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

9.4 The loans are provided to employees of the Company for the purchase of furniture and fixtures, 
renovation of house and marriage of self / children in accordance with the terms of employment 
and carrying mark up at the rate of 5 percent (2021: 5 percent) per annum. Further, it also 
includes loans provided on interest free basis amounting to Rs. 0.936 million (2021: Rs. 0.680 
million). All loans are repayable over a period of two years in equal monthly instalments and are 
secured against salaries and provident fund balances of the employees. The management of the 
Company has not discounted these loans to their present value, as they consider the impact is 
immaterial to these financial statements taken as whole.

9.3 The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the executives & employees  at the end of 
any month during the year were Rs. 0.421 million & Rs 3.968 respectively (2021: Rs. 1.375 million & Rs 
1.664 million respectively).

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

10. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits - leased and ijarah assets - 10,120,921

Less: Current portion of security deposits - (10,120,921)

- -

Utilities 177,450 177,450

Rent deposits 5,227,756 4,377,756

Cash margin against guarantees 32,294,741 21,639,662

37,699,947 26,194,86810.2

15

10.1
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10.1 Represents cash margin on guarantee issued by various commercial banks on behalf of the 
Company.

10.2 These are non-interest bearing, generally on a term of more than a year and are neither past due 
nor impaired.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - net

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:

Accelerated tax depreciation on:

Property, plant and equipment 51,990,846 42,138,071

Right-of-use assets (34,391,517) (31,312,517)

Intangible assets (15,564,979) (7,698,468)

Long-term investments (31,761,462) (31,761,462)

(29,727,112) (28,634,376)

Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:

Trade debts 6,961,980 5,794,722

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 2,642,191

Lease liabilities 40,580,880 37,571,694

Share based payments - 8,711,600

Tax losses 180,381,852 32,890,540

Minimum tax - 696,672

227,924,712 88,307,419

198,197,600 59,673,043

11.1 The movement in deferred tax assets is as follows:

Charged to other comprehensive income - ` (31,761,462)

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of incremental 
  depreciation for the year - 200,366

Settlement of surplus on revaluation of PPE on disposal (2,642,191) -

Charged to profit or loss 141,166,748 27,469,391

138,524,557 (4,091,705)

11.2 As of reporting date, the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Nil (2021: Rs. 79.621 
million) on losses of Nil (2021: Rs. 274.556 million) in line with accounting policies of the Company 
as stated in note 4.13 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

12. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Tracking devices 270,175,955 371,468,433

Spare parts 99,808,813 48,976,640

369,984,768 420,445,073

13. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Related parties 

TPL Insurance Limited 19,256,007 4,363,523

Others than related parties 824,496,744 1,139,385,305

843,752,751 1,143,748,828

Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (24,006,829) (19,981,800)

819,745,922 1,123,767,028

13.5

13.2

13.3 & 13.4

12.1

12.2

13.1

12.1 Includes stock of Rs. 3.361 million (2021: Rs. 15.737 million) held with third parties.

12.2 Represents bonnet locks, window motors etc. which are held for sale.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

13.1 The credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using provision matrix at year end is as 
follows:

2022

Expected credit loss rate 2.85% 11.81%

Estimated total gross 

carrying amount at default 843,752,751 61,855,180 62,281,869

Expected credit loss 24,006,829 6,102,402 7,353,220

2021

Expected credit loss rate 1.75% 0.34% 7.45% 8.80%

Estimated total gross 

carrying amount at default 1,143,748,828        611,639,932 91,171,964 108,339,741

Expected credit loss 19,981,800            2,083,218 6,788,724 9,535,596

0.47%

        332,597,191 

           1,574,262 

180 days 

and above

--- ---------------------(Rupees) -------------------------

          3,926,260 

9.87%1.30%

Current

Days past due

1.59%

       303,108,337       416,507,365 

Total

         6,624,947 

> 121 days upto 

180 days

> 30 days 

upto 120 days

13.2 Represent amount receivable from various customers on account of sale and installation of 
tracking devices and vehicle tracking services provided by the Company. These are unsecured, 
interest free and generally on 30 to 60 days terms.
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> 30 days 

upto 120 days

TPL Insurance Limited - 2022 19,256,007 2,127,471 1,025,420

TPL Insurance Limited - 2021 4,363,523 1,501,841 1,474,687 237,729

TPL Insurance Limited 19,256,007 4,363,523

13.5 Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 19,981,800 24,795,814
Less: Charge / (reversal) during the year 38 4,025,029 (4,814,014)
Closing balance 24,006,829 19,981,800

2,065,430

Total Current 180 days 

and above

Past due but not impaired

> 121 days upto 

180 days

1,149,266

14,037,686

13.3 The ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts due from related parties is as follows:

------------------------(Rupees) -------------------------

13.4 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month 
end balances are as follows:

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

14. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans – secured, considered good
Current portion of long-term loans 9

Advances – unsecured, considered good
suppliers
others

14.1

14.1 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.

15. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits
Security deposits
LC margin
Current portion of leased and ijarah deposits
Others

15.1

Prepayments
Insurance
Maintenance
Others

2,389,360 1,277,111

31,939,996 61,562,102
- 184,704

31,939,996 61,746,806
34,329,356 63,023,917

7,214,720 1,967,720
377,546 3,772,346

2,286,826 10,120,921
711,516 711,516

10,590,608 16,572,503

3,210,595 6,872,493
7,894,553 4,808,824
12,557,514 4,158,507

23,662,662 15,839,824
34,253,270 32,412,327

15.1 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

                              

                                

                                      

                

18. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

(unsecured, considered good)

   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH] 18.1 699,627,685 697,831,944

   Parent company

   -  TPL Corp Limited [TPLC] 18.2 - 597,793,456

   Subsidiary company

   -  Trakker Middle East LLC [TME] 18.2 141,323,900 132,185,451

16.

(unsecured, considered good)

Mark-up accrued on due from related parties

On current account:

   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH] 225,097,934

            

139,088,282

             
   Parent company

   -  TPL Corp Limited [TPLC] 64,304,940

              

106,632,497

             

   Subsidiary company

   -  Trakker Middle East LLC [TME] 33,651,177

                 

19,804,055

               

Associates

   -  TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS] 4,326,421

                  

4,326,421

                  

   -  TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD] 1,291,055

                   

1,186,702

                   

   -  TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG] 8,460,845

                

7,309,315

                  

   -  TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech] 16,139,391

                 

10,861,518

                 

   -  TPL Properties Limited [TPLP] 2,403,370

                 

2,047,056

                 

355,675,133 291,255,846

17. OTHER RECEIVABLES

(unsecured, considered good)

Earnest money 23,069,505 11,444,235

Insurance claims 4,955,995 5,030,029

Others 17.1 1,133,269 1,133,269

                 29,158,769 17,607,533

INTEREST ACCRUED 

17.1 These are non-interest bearing receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, and 
generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

Associates

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP] 18.2 - 7,420,642

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life] 18.2 21,233,637 5,118,741

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD] 18.2 850,070 850,070

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG] 18.2 9,380,446 9,380,446

TPL Tech Pakistan Limited [TPL Tech] 18.2 42,993,993 42,993,993

915,409,731 1,493,574,743

   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH]              699,627,685               697,831,944 

   Parent company

   -  TPL Corp Limited [TPLC]               955,103,622              827,542,334 

   Subsidiary company

   -  Trakker Middle East LLC [TME]                141,323,900                133,505,613 

Associates

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]                34,085,250                    7,821,947 

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life]                  21,233,637                  6,232,538 

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited  [TPLD]                      850,070                     850,070 

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG]TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG]                  9,380,446                  9,380,446 

TPL Tech Pakistan Limited [TPL Tech]                42,993,993                42,993,993 

18.1 Represents current account balance carrying mark-up at the fixed rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 
3 percent (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) and is repayable on demand.

18.2 Represents current account balances with related parties carrying mark-up at the variable rate 
of 3 months to 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent (2021: 3 months to 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) 
per annum and are repayable on demand.

18.3 These are neither past due nor impaired.

18.4 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month 
end balances are as follows:

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 154,340 359,746

At banks in local currency:

current accounts 12,050,422 13,335,255

saving accounts 19.1 107,809,310 118,508,981

119,859,732 131,844,236

120,014,072 132,203,982

19.1 These carry mark-up at the rate of 2.95 percent to 6.96 percent (2021: 2.95 percent to 7.65 
percent) per annum.

20. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
                                10 opening balance 668,205,100 100
               66,820,500 issued during the year - 668,205,000
                 66,820,510 668,205,100 668,205,100
                  68,680,171 issued as other than cash 686,801,710 686,801,710
                  51,762,412 issued as bonus shares 517,624,120 517,624,120
               187,263,093 1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930

20.1

21. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance:

Leasehold land               271,024,056 274,630,291

Building on leasehold land                  13,898,709 13,898,709

              284,922,765 288,529,000

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation recognised / 

(reversed on disposal) during the year:

Leasehold land             (271,024,056) -

Building on leasehold land               (13,898,709) -

           (284,922,765) -

Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of

   incremental depreciation charged for the year                                -   (690,918)

Deferred tax:

On account of surplus on revaluation of

building on leasehold land - net - (3,115,683)

Impact of deferred tax on incremental

depreciation charged for the year - 200,366

- (2,915,317)

-              284,922,765 

2022
Number of shares

                      -   

         68,680,171 
       66,820,510 

         51,762,412 
187,263,093

These are ordinary shares carry one vote per share and right to dividend.

       66,820,510 
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

22. LONG-TERM FINANCING – secured

Sukuk financing I 22.1 - 350,000,000

Sukuk financing II 22.2             1,027,032,974 1,231,467,442

Diminishing musharaka I 22.3                   27,912,021 43,263,634

Diminishing musharaka II 22.4                  10,472,867 -

Diminishing musharaka III 22.5                   2,498,982 -

            1,067,916,844             1,624,731,076 

             (298,615,142) (575,080,546)

769,301,702 1,049,650,530

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 30

22.4 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of vehicle aggregating to Rs 
11.484 million from Islamic Financial Institution for a period of 5 years and carries mark-up at the 
rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be purchased by 
November 2026. The facility is secured by post-dated cheques of all instalments and corporate 
guarantee of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company).

22.3 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of computer servers and 
related accessories aggregating to Rs 58.615 million from an Islamic bank for a period of 5 years 
[2021: 5 years (after deferment of 1 year)] and carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 2 
percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be purchased by January 2024. The facility is 
secured by exclusive charge over the diminishing musharaka assets, first charge over all present 
and future current and fixed assets of the Company and corporate guarantee of TPL Corp Limited 
(the parent company).

22.1 Represents Sukuk certificates issued of Rs. 600 million divided into 600 certificates of Rs.1 million 
each for a period of 5 years under an agreement dated April 08, 2016 to be read with amendment 
agreement for Green Shoe Option dated May 08, 2016 and second supplemental agreement 
dated June 30, 2020. The said certificates got redeemed completely on 13th April 2022. The rate 
for rental payment was 1 year KIBOR plus 3 percent (2021: 1 year KIBOR plus 3 percent). These 
certificates were secured against ordinary shares of TPL Properties Limited (inclusive of 35% 
margin) owned by TPL Corp Limited (the parent company), charge by way of hypothecation of Rs. 
750 million (inclusive of 20% margin) over the hypothecated assets in favour of the trustee and a 
ranking charge ranking subordinate and subservient to the charge in favour of the existing 
creditors.

22.5 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of vehicles aggregating to Rs 
3.133 million from Islamic Financial Institution for a period of 3 years and carries mark-up at the 
rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be purchased by 
November 2024. The facility is secured by post-dated cheques of all instalments and corporate 
guarantee of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company).

22.2 Represents Sukuk certificates issued of Rs. 1,250 million divided into 1,250 certificates of Rs 1 million 
each for a period of 5 years under an agreement dated December 22, 2020.The said certificates 
are redeemable in periodic instalments by March 2026 and the rate for rental payment is 3 
months KIBOR plus 3% per annum. These certificates are secured against first pari passu charge 
of Rs. 70 million on present and future moveable fixed assets of the Company inclusive of 25% 
margin, first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 340 million on present and future current 
assets of the Company inclusive of 25% margin; and first pari passu charge of upto Rs.1,500 
million on present and future long-term investments of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company) 
inclusive of 25% margin and first charge over lien and set off against facility payment and facility 
service reserve accounts to the extent of Rs. 1,855 million. 
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

22.6 The movement in long-term financings is as follows:

Opening balance 1,624,731,076 497,450,437

Financings obtained during the year 14,398,700 1,231,467,442

Unwinding of transaction cost 3,898,864 -

Financings repaid during the year (575,111,796) (104,186,803)

Closing balance 1,067,916,844 1,624,731,076

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

Current maturity of lease liabilities 30                 50,088,139                 47,668,312 

Non current maturity of lease liabilities                89,833,930                 81,889,252 

23.1               139,922,069               129,557,564 

23.1 Reconciliation of total lease liabilities:

Opening balance 129,557,564 83,101,871

Additions for the year 79,727,647 102,643,520

Interest expense for the year 15,397,973 14,017,862

Payments made during the year (84,761,115) (70,205,689)

Closing balance 139,922,069 129,557,564

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of leases: 

7.4 69,110,403 66,938,503

Interest expense on lease liabilities 15,397,973 14,017,862

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 84,508,376 80,956,365

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 

23.3 The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 84.761 million (2021: Rs. 70.206 million) as of 
reporting date. The Company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities of Rs. 79.727 million (2021: Rs. 102.644 million). The Company do not have any future 
cashflows relating to leases other than as disclosed in these financial statements.

23.2 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 43.1 to these financial statements.
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24. LONG-TERM LOANS

Term finance I 24.1 - 25,000,002

Term finance V 24.2 - 28,777,780

Term finance VI 24.3 23,856,264 69,416,504

Term finance VII 24.4 31,904,439 69,663,995

55,760,703 192,858,281

30 (55,760,703) (124,490,426)

- 68,367,855

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities

24.2 The term finance facility of Rs. 37 million for a period of five years from a commercial bank 
through an agreement dated April 29, 2020. The loan was repayable in 18 equal quarterly 
instalments of Rs. 2.05 million each and carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.50 
percent per annum which had been fully settled during the year. The facility was secured against 
first parri passu equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 385 million over land and building of the 
Company and personal guarantees of directors / sponsors of the Company.

24.3 The Company and the parent company (TPL Corp Limited) has obtained long-term financing 
from a commercial bank of Rs. 150 million under Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages & 
Salaries by State Bank of Pakistan. Out of total facility limit, Rs. 96.7 million was availed by the 
Company and Rs. 51.7 million was availed by the parent company. It carries a flat mark-up at the 
rate of 3 percent per annum and is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments commencing from 
January 2021 discounted at effective rate of interest of 9.72 percent to 11.31 percent per annum. 
The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (see note 25 to these 
unconsolidated financial statements) which will be amortised to interest income over the period 
of the facility. The facility is secured against existing charge over Company's current assets, fixed 
assets and pledge of shares of TPL Insurance Limited and TPL Properties Limited.

24.1 The term finance facility of Rs. 100 million was obtained for a period of three years from a 
commercial bank through an agreement dated November 27, 2017. The said loan was to be paid 
in equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 8.3 million each from the date of disbursement. It carried 
mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.1 percent per annum. The facility was secured 
against first pari passu charge over stocks and book debts for Rs. 144 million duly insured in 
bank's favour covering all risks with 25% margin and first pari passu charge over book debts and 
receivables with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 183 million in bank's favour. During the year, the 
Company repaid the outstanding balance in full and charge on this facility was released.

24.4 The Company has obtained long-term financing from a commercial bank of Rs. 98 million under 
Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages & Salaries by State Bank of Pakistan. Out of total facility 
limit, Rs. 97.8 million was availed by the Company. It carries a flat mark-up at the rate of 3 percent 
per annum and is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments commencing from January 2021 
discounted at effective rate of interest of 10.25 percent to 10.26 percent per annum. The 
differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (see note 25 to these 
unconsolidated financial statements) which will be amortised to interest income over the period 
of the facility. The facility is secured against ranking charge over current assets of the Company 
and pledge of shares of TPL Corp Limited & TPL Properties Limited of Rs. 163.333 million with 40 
percent margin.
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24.5 The movement in long-term loans is as follows:

Opening balance 192,858,281 327,919,795

Loans obtained during the year - 81,180,490

Loans repaid during the year (137,097,578) (216,242,004)

Closing balance 55,760,703 192,858,281

25. GOVERNMENT GRANT

Opening balance                   6,747,703                  4,490,049 

Recognised during the year - 12,730,320

41 (5,950,600) (10,472,666)

Closing balance 797,103 6,747,703

Current portion 30 797,103 5,950,600

Non-current portion - 797,103

797,103 6,747,703

Released to profit or loss during the year

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 26.1 370,340,075 322,151,458

Accrued liabilities 173,390,354 169,547,726

Unearned equipment rentals 26.2 118,998,792 108,580,014

Book overdraft 62,159,815 413,000,000

Other liabilities

Sales commission 16,049,345 23,747,196

Sales tax payable 16,118,843 12,832,128

Withholding tax payable 246,504,164 184,914,230

Workers’ Welfare Fund 2,638,267 2,638,267

Provident fund 68,017,177 54,682,209

Others 26.3 1,661,798 1,661,798

350,989,594 280,475,828

26.4 1,075,878,630 1,293,755,026

26.1 Included herein Rs. 25.660 million (2021: Rs. 57.978 million) and Rs. 28.985 million (2021: Rs. 27.696) 
payable to TPL Properties Limited and TPL Property Management (Private) Limited (the related 
parties) respectively, on account of rental, maintenance and other services.

26.4 These are non-interest bearing and generally on a term of 1 to 6 months except for creditors 
which are on a credit term of 30 days.

26.2 Equipment rentals transferred to revenue during the year amounts to Rs. 1.462 billion (2021: Rs. 
910.296 million).

26.3 Includes stale cheques amounting to Rs. 1.647 million (2021: Rs.1.647 million).
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27. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term financings 907,744 21,256,181

Long-term loans 361,065 14,897,660

Running finance under mark-up arrangement 27,844,523 26,036,109

Short-term financings 2,822,667 3,739,838

Due to related parties 40,593,879 30,507,851

72,529,878 96,437,639

28. SHORT-TERM FINANCINGS

28.1 95,208,753 235,953,736

Payroll financing 28.2 101,492,618 -

196,701,371 235,953,736

Payable against FATR

28.3 The movement in short-term financings is as follows:

Opening balance 235,953,736 1,394,169,173

Financings obtained during the year 146,390,785 235,953,736

Financings repaid during the year (185,643,150) (1,394,169,173)

Closing balance 196,701,371 235,953,736

28.2 Represents payroll financing facilities obtained by the Company during the year against 
processing fee charges at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 2% per annum, calculated on a daily 
outstanding balance with settlement being done simultaneously along with the principal.

28.1 Represents payable against FATR (Finance against trust receipt) facility obtained by the 
Company from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of  Rs. 285 million (2021: Rs. 
325 million). It carries mark-up ranging from 3 months KIBOR plus 2 percent to 3.5 percent and is 
secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 826 million (2021: Rs.826 million) over 
all present and future stocks, book debts and fixed assets excluding land and buildings of the 
Company with cash margins ranging from nil to 15 percent. As of the reporting date, Rs. 189.791 
million (2021: Rs. 89 million) remains unutilized.

29. RUNNING FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENTS

-  personal guarantees of sponsors/directors of the company, 100% liquid security in shape 
of lien over company/related company account/ lien over term deposit account on 
account of TPL Life Insurance Limited, 100% cash collateral under lien in the form of term 
deposit receipt or depository participants account (to be marked in group companies) / 
minimum 60% cash in shape of lien over term deposit receipt or depository participants 

 These facilities are obtained from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of Rs. 
795 million (2021: Rs. 1,097.5 million) out of which Rs. 37.375 million (2021: Rs. 59.9 million) was un-
utilised as of the reporting date. The facilities carry mark-up ranging between 1 month KIBOR 
plus 2 percent and 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5 percent to 3 percent (2021: 1 month KIBOR plus 2 
percent and 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5 percent to 3 percent) per annum. These are secured by 
way of: 

-  registered hypothecation over stocks and book debts aggregating to Rs. 1,186 million 
(2021: Rs. 1,186 million) and pledge of the shares of TPL Insurance Limited, TPL Properties 
Limited and TPL Corp Limited having market value of Rs. 300 million.
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account (to be marked lien in group Associate Company i.e. TPL Life Insurance Limited) 
and maximum 40% to be placed in investor portfolio securities account of TPL Life 
Insurance Limited with 10% margin.

-  cash collateral in the form of lien over deposits held under islamic bank of Rs. 100 million 
in the name of TPL Insurance Limited and cross corporate guarantee of TPL Insurance 
Limited.

30.

Long-term financings 22                298,615,142 575,080,546

23                 50,088,139 47,668,312

Long-term loans 24                 55,760,703 124,490,426

Government grant 25                       797,103 5,950,600

              405,261,087 753,189,884

31. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES - [unsecured]

   Parent company

TPL Corp Limited [TPLC]                164,227,754 -

Associates

TPL Insurance Limited [TIL] 31.1               202,070,734 213,925,468

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS] 31.2                 23,078,649 10,497,425

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]                 25,376,529 -

              414,753,666              224,422,893 

32. TAXATION - NET

Opening balance - payable (31,014,251) (13,685,055)

42 (30,526,025) (61,374,975)

Add: Income tax paid and deducted at source 33,441,300 44,045,779

Closing balance - payable (28,098,976) (31,014,251)

Lease liabilities

Less: Provision for current and prior taxation

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

31.1 Included herein current account balance of Rs.72.929 million (2021: Rs. 61.07 million) carrying 
mark-up at the variable rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3 percent per annum and is repayable on 
demand. Further, it also includes outstanding loan of Rs. 275 million having facility limit of Rs. 300 
million (2021: Rs. 275 million) carrying mark-up at the rate of 1 year KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per 
annum and is repayable on demand.

31.2 Represent interest free current account balances with related parties, which are repayable on 
demand.
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33. ADVANCE MONITORING FEES

Opening balance 35,853,103 37,140,162

Billed during the year 514,303,971 440,750,688

Less: Transferred to revenue during the year (461,789,826) (442,037,747)

Closing balance 33.1 88,367,248 35,853,103

Date of 

institution

Party

34.2 Commitments

34.2.1 Letter of credits - 235,953,736

34.2.2 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company                32,294,741                21,639,662 

Dispute arising 

due to the non-

functionality of 

tracking device 

April 08, 

2013

Muhammad 

Aziz Khan vs 

TPL Trakker 

Limited

Recovery of Rs. 1.350 million being the 

cost of the car and Rs.1 million as 

damages

District and 

Session Court 

(East)

Dispute arising 

on the 
reimbursement 

on return of 

tracking device 

and un-utilised 
monitoring charges

April 01, 2011 Geofizyka 

Krakow 
Limited vs 
TPL Trakker 

Limited

Reimbursement of Rs.10.929 million 

being the price paid for the equipment 
in respect of returned units and un-

utilised monitoring charges

High Court of 

Sindh

Relief SoughtFactual 

Description
Court

33.1 Represents monitoring fee invoiced in advance, which is taken to revenue as per the appropriate 
monitoring period.

34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

34.1 Contingencies

34.1.2 The Company is defending various suits filed against it in various courts in Pakistan for 
sums, aggregating to Rs. 13.279 million (2021: 13.279 million), related to its business 
operations. The legal counsel is confident that these suits are expected to be decided in 
the favor of the Company and, accordingly, no provision has been made for any liability 
against these law suits in these financial statements. Details of these legal cases are 
given below:
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35. TURNOVER - net

Tracking and other digital business

Equipment installation and sales 506,492,119 393,817,267

Monitoring fees 551,838,842 528,235,108

Rentals from tracking devices 1,122,772,246 1,032,048,583

Navigation revenue 212,782,469 190,936,999

Other services 33,517,006 39,576,480

2,427,402,682 2,184,614,437

Less: Sales tax (320,934,182) (298,372,629)

35.1 2,106,468,500 1,886,241,808

36. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Cost of equipment sold

Opening stock 420,445,073 246,221,725

Purchases during the year 459,362,585 491,626,099

879,807,658 737,847,824

Less: Units transferred to operating fixed assets 

           given under rental arrangements 5.1 (214,904,960) (117,678,857)

Less: Closing stock 12 (369,984,768) (420,445,073)

294,917,930 199,723,894

Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1 331,462,467 322,480,099

Activation and connection charges 184,420,986 207,868,215

Insurance 17,374,102 10,938,552

Vehicle running and maintenance 49,210,333 42,039,440

Depreciation 5.1.2 210,041,942 213,610,381

Depreciation on ROUA 7.4 58,059,650 56,235,035

Amortisation 6.4 13,135,627 18,950,443

License renewal fee 2,831,979 2,518,857

Communication 8,587,680 5,850,435

Travelling and conveyance 26,590,187 19,458,723

Utilities 17,387,509 14,738,220

Rent, rates and taxes 6,304,874 22,599,423

Entertainment 5,336,930 6,643,437

Commission 66,461,172 83,110,034

Ijarah rentals 3,566 1,086,811

Outsourcing expenses 5,984,986 7,650,500

Postage and courier 12,930,283 17,617,516

Printing and stationery 4,451,497 299,041

Repairs and maintenance 15,806,471 13,440,857

Training 1,568,574 900,399

Computer expenses 25,678,175 7,623,915

Others 1,687,303 4,742,328

1,065,316,293 1,080,402,661

1,360,234,223 1,280,126,555

35.1 Included herein revenue recognized during the year of Rs. 165.431 million (2021: Rs. 208.10 million) 
made to related parties.

36.1 These include Rs. 10.685 million (2021: Rs. 8.342 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution).
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37. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 37.1                 66,701,391 64,893,837

Vehicle running and maintenance                 2,248,785 1,921,094

Depreciation 5.1.2                  6,775,547 6,890,658

Depreciation on ROUA 7.4                   1,872,892 1,814,034

Amortisation 6.4                     423,730 611,305

Sales promotion and publicity                 14,373,335 10,948,435

Utilities                  1,597,982 1,354,502

Rent, rates and taxes                     743,053 2,663,426

Entertainment                      609,115 758,230

Printing and stationery                    700,862 47,082

Communication                 2,060,200 1,403,530

Repairs and maintenance                   1,124,465 956,177

Insurance                  1,878,503 1,182,686

Computer expenses                 4,624,482 1,373,020

Others                      126,777 356,319

                105,861,119                 97,174,335 

38. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 38.1                184,917,514 179,906,396

Legal and professional                21,400,224 15,627,840

Depreciation 5.1.2                 11,845,374 12,057,415

Depreciation on ROUA 7.4                   9,177,862 8,889,434

Amortisation 6.4                  2,076,433 2,995,618

                4,025,029 (4,814,014)

Utilities                  7,082,738 6,003,560

Rent, rates and taxes                 2,543,928 9,118,550

Travelling and conveyance                 4,346,622 3,180,862

Repairs and maintenance                    9,715,170 8,261,188

Security services                16,990,624 18,627,518

Vehicle running and maintenance                 17,734,264 15,150,040

Computer expenses                19,908,870 5,910,994

Communication                  5,561,406 3,788,759

Late payment surcharge (net)                15,000,000 12,324,129

Training                    1,175,607 674,827

Auditors' remuneration 38.2                 4,030,000 7,400,000

Insurance                  8,090,961 5,093,984

Entertainment                 2,490,455 3,100,131

Printing and stationery                  4,142,895 278,310

Ijarah rentals                         3,566 1,086,811

Subscription                   6,617,222 1,462,000

Others                  1,047,696 2,944,652

359,924,460 319,069,004

Charge / (Reversal) of allowance for expected credit losses

37.1 These include Rs. 2.150 million (2021: Rs. 1.679 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution).
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38.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee – standalone 2,300,000 2,300,000

Audit fee – consolidation 500,000 500,000

Review fee – standalone 750,000 750,000

Code of corporate governance and other assurance services 330,000 3,700,000
Out of pocket expenses 150,000 150,000

4,030,000 7,400,000

38.1 These include Rs. 7.760 million (2021: Rs. 6.058 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution).

38.3 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017, and the conditions specified thereunder.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

39. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits               55,820,839 54,308,139

Depreciation 5.1.2                 21,357,304 21,709,350

Rent, rates and taxes                      476,612 1,708,385

               77,654,755 77,725,874

40. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:

Long-term financings               160,887,777 106,545,770

Lease liabilities                 15,409,973 14,017,862

Long-term loans                 10,503,478 42,099,560

Short-term financings                  11,238,585 59,101,063

Running finance under mark-up arrangements               100,010,092 105,243,350

Due to related parties                 10,086,027 58,504,501

Exchange Loss - net                  15,422,317 -

Bank and other charges                  3,399,765 4,030,730

             326,958,014              389,542,836 
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41. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:

Interest income on loan given to employees 93,505 89,302

Mark-up on saving accounts 7,434,159 711,400

7,527,664 800,702

Income from related parties:

Mark-up on current account 136,301,636 162,811,208

Other service income 11,182,765 10,672,983

147,484,401 173,484,191

155,012,065                174,284,893 

Income from assets other than financial assets:

Gain on disposal of property, 

plant and equipment - net 44,636,606 39,300

Amortisation of government grant 25 5,950,600 10,472,666

Exchange gain - net - 3,173,759

Others 5,039,088 3,129,469

55,626,294 16,815,194

210,638,359 191,100,087

42. TAXATION

Current (59,303,167) (65,249,589)

Prior 28,777,142 3,874,614

Deferred 11.1 141,166,748 27,469,391

110,640,723 (33,905,584)

42.2

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 86,474,288 (86,296,709)

Applicable tax rate 29% 29%

Prior year tax 28,777,142 3,874,614

Tax effect of income subject to lower tax rate 81,863,581 (37,780,198)

Taxation for the year 110,640,723 (33,905,584)

Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense 

42.1 The returns of the total income of the Company have been filed for and upto tax year 2021 which 
are considered as deemed assessments.
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Financial assets 

(designated at FVTOCI)

Long-term investments                          -                            -                          -                           -         194,552,732         194,552,732         194,552,732 

(at amortised cost)

Loans             1,687,376                 237,133           1,924,509                701,984              234,479               936,463            2,860,972 

Long-term deposits                          -                            -                          -                           -          37,699,947          37,699,947          37,699,947 

Trade debts                          -                            -                          -           843,752,751                        -           843,752,751         843,752,751 

Trade deposits                          -                            -                          -            10,590,608                        -            10,590,608          10,590,608 

Interest accrued                          -                            -                          -          355,675,133                        -          355,675,133        355,675,133 

Other receivables                          -                            -                          -             29,158,769                        -             29,158,769           29,158,769 

Due from related parties          915,409,731                          -          915,409,731                         -                          -                           -           915,409,731 

Cash and bank balances          107,809,310                          -          107,809,310           12,204,762                        -             12,204,762          120,014,072 

      1,024,906,417                 237,133     1,025,143,550     1,252,084,007       232,487,158       1,484,571,165       2,509,714,715 

-----------------------------------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------------------------

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working 
capital with a view of maintaining and appropriate mix between various sources of finance to 
minimize risks. Taken as a whole, the Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity 
risk. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the 
year ended June 30, 2022. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

43.1 Financial assets and liabilities (excluding statutory assets and liabilities) by categories and their 
respective maturities are as follows:

Financial liabilities 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings          298,615,142         769,301,702     1,067,916,844                         -                          -                           -        1,067,916,844 

Lease liabilities           50,088,139          89,833,930       139,922,069                         -                          -                           -          139,922,069 

Long-term loans          55,760,703                          -          55,760,703                         -                          -                           -            55,760,703 

Trade and other payables                          -                            -                          -         506,849,259                        -         506,849,259       506,849,259 

Accrued mark-up                          -                            -                          -            72,529,878                        -            72,529,878          72,529,878 

Short term financings           196,701,371                          -           196,701,371                         -                          -                           -             196,701,371 

Running finance under                          -   

mark-up arrangements         767,102,058                          -         767,102,058                         -                          -                           -          767,102,058 

Due to related parties        414,753,666                          -         414,753,666                         -                          -                           -          414,753,666 

      1,783,021,079         859,135,632      2,642,156,711         579,379,137                        -           579,379,137     3,221,535,848 
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2021

Financial assets 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term investments                          -                            -                          -                           -         194,552,732         194,552,732         194,552,732 

Loans               746,962                  55,487             802,449                530,150               150,225               680,375             1,482,824 

Long-term deposits                          -                            -                          -                           -           26,194,868          26,194,868          26,194,868 

Trade debts                          -                            -                          -        1,143,748,828                        -        1,143,748,828      1,143,748,828 

Trade deposits                          -                            -                          -             16,572,503                        -             16,572,503           16,572,503 

Interest accrued                          -                            -                          -          291,255,846                        -          291,255,846        291,255,846 

Other receivables                          -                            -                          -             17,607,533                        -             17,607,533           17,607,533 

Due from related parties      1,493,574,743                          -      1,493,574,743                         -                          -                           -        1,493,574,743 

Cash and bank balances          118,508,981                          -           118,508,981           13,695,001                        -             13,695,001         132,203,982 

     1,612,830,686                  55,487      1,612,886,173      1,483,409,861      220,897,825     1,704,307,686       3,317,193,859 

Financial liabilities 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings       575,080,546     1,049,650,530     1,624,731,076                         -                          -                           -         1,624,731,076 

Lease liabilities           47,668,312           81,889,252       129,557,564                         -                          -                           -          129,557,564 

Long-term loans        124,490,426          68,367,855        192,858,281                         -                          -                           -           192,858,281 

Trade and other payables                          -                            -                          -            815,130,164                        -            815,130,164          815,130,164 

Accrued mark-up                          -                            -                          -           96,437,639                        -           96,437,639         96,437,639 

Short term financings        235,953,736                          -        235,953,736                         -                          -                           -         235,953,736 

Running finance under 

mark-up arrangements        1,062,507,117                          -        1,062,507,117                         -                          -                           -          1,062,507,117 

Due to related parties        224,422,893                          -        224,422,893                         -                          -                           -          224,422,893 

Total

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five 

     2,270,123,030       1,199,907,637   3,470,030,667         911,567,803                        -           911,567,803     4,381,598,470 

43.2 Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the 
position as at June 30, 2022.

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's 
long-term and short-term financing arrangements at floating interest rates to meet its 
business operations and working capital requirements.

43.2.1 Interest rate risk

43.1.1 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial 
statements approximate their fair values.

-----------------------------------------------(Rupees)-----------------------------------------------
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(Rupees) 

2022 +100               17,036,683 

-100            (17,036,683)

2021 +100              19,659,585 

-100            (19,659,585)

Effect on profit / 

(loss) before tax

(Increase) / 

decrease in basis 

points

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in 
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the Company’s profit / (loss) 
before tax (through impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no direct impact on 
Company’s equity. This analysis excludes the impact of movement in market variables on 
the carrying values of provisions and on non-financial assets and liabilities of the 
Company. 

43.2.2 Interest rate sensitivity

43.2.3 Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the 
risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates primarily relates to the Company’s 
supplier payments and operating activities. The Company manages its currency risk by 
effective fund management and timely repayment of its current liabilities. The Company, 
however, has not hedged its foreign currency liabilities as the management has assessed 
that it will not be cost beneficial. 

2022 2021 2022 2021

 ----- Foreign Currency -----

Assets

Advances (USD)                     43,215                           -                   8,878,522                             -   

Liabilities

Trade creditors (USD)                 (373,179)               (185,469)             (66,612,316)           (29,378,292)

Trade creditors (EUR)                 (90,000)                          -               (17,948,682)                            -   

The exchange rates applied during the year and at year end were as follows:

2022 2021 2022 2021

US Dollar 179.50 163.30 178.50 158.40

Euro 206.00 N/A 199.43 N/A

----- Equivalent Rupees -----

Average rate  Spot rate  

-----------Rupees-----------

 Every 5% increase or decrease in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, will 
decrease or increase profit / (loss) before tax for the year by Rs 4.338 million (2021: Rs 
1.469 million).

 Sensitivity analysis
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2022 2021

Rupees

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

43.3 Credit risk

43.2.4 Other price risk

43.3.2 The Company monitors the credit policy of its financial assets with reference to historical 
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of 
financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

43.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharging an obligation. The financial assets excludes 
statutory assets and includes deposits, trade and other receivables, interest accrued, 
investments, due from related parties and cash and bank balances. Out of the total 
financial assets of Rs. 2,509.715 million (2021: Rs. 3,317.194 million), the financial assets 
which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 2,506.854 million (2021: Rs. 3,315.711 
million). The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and bank 
balances. The Company has large number of customers, including corporate and 
individuals, due to large number and diversity of its customer base, concentration of 
credit risk with respect to trade debtors is limited. Further, the Company manages its 
credit risk by obtaining advance monitoring fee for device and service charges and 
effective implementation of credit policy for its customers. 

 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. 
Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investments 
securities. As at reporting date, the Company is not exposed to equity price risk other than 
its investment in subsidiary company (note 8).

 The credit quality of financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed in 
note 13.1 to these financial statements. As at the reporting date, there are no financial 
assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been 
renegotiated. 

Long-term investments 8 194,552,732 194,552,732

Loans 9 2,860,972 1,482,824

Long-term deposits 10 37,699,947 26,194,868

Trade debts 13.1 303,108,337 332,597,191

Trade deposits 15 10,590,608 16,572,503

Interest accrued 16 355,675,133 291,255,846

Other receivables 17 29,158,769 17,607,533

Due from related parties 18 915,409,731 1,493,574,743

Bank balances 19 119,859,732 131,844,236

1,968,915,961 2,505,682,476

43.3.3 The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to 
external credit ratings as follows:

Bank Balances by 

short-term 

rating category

A-1+ 774,820 1,336,861

A-1 966 -

A-1+ 111,952,539 122,064,060

A-1 7,131,407 8,443,315

119,859,732 131,844,236

Rating

Agency

VIS

PACRA

PACRA

VIS
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 Liquidity risk represents the risk that a Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations 
with the financial liabilities. The financial liabilities excludes statutory liabilities and provisions and 
includes long-term and short-term financing, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up and 
due to related parties. The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of various financing facilities. The table below summarises 
the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at June 30, 2022 and 2021 based on 
contractual undiscounted payment dates and present market interest rates:

43.4 Liquidity risk

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2022

Long-term financings - - 298,615,142 769,301,702 1,067,916,844

Lease liabilities - - 50,088,139 89,833,930 139,922,069

Long-term loans - - 55,760,703 - 55,760,703

Trade and other payables - 506,849,259 - - 506,849,259

Accrued mark-up 72,529,878 - - - 72,529,878

Short-term financings - 101,492,618 95,208,753 - 196,701,371

Running finance under

mark-up arrangements 767,102,058 - - - 767,102,058

Due to related parties 414,753,666 - - - 414,753,666

1,254,385,602 608,341,877 499,672,737 859,135,632 3,221,535,848

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2021

Long-term financings - - 575,080,546 1,049,650,530 1,624,731,076

Lease liabilities - - 47,668,312 81,889,252 129,557,564

Long-term loans - - 124,490,426 68,367,855 192,858,281

Trade and other payables - 815,130,164 - - 815,130,164

Accrued mark-up 96,437,639 - - - 96,437,639

Short-term financings - - 235,953,736 - 235,953,736

Running finance under

mark-up arrangements 1,062,507,117 - - - 1,062,507,117

Due to related parties 224,422,893 - - - 224,422,893

1,383,367,649 815,130,164 983,193,020 1,199,907,637 4,381,598,470

--------------------------------- (Rupees)  --------------------------------- 

--------------------------------- (Rupees)  --------------------------------- 

 The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains 
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of the business 
and maximize shareholders value. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes 
during the year ended June 30, 2022. The parent company is committed to provide full support to 
the Company, as and when required.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt 
divided by total capital plus net debt. Equity comprises of share capital and revenue reserves. The 
gearing ratio as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

43.5 Capital management
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

Lease liabilities 23

Long-term loans 24

Accrued mark-up 27

Short-term financings 28

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 29

Total debts 

Less: Cash and bank balances 19

Net debt

Long-term financings 22 1,067,916,844 1,624,731,076

Share capital 20

Capital reserves

Revenue reserve

Other components of equity

Total equity

Total capital

Gearing ratio 

43.6 Fair value of financial instruments

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest.

- in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

  Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.

  Level 1: Quoted market price

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value 
is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

  Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

139,922,069 129,557,564

55,760,703 192,858,281

72,529,878 96,437,639

196,701,371 235,953,736

767,102,058 1,062,507,117

2,299,932,923 3,342,045,413

(120,014,072) (132,203,982)

2,179,918,851 3,209,841,431

1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930

202,650,046 232,690,046

44,227,795 (189,432,169)

77,760,820 362,683,585

2,197,269,591 2,278,572,392

4,377,188,442 5,488,413,823

49.80% 58.48%



Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Annual Report 2021-22 111

The Company had the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

2022 194,552,732 - - 194,552,732

2021 194,552,732 - - 194,552,732

11.80%

44. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for the year are as follows:

---------------------- Rupees -------------------------

Non-listed equity 

investments - TME 

Range (weighted 
average)

Significant 
unobservable

inputs

Sensitivity of the input to fair value

1% increase in the discount rate could result in

decrease in fair value by Rs. 34 million.

1% decrease in the discount rate could result in

increase in fair value by Rs. 86 million.

1% increase in the growth rate could result in

increase in fair value by Rs. 69.203 million.

1% decrease in the growth rate could result in

decrease in fair value by Rs. 52.485 million.

Terminal 

growth rate

1.70%

Discount rate

Financial assets - Designated 
at FVTOCI

Basic salary 19,356,132 15,484,800 - - 84,057,948 60,054,036
House rent allowance 8,710,200 6,968,160 - - 37,825,944 27,024,264
Utilities 1,933,668 1,547,040 - - 8,397,564 5,999,580
Vehicle allowance - - - - 15,108,000 12,468,000
Retirement benefits 1,612,368 1,289,880 - - 6,872,988 4,873,512
Meeting fees - - 1,700,000 1,300,000 - -

31,612,368 25,289,880 1,700,000 1,300,000 152,262,444 110,419,392
Number of person(s) 1 1 3 4 33 25

------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Chief Executive Directors Executives

 The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements categorised 
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, as at June 30, 2022 are shown below:

 43.6.1 Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation

 No transfers made during the year within the fair value hierarchy.

 As of reporting date, the Company has no assets carried at fair value other than long-term 
investments in a subsidiary as stated above.

44.1 The Chief Executive, Directors and certain executives of the Company have also been provided 
with Company’s owned and maintained cars and other benefits in accordance with their 
entitlements as per rules of the Company.
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2022 2021

Rupees

TPL Holdings (Private) - Limited (ultimate parent company) [TPLH]

Amount received by the Company from TPLH 29,250,000 -
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLH 31,045,741 9,979,955
Mark-up on current account 86,009,652

-

72,775,079

Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TPLH 254,150,010

TPL Corp Limited – (parent company) [TPLC]

Amount received by the Company from TPLC 1,110,382,353 1,125,520,000
Amount paid by the Company on behalf of TPLC 414,884,799 1,373,638,537
Mark-up on current account 29,554,796 73,919,325
Settlement of amount receivable by the Company with TPL Life 20,284,690 59,421,786
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPLC 2,592,956 11,915,394

Expenditure incurred on behalf of the Company 120,714,275 122,454,115

Trakker Middle East LLC – (subsidiary company) [TME]

Expenses incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TME 9,138,449 88,832,541

Expenditure incurred / paid by TME on behalf of the Company - 3,362,970

Mark-up on current account 13,847,122 10,585,457

Associated companies

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS]
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TSS 3,935,768 13,843,057

Expenditure incurred / paid by TSS on behalf of the Company 1,186,767 1,679,412

Services acquired by the Company from TSS 20,110,628 16,470,746

Amount received by the Company from TSS 2,000,000 20,179,425

Settlement of amount payable on behalf of
the Company from TSS for services received from suppliers 8,488,840 9,352,030

Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TSS 15,269,241 6,841,063

 Related parties comprise of ultimate parent company, parent company, subsidiary company, 
companies where directors hold common directorship, key management personnel and their 
close family members and staff retirement benefit funds. Transactions and balances with related 
parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

45. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
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2022 2021

Rupees

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLP 3,333,561 22,080,546

Amount paid by the Company to TPLP 25,000,000 -

Amount received by the Company from TPLP 59,000,000 19,118,983

Expenditure incurred / paid by TPLP on behalf of the Company 2,130,731 1,241,154

Mark-up on current account 356,314 344,295

TPL Insurance Limited [TIL]

Sales made by the Company to TIL 171,408,678 208,098,133

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TIL 29,746,248 61,686,535

Amount received by the Company from TIL 1,091,563,750 1,379,000,000

Mark-up on current account 10,086,027 53,593,084

Payment made by the Company to TIL 906,516,000 996,670,203

Expenditure incurred / paid by TIL on behalf of the Company 4,252,442 41,476,059

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD]

Mark-up on current account 104,353 86,057

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life]

Amount received by the Company from TPL Life 44,026,400 264,300,240

Expenditure incurred / paid by TPL Life on behalf of the Company 4,473,847 12,163,843

Mark-up on current account - 4,911,418
Settlement of amount payable by the Company with TPLC 20,284,690 59,421,786

Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPL Life 26,330,453 45,043,994

Payments made by the Company to TPL Life 18,000,000 182,800,000

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TRG - 1,764,213

Mark-up on current account 1,151,528 861,965

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPL Tech - 2,029,825

Mark-up on current account 5,277,872 4,239,028

Staff retirement benefit

Provident fund employer contribution 20,596,023 16,078,616

Key management personnel

Salaries and other benefits 48,018,000 39,923,976

Post employment benefits 2,496,898 2,061,876
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

47. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE – 

(basic and diluted)

Profit / (Loss) attributable to the ordinary shareholders 197,115,011 (120,202,293)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 187,263,093 187,263,093

Earnings / (Loss) per share – basic and diluted 1.05 (0.64)

TPL Insurance Limited 171,408,678 208,098,133

------- Number of shares -------

46. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 19 120,014,072 132,203,982

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 29 (767,102,058) (1,062,507,117)

(647,087,986) (930,303,135)

45.2 Certain employees of the group companies provides services to the Company and accordingly, 
their cost are proportionately charged to the Company on agreed terms. In addition, certain 
common expenses (other than salaries and other benefits) are also allocated within the group 
companies on agreed basis and terms.

45.1 All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. The related parties status of outstanding receivables / payables as 
at June 30, 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in the respective note to these financial statements.

 For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organised into one operating 
segment i.e. tracking and other digital business. The Company operates in the said reportable 
operating segment based on the nature of the products, risks and returns, organisational and 
management structure and internal financial reporting systems. The operating interests of the 
Company are confined to Pakistan in terms of its business operations. Accordingly, the 
information and figures reported in these financial statements are related to the Company’s only 
reportable segment in Pakistan.

 The Company sales represents revenue earned from the customer base in Pakistan only.

 The revenue information is based on the location of the customer i.e. in Pakistan only. The details 
of customers with whom the revenue from sales transactions amount to 10% or more of the 
Company's overall revenue is as follows:

48. SEGMENT REPORTING
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 Non-current assets of the Company are confined within Pakistan and consist of property, plant 
and equipment, intangibles assets, right-of-use assets, long-term loans and deposits, except for 
long-term investment in a foreign subsidiary (Trakker Middle East LLC).

49.2 All figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

49. GENERAL

49.1 Number of employees as at June 30, 2022 were 901 (2021: 809) and average number of 
employees during the year were 855 (2021: 757).

50. DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 26, 2022 by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the members of TPL Trakker Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Audit Matters

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of TPL Trakker Limited and its 

subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 

2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 

consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 

then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the 

information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 

purposes of the audit.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in 

Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 

statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and 

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 

2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the 

Group's affairs as at June 30, 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in 

equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Tel: +92 21 3568 3030
Fax: +92 21 3568 4239
www.bdo.com.pk

2nd Floor, Block-C,
Lakson Square
Building No.1
Sarwar Shaheed Road
Karachi-74200
Pakistan
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Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Following are the key audit matters:

1.  Revenue recognition

(Refer note 35 to the accompanying 

consolidated financial statements)

Revenue from rendering of monitoring services is 

recognized over the time i.e. as and when the 

services are rendered. 

We have considered revenue from the rendering 

of monitoring services as a key audit matter as 

determination of the amount of revenue to be 

recognized for each contract requires complex IT 

systems integration and there is a risk that 

revenue is recorded in the wrong accounting 

period.

Ÿ We tested the operating effectiveness of the 
controls to ensure that they operated 
throughout the year as intended.

Ÿ We obtained an understanding of key IT 
systems, including interfaces involved in the 
recording of revenue along with the IT 
general controls.

Ÿ We have performed cut-off procedures and 
recalculations of revenue recognized over 
the time to ensure that revenue has been 
recorded in the correct accounting period.

Our audit procedures include the following:

Ÿ We have performed tests of details over 
revenue and tested manual journal entries 
posted into relevant revenue accounts in the 
sub-ledgers and general ledger.

2. Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The intangible assets include goodwill, 

intangible assets with indefinite life and 

intangible assets under development having 

carrying value aggregating to Rs. 2373.454 

million as of June 30, 2022 and tested for 

impairment at least on an annual basis. 

(Refer note 6 to the accompanying consolidated 

financial Statements)

The determination of recoverable amount 

requires judgement in both identifying and then 

valuing the relevant Cash Generating Units 

(CGUs), and the impairment assessment for 

such assets involves significant judgments and 

estimates about future business performance, 

with key assumptions including cash flows, 

inflation rates, the overall long-term growth 

rates, discount rates used and to the extent 

relevant, the fair value less costs to dispose. 

Changes in these assumptions might lead to a 

significant change in the carrying values of the 

related assets, for such reasons we considered 

this as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures amongst others, included 

a review of the Group's intangible assets 

impairment process and evaluating the Group's 

assumptions used in assessing the 

recoverability of intangible assets, in particular, 

revenue and cash flow projections, useful 

economic lives and discount rates.

Ÿ assess the key assumptions and 

methodologies used in the impairment 

analysis, in particular growth rates, inflation 

rate and discount rate applied;

We assessed the methodologies used by the 

management in the impairment analysis and 

determination of CGUs, to which it relates.

Ÿ examined the approved business plans and 

assumptions used by management, 

including forecasted revenue base, profit 

from operations capital calculations and 

cash flows necessary for the continuing use 

of the CGU's assets and allocated goodwill; 

and

We involved our specialist to:
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Key audit matter  How the matter was addressed in our audit 

Ÿ evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed 

by management around the key 

assumptions for various CGU's as well as 

performing break—even analysis on key 

assumptions and challenged the outcomes 

of the assessment.

 We also checked the relationship between 

the market capitalization for relevant CGU, 

using the Level 1 input of the fair value 

hierarchy i.e. quoted prices, and its book 

value, among other factors.

 We also assessed the adequacy of 

disclosures in the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the financial 

reporting framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the annual report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon. 

Emphasis of Matters

2. We draw attention to note 6 of notes to the consolidated financial statements, which discloses 

that goodwill acquired through business combination, intangibles with indefinite lives and 

intangible assets under development are subject to impairment reviews which are based on 

underlying assumptions. However, changes to the assumptions may result in adjustments to the 

carrying values of the assets. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

1. We draw attention to note 1.3 of notes to the consolidated financial statements, which states that 

the Board approved the demerger of the mapping segment of the business from the Group by 

creating a separate entity in Pakistan and transferring the net assets to the same, consequent to 

which a new entity as a subsidiary of the Holding Company by the name of "Astra Location 

Services (Private) Limited" was incorporated subsequent to year end on July 05, 2022. Moreover, 

the Board has also authorized the management to incorporate a foreign entity in a suitable 

jurisdiction for investments in the mapping business. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 

matter.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and 

the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control.

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 

to continue as a going concern.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of 

most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are 

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

such communication.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

Other Matter

KARACHI     BDO EBRAHIM & CO. 

DATED: September 26, 2022         CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

 

UDIN: AR202210067npsDyAzif 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended June 30, 2021 were audited by 

another firm of chartered accountants who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements vide 

their report dated September 18, 2021.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
5 796,772,167 1,155,057,762

6 2,428,193,732 2,418,624,168

7 118,591,439 107,974,195

8 471,612 205,713

9 37,699,947 26,194,868

Deferred tax assets - net 10 229,959,062 91,434,505
3,611,687,959 3,799,491,211

11 402,224,531 445,649,520

12 897,662,678 1,278,014,782
Loans and advances 13 37,242,120 66,296,222

Trade deposits and prepayments 14 37,340,580 35,284,625

15 322,023,956 275,393,211

16 35,321,152 18,026,784

17 774,085,831 1,361,389,292

18 122,526,961 139,713,606
2,628,427,809 3,619,768,042

6,240,115,768 7,419,259,253

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized capital
2,850,000,000 2,850,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 19 1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930
Capital reserves 202,650,046 232,690,046

22,611,573 (127,575,912)
Other components of equity (24,810,640) 291,140,941

2,073,081,909 2,268,886,005

Non-controlling interest (245,662,109) (123,854,250)

1,827,419,800 2,145,031,755

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
21 949,386,540 1,152,897,019

22 25,635,120 13,182,747

23 89,833,930 81,889,252

24 - 68,367,855

25 - 797,103
1,064,855,590 1,317,133,976

CURRENT LIABILITIES
26 1,375,026,094 1,517,714,899

27 72,529,878 96,437,639

28 196,701,371 235,953,736

29 767,102,058 1,062,507,117

30 405,261,087 753,189,884

31 414,753,666 224,422,893
Taxation - net 32 28,098,976 31,014,251

33 88,367,248 35,853,103
3,347,840,378 3,957,093,522

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,240,115,768 7,419,259,253

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 34

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Deferred liability - Gratuity

Short-term financings

Current portion of non-current liabilities 

ASSETS

Stock-in-trade
CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Long-term loans  
Right-of-use assets

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Accrued mark-up

Long-term loans
Government grant

Share capital

Advance monitoring fees

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Due to related parties

Long-term financing

Trade debts 

Interest accrued

Revenue reserve

285,000,000 (2021: 285,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

TOTAL ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

Other receivables
Due from related parties 

Long-term deposits

As at June 30, 2022

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

228228122

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

35          2,342,487,424 2,111,257,155

36        (1,533,007,129)         (1,403,962,878)

            809,480,295             707,294,277 

37           (106,802,560)              (97,174,335)

38           (582,262,449)            (523,388,310)

            120,415,286               86,731,632 

39 (77,654,755) (77,725,874)

40           (327,329,012)            (389,684,205)

41             196,791,247             305,673,837 

            (87,777,234)              (75,004,610)

42             110,640,723              (33,905,584)

              22,863,489            (108,910,194)

(62,057,632) 12,436,352

Total comprehensive loss for the year (39,194,143) (96,473,842)

Profit / (loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company 113,642,532 (58,346,036)

Non-controlling interest (90,779,043) (50,564,158)

22,863,489 (108,910,194)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company 82,613,716 (52,127,860)

Non-controlling interest (121,807,859)              (44,345,982)

(39,194,143) (96,473,842)

Earnings / (Loss) per share – basic and diluted 48 0.61 (0.31)

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Finance costs

Loss before taxation 

Other income 

Operating profit

Research and development expenses

Turnover – net

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign subsidiary 

Taxation

Profit / (loss) for the year

to profit or loss account:

For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and 
other Comprehensive Income 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Total 
equity

Balance as at July 01, 2020         1,204,425,930 146,817,136 - -          (82,063,384)              284,432,213 -          349,185,965 -        1,553,611,895 
Issuance of ordinary shares 668,205,000 - - - - - - - -           668,205,000 
Acquisition of subsidiary - - - - -                           -   - (79,508,268)          (79,508,268)
Share premium on issuance of ordinary 
shares 

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, 
net of tax - - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (58,346,036) - 6,218,176 (52,127,860) (44,345,982) (96,473,842)

Transaction cost on issuance of ordinary 
shares - - (77,808,090) - 13,324,060 - - (64,484,030) - (64,484,030)

Share based payment reserve - - - 30,040,000 - - - 30,040,000 - 30,040,000

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment realised on account of:
   incremental depreciation charged 
  on related assets - net of tax - - - - (490,552) 490,552 - - -

Balance as at June 30, 2021 1,872,630,930 146,817,136 55,832,910 30,040,000 (127,575,912) 284,922,765 6,218,176 396,255,075 (123,854,250) 2,145,031,755

Profit /(Loss) for the year - - - -          113,642,532 - - 113,642,532 (90,779,043)             22,863,489 
Other comprehensive loss for the year, 
net of tax - - - - - - (31,028,816) (31,028,816) (31,028,816) (62,057,632)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - - - - 113,642,532 - (31,028,816) 82,613,716 (121,807,859) (39,194,143)

Share based payment reserve - - - (30,040,000) - - (30,040,000) (30,040,000)

Deficit on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment realised (248,377,812) - (248,377,812) - (248,377,812)

Transfer of revaluation on surplus on disposal - - - - 36,544,953 (36,544,953) - - - -

Balance as at June 30, 2022 1,872,630,930 146,817,136 55,832,910 - 22,611,573 - (24,810,640) 200,450,979 (245,662,109) 1,827,419,800

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

--------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------------

Total 
reserves

Share 
Capital

Arrangement
Scheme of 

created under
 Reserve 

Share 
premium

Other capital 
reserve

Capital reserves

Revenue reserve-
accumulated  

profits / (losses)

Surplus on 
revaluation of 

property, plant and 
equipment

Non-controlling 
interest

Foreign currency 
translation

reserve 

Other components of equity

- - 133,641,000 - - - - 133,641,000 - 133,641,000

- - - -          (58,346,036) - (58,346,036) (50,564,158)         (108,910,194)

6,218,176 6,218,176 6,218,176 12,436,352

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

- 801,846,000
- (64,484,030)

(509,790,101) 1,175,855,345
Lease liabilities repaid 23.1 (84,761,115) (70,205,689)

(137,097,578) (122,331,194)
(39,252,365) (1,158,215,437)
(770,901,159) 562,464,995

311,420,679 163,504,088
(922,793,511) (1,085,972,999)
(33,202,265) (324,600)

47 (644,575,097) (922,793,511)

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

*No non-cash item is included in investing and financing activities

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Long-term loans – net
Short-term financings – net

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
Share issuance costs
Long-term financings – net

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Net foreign exchange differences

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(87,777,234) (75,004,610)

5.1.2 268,903,015 262,277,307
Depreciation on ROUA 7.4 69,110,404 66,938,503

6.1 15,635,790 22,557,366

38 5,799,195 (2,479,076)

40 311,906,695 389,684,205

41 (44,636,606) (39,300)

Reversal of deferred tax asset on surplus of revaluation of PPE 10.1 2,642,191 -

Amortisation of government grant 41 (5,950,600) (10,472,666)

Provision on gratuity 11,239,335 2,676,950

Gain on bargain purchase option - (89,486,545)

Fair value gain on investment in TME - (33,327,406)

Share based payment (30,040,000) 30,040,000

40 15,422,317 (3,173,759)
620,031,736 635,195,579

532,254,502 560,190,969

(151,437,931) (262,929,196)
371,118,682 (59,589,347)
29,054,102 46,416,854

(2,055,955) 27,853,330
(46,630,745) (143,007,157)
(17,294,368) 11,066,707

587,303,461 (289,705,234)

770,057,246 (669,894,043)

(158,111,122) 323,377,937
190,330,773 142,763,479

52,514,145 (1,287,059)
84,733,796 464,854,357

1,387,045,544 355,151,283

(320,416,483) (434,403,768)
(2,593,710) (2,563,850)

32 (33,441,300) (44,045,779)
(356,451,493) (481,013,397)
1,030,594,051 (125,862,114)

5.1 (110,647,873) (151,520,378)
5.2 (23,466,625) (83,426,500)
6.3 (25,205,354) (15,440,133)

222,818,617 334,965
(265,899) 464,185

(11,505,079) (26,846,688)
- 3,335,756

51,727,787 (273,098,793)

Purchase of - property, plant and equipment
                    - capital work-in-progress
                    - intangible assets
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 
Long-term loans

Acquisition of a subsidiary, net cash acquired
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from operations
Payments for:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES*

Net cash generated from /(used in) operating activities

Finance costs

Income taxes
Gratuity paid 

Long-term deposits

Trade and other payables 
Due to related parties
Advance monitoring fees

Stock-in-trade
Trade debts 
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments

Other receivables
Interest accrued 

Due from related parties

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Amortisation 
Allowance / (Reversals) for expected credit loss (ECL)

Finance costs

Loss before taxation

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  – net

Exchange loss / (gain) - net

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
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Rupees

Property, plant and equipment         3,060,660 

Intangible assets     940,064,721 

Right-of-use assets         4,368,331 

Long-term deposits            140,000 

Trade debts       26,436,830 

Cash and bank balances         7,692,902 

    981,763,444 

Assets:

 TPL Vehicle Tracking (Private) Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 
December 27, 2016 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 
(now Companies Act, 2017). Effective from November 30, 2017, the name of the Holding Company 
was changed to TPL Trakker (Private) Limited. The Holding Company was later converted into a 
public company on January 17, 2018 and accordingly, the name was changed to TPL Trakker 
Limited. On August 10, 2020, the Holding Company got listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
The Holding Company is subsidiary of TPL Corp Limited and TPL Holdings (Private) Limited is the 
ultimate parent company. 

 The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Plot No. 1, Sector # 24, near Shan 
Chowrangi, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. The principal activities of the Holding Company 
include installation and sale of tracking devices, vehicle tracking, fleet management, digital 
mapping & location based services.

 The Holding Company has identified the following Net Assets as at June 30, 2022 to be transferred 
to the new entity;

1.2 TPL Trakker Limited (The Holding Company)

1.1 The Group consists of TPL Trakker Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiary company, 
Trakker Middle East LLC (TME) that has been consolidated in these consolidated financial 
statements.

1.3 During the year, in the meeting held on September 18, 2021 the Board approved the demerger of 
the mapping segment of the business from the Holding Company by creating a separate entity in 
Pakistan and transferring the net assets to the same, consequent to which a new entity as a 
subsidiary by the name of "Astra Location Services (Private) Limited" was incorporated 
subsequent to year end on July 05, 2022 under section 16 of the Companies Act, 2017. Moreover, 
the Board has also authorized the management to incorporate a foreign entity in a suitable 
jurisdiction for investments in the mapping business.

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Long-term financing         9,769,207 

Trade and other payables       51,919,876 

Accrued mark-up     245,708,976 

Current portion of non-current liabilities       22,888,320 

Due to related parties     527,566,321 

    857,852,700 

    123,910,744 Net Assets

Liabilities:
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1.6

Shareholding

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Ultimate Parent Company -

TPL Corp Limited Parent Company -

TPL Insurance Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated Company -

TPL Properties Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

HKC (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

Common Directorship -

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

The Resource Group Pakistan Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Logistics (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Life Insurance Limited Common Directorship -

TPL E-Ventures (Private) Limited Associated Company -

TPL Mobile (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited Common Directorship -

Trakker Energy (Private) Limited Associated Company -

Trakker (Private) Limited Staff Provident Fund Retirement Benefit Fund -

Name of related party Basis of relationship

Details of related parties

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited 

1.4 Trakker Middle East LLC (TME)

 Corporate office, Karachi Plot No. 1, Sector #24, near Shan Chowrangi, Korangi Industrial 
Area, Karachi – 74900

 Regional offices:

 Location   Address

1.5 The geographical location and addresses of business units are as under:

 Islamabad office II Workpad Building, Plot 67, Street 35, I&T Center, Sector G-10/1, 
Islamabad.

 Multan office House No. 2, Shalimar Colony, Haider Street, Bosan Road, near 
Northern Bypass, Multan

a) Holding Company

 Lahore office Tower 75, 4th Floor, L Block, Gulberg III, Kalma Chowk, Main Ferozpur 
Road, Lahore

 Faisalabad office Office No. 2, 4th Floor, Mezan Executive Tower, Liaquat Road, 
Faisalabad.

a) Subsidiary Company

 Location   Address

 Islamabad office I 10th floor (South) ISE Towers, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, 
Islamabad.

 Hyderabad office 2nd Floor, Plot # 15/5, Railway Cooperative Housing Society, Main 
Auto Bhan Road Latifabad, Hyderabad.

 TME is a limited liability company registered in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The registered 
office of the Company is a 18th Floor, Sidra Tower Building, Sheikh Zayed Road, TECOM, Dubai, 
United Arab Emirates. The principal activities of TME are selling, marketing and distribution of 
products and services in the field of wireless, fleet management, tracking and telemetry services.

 Dubai, UAE   18th Floor, Sidra Tower Building, Sheikh Zayed Road, TECOM, Dubai, 
United Arab Emirates
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3.2 Basis of consolidation

 Subsidiaries 

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting 
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by 
International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards 
(IFAS) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under 
Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the 
provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and 
directives issued under the Act have been followed.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

3.1 Basis of preparation

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise specifically stated. 

 These consolidated financial statements comprises the financial statements of the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries as at June 30, 2022, here-in-after referred to as 'the Group'.

 Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the 
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

 Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

-  exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and 

-  the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

 Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee including:

-  the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;

-  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and 

-  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

-  power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities of the investee);

 After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, on the 
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to 
benefit from the combination. Goodwill is tested annually or whenever there is an indication of 

 Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to 
be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the profit or loss from the 
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

 The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

 Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business 
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the 
extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition is recorded as 
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary 
acquired, the difference is recognized directly in the profit or loss.
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 - Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective 
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the 'cost of 
fulfilling a contract' for the purposes of the onerous contract assessment comprises 
the costs that relate directly to the contract, including both the incremental costs 
and an allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract. An entity is required to 
apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations 
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the 
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative 
information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize 
the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, 
at the date of initial application.

 The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary companies are consolidated on a line 
by line basis and the carrying value of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated 
against the subsidiaries’ shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements.

impairment exists. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognized in profit or loss and is not 
reversed in future periods.

4.1 New standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements to approved accounting 
standards and the framework for financial reporting that became effective during the year

 All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses on 
transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full.

4.1.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting  
standards that are effective.

 A change in the ownership interest of subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. If the Group losses control over subsidiary, it derecognises the assets 
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of any NCI, cumulative 
translation differences recognised in equity, and recognises fair value of consideration received, 
any investment retained, surplus or deficit in the profit or loss, and reclassifies the Holding 
Company share of component previously recognised in other comprehensive income to profit or 
loss, or retained earnings, as appropriate.

4.1.2 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified 
under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022:

 The subsidiaries have same reporting period as that of the Holding Company. The accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to confirm with accounting policies of the Group, 
wherever needed.

 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 
4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2021, with earlier application permitted. The amendments introduce a 
practical expedient to account for modifications of financial assets or financial 
liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an 
‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for by 
updating the effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 
16 for lessees when accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The 
amendments also allow a series of exemptions from the regular, strict rules around 
hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly affected by the interest rate 
benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier application 
permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes 
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.

 When the ownership of a subsidiary is less than 100 percent and, therefore, a non-controlling 
interest (NCI) exists, the NCI is allocated on its share of the total comprehensive income of the 
period, even if that results in a deficit balance. 

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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4.1.3 The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

 - IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received 
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by 
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ 
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial 
liability.

 - IFRS 16 – The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 Grouping IFRS 16 by 
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. 
The objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might 
arise in lease incentives.

 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) 
amendments apply retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been added to further 
clarify when a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect 
of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity’s 
right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments 
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8.

 (ii) clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other 
events or conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be 
disclosed; and

 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 
2) – the IASB has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure 
of accounting policies and to help companies provide useful accounting policy 
disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

 (iii) clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, 
other events or conditions are themselves material to a Group’s consolidated 
financial statements.

 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 
16) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that 
sales proceeds and costs of items produced while bringing an item of property, plant 
and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are 
recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity 
measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. 
The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds 
from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, but only 
to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and 
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the 
consolidated financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. 
The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments 
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other components 
of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the 
Conceptual Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 
of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those 
amendments to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after 
the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 
2022.

 (i)  requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than 
their significant accounting policies;
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  Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historic 
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

 The Group reviews the useful lives, methods of depreciation / amortisation and residual 
values of operating fixed assets on the reporting date. Any change in the estimates in 
future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed 
assets and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / 
amortisation charge and impairment. The Group assesses at each reporting date 

- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) - The amendment amends accounting treatment on 
loss of control of business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for 
less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained 
interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been 
deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.  

 In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, estimates and assumptions which are significant to these consolidated financial 
statements:

4.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

 The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting and 
reporting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the Group’s accounting 
policies.

- The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the above amendments and 
improvements.

a)  Operating fixed assets and intangible assets

- The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two 
additional examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) introduce a new definition for 
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the consolidated 
financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also 
clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by 
specifying that an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set 
out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to 
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or 
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the Group applies the 
amendments.

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 
(Amendments to IAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that 
it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary 
differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred tax asset and a 
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and 
a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated 
deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the 
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an 
adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date. The 
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023 with earlier application permitted.
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4.3.1 Owned

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

 Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable 
profits, together with future tax planning strategies. The management consider tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

 The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the 
economic environment. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a 
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the 
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into 
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. The Group will calibrate the matrix 
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. 

whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, the 
carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in 
excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, 
assets are written down to the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is 
recognized as expense in the profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. 
Any impairment loss of revalued assets is treated as revaluation decrease.

 Rates of depreciation which are disclosed in note 5.1 to these consolidated financial 
statements are designed to write-off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

b) Stock-in-trade 

 The Group reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in 
the carrying values. Net realisable value is determined with reference to estimated selling 
price less estimated expenditure to make the sales.

 The provision for taxation is accounted for by the Group after taking into account the 
relevant laws and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances, where the Group's 
view differs from the view taken by the tax authorities at the assessment stage and where 
the Group considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, 
the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities / assets. 

 The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic 
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic 
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. At 
each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the 
forward-looking estimates are analysed. Any change might affect the carrying value and 
amount of expected credit loss charge to profit or loss. 

c) Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of certain financial assets

 Other areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions involved are disclosed in respective 
notes to these consolidated financial statements.

 Property, plant and equipment (except for leasehold land and buildings on leasehold 
land) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Leasehold land and buildings on leasehold land are stated at revalued 
amounts, which are the fair value at the date of revaluation. Subsequently, these are 
stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying the straight-
line method. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of 
addition when the asset is available for use, whereas, depreciation on disposals is 
charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

d)  Recognition of tax and deferred tax
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 Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued 
asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount at the reporting date. 
Accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the 
asset. 

 An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or 
losses on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the 
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is charged to profit or loss.

4.3.2 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, 
and consist of expenditure incurred in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of 
their acquisition, erection, construction and installation. The assets are transferred to 
relevant category of operating fixed assets when they are available for use.

 Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and 
adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written 
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount.

4.4 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

 A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset 
revaluation surplus in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the 
same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A 
revaluation deficit is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing 
surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. 

 An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to unappropriated profit is made for the 
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and 
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net 
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation surplus 
relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit. 

4.5 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets other than goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related 
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related 
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, as their useful life 
is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles, amortisation is charged 
to the profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby, the cost of intangible asset is 
written off over its useful economic life. The amortisation rate of the intangible assets are stated in 
note 6.1 to these consolidated financial statements. Full month's amortisation is charged in the 
month of addition when the asset is available for use, whereas, amortisation on disposals is 
charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

4.5.1 Intangible assets under development

 Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. It consists of expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under 
development in the course of their acquisition, erection, development and installation. The 
assets are transferred to relevant category of intangible assets when they are available 
for use.

 Major renewals and improvements for assets are capitalised and the assets so replaced, 
if any, are retired. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss, as and 
when incurred.
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4.5.2 Business combinations and Goodwill

 b) the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the 
liabilities assumed.

 The Group uses acquisition method of accounting for acquisition of assets or class of 
assets, whereby, the purchase consideration is allocated to the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed based on the fair value at the date of 
acquisition. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred and included in 
administrative expenses.

 Goodwill is initially measured at the acquisition date, being the excess of:

 a) the aggregate of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree and in a business combination achieved in stages, the 
acquisition date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and

4.6.1 Group as a lessee

 The Group acts as a lessee and applies a single recognition and measurement approach 
for all the leases except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (if any). The 
Group recognises lease liability to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

 a) Right-of-use assets

  The Group recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date 
of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are 
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, if any. The cost of ROU 
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, 
if any, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any 
lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership 
of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised ROU assets are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and 
the lease term, on the rates as disclosed in the note 7.1 to these consolidated 
financial statements. ROU assets are subject to impairment.

4.6 Leases

 b) Lease liabilities

  The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option (if any) 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for 
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to 

  At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) 
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an 
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. 

 The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. 

 Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured subsequent to initial 
recognition, at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is tested annually or 
whenever, there is an indication of impairment. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is 
recognised in profit or loss.

 In case, the fair value attributable to the Group’s interest in the identifiable net assets 
exceeds the fair value of consideration, the Group recognises the resulting gain in the 
profit or loss on the acquisition date.
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 c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

4.7 Financial instruments

  The Group has the option, under its lease arrangements to lease the assets for 
additional term under the contract. The Group applies judgement in evaluating 
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all 
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After 
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a 
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its 
ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business 
strategy). Any change is accounted for change in estimate and applied 
prospectively with corresponding change in ROU assets and lease liabilities.

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 
recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the 
payment occurs.

  The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, 
together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably 
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if 
it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

  In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date. After the commencement date, 
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and 
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease 
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to 
purchase the underlying asset.

  The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the 
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low 
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

4.6.2 Group as a lessor

 Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income 
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in 
revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in 
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

4.7.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value 
through profit or loss. 

 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s 
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing 
them. With the exception of trade debts, the Group initially measures a financial asset at 
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, 
transaction costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price determined under 
IFRS 15.

4.7.1 Financial assets 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Annual Report 2021-22 135

 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value 
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and 
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the 
SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Group’s business model for 
managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to 
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

  Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. 
Dividends are recognised as dividend income in the profit or loss when the right of 

  Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity 
investments as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they 
meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are 
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument 
basis. 

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following 
categories:

 - the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both 
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling; and 

  For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign 
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the 
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets 
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised 
in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI 
is recycled to profit or loss.

 a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the 
asset.

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

 b) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative 
gains and losses (debt instruments) 

 c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative 
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 

 - the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective 
interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

4.7.1.2 Subsequent measurement

 - the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

  This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets 
at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

  The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the 
following conditions are met:
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payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds 
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are 
recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not 
subject to impairment assessment.

  The Group elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments, if any, 
under this category.

 When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

 When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has 
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 

 - the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

 d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  This category includes listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably 
elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments 
are also recognised as dividend income in the profit or loss when the right of 
payment has been established.

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for 
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through 
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with cash flows that are 
not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the 
criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through 
OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value through 
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an 
accounting mismatch.

 - the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay 
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement� and either (a) the Group has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, 
but has transferred control of the asset.

4.7.1.4 Impairment

4.7.1.3 Derecognition

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of 
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit 
or loss. 

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s 
statement of financial position) when:

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

 The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference 
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  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held 
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in 
the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the 
criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. 

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a 
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For other assets 
including deposits, accrued interest and bank balances that are held with reputational 
banks and other third parties, the Group applies low credit risk simplifications. At each 
reporting date, the Group evaluates whether these assets are considered to have low 
credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is available without un-
due cost or effort including their credit ratings assessed by reputable agencies and 
therefore assessed to have immaterial impact of allowances for ECL.

 The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due 
over the agreed credit terms. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a 
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the 
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into 
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when 
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

4.7.2 Financial liabilities

4.7.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as 
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

4.7.2.2 Subsequent measurement

between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of 
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
For trade and other receivables (if any), the Group applies a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. 

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below:

 a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

4.7.2.3 Derecognition 

 b) Loans and borrowings 

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation 
is included as finance costs in the profit or loss. 

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 
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4.7.2.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

4.9 Stock-in-trade

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on 
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or 
observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset. 

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either 
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may be impaired.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously.

 Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 
recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill 
relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment 
loss is recognised.

 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount.  

 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such 
reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

 Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in-first-out basis and net 
realisable value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
incurred thereon.

 Spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable 
value, except items in transit, which are stated at cost. Spare parts and loose tools are charged to 
cost of goods sold on an estimated consumption pattern.

 In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. 
If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These 
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded 
companies or other fair value indicators.

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss. 

4.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
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 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks 
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash 
and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances including short-term deposits net of bank 
overdraft, if any.

4.11 Staff retirement benefits

4.11.1 Defined contribution plan

 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right 
to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax 
authority.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or 
credited to the profit or loss.

 Deferred 

 The Subsidiary Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its 
employees in United Arab Emirates on the basis prescribed in the United Arab Emirates 
labour law, for the accumulated period of service at the date of statement of financial 
position.

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax 
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax 
losses and unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences, carry forwards of unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits can be utilised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at 
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Current

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arising 
at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.

4.11.2 Defined benefit plan

4.12 Taxation

 The Holding Company operates a recognised provident fund (defined contribution 
scheme) for its permanent employees who have completed the minimum qualifying 
period of service. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Holding Company 
and the employees at the rate of 8.33 percent of the basic salary. The contribution from 
the Holding Company is charged to the profit or loss for the year.

 Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after 
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior 
years. However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax 
rates under such regime.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in the other comprehensive income is 
recognised in the other comprehensive income and not in profit or loss.
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 On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Pakistani 
Rupee at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statement of profit or loss 

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rate ruling at the 
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial 
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

 c) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established 
and other income, if any is recognised on accrual basis. 

4.16 Foreign currency translation

 a) Rental income from equipment is recognised on accrual basis. 

4.13 Provisions

4.15 Revenue recognition

4.15.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

 -  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the 
goods is transferred to the customer i.e. when goods are installed.

 -  Revenue from rendering of monitoring services is recognised over the time i.e. as and 
when services are rendered, revenue from rendering of other associated services are 
recognised at the point in time when services are rendered.

4.14 Ijarah arrangements

4.15.2 Other revenues

 The Group is in the business of sale of equipment and provides associated monitoring 
and other services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of 
the goods and services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and 
services. The Holding Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its 
revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods and services before 
transferring them to the customer.

 -  For maps navigation business, revenue from sale of goods and rendering of map 
navigation services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods 
and services are transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of goods and 
rendering of services for installation of goods.

 b) Income on bank accounts are recognised using effective interest rate.

 Payments made under ijarah arrangements / agreements are charged to the profit or loss on a 
straight line basis over the ijarah term.

 The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate 
performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated 
(e.g., right of returns, volume rebates). In determining the transaction price for the sale of 
goods and rendering of services, the Group considers the effects of variable 
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, 
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

 Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a 
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be 
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and accordingly adjusted to reflect current 
best estimates.
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4.20 Segment reporting

and other comprehensive income are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in 
other comprehensive income (OCI). On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI 
relating to that particular foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss.

 Government grant is recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant related to an expense 
item, it is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that 
the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to 
an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related 
asset.

4.18 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

 Any goodwill arising on acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting 
date.

 The Group has identified the single reportable segments considering similar businesses and 
economic characteristics such as nature of the products and services; type or class of customer 
for their products and services, methods used to distribute their products or provide their services, 
etc.

4.19 Government grant

4.21 Employees share option plan

 Eligible employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, 
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled 
transactions). The cost of share option transactions is determined using intrinsic value method. 
That cost is recognised in salaries and benefits expense, together with a corresponding increase 
in equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the service and, where applicable, the 
performance conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period). The cumulative expense recognised for 
equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss for the 
year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of 
that year. The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share.

4.17 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of 
time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as 
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements 
in the period, in which these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting 
period but before the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, they are 
disclosed in the notes to these consolidated financial statements.

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (i.e. a single segment at the Group level). Segment results, 
assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment capital 
expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets. 
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5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

5.1 611,613,903 993,366,123

5.2 185,158,264 161,691,639

796,772,167 1,155,057,762

Capital work-in-progress

Operating fixed assets

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

5.1 Operating fixed assets

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

%

411,000,000 (165,000,000) - - - - - - - -
***(246,000,000)

16,406,766 (9,000,000) - - 4,892,231 136,723 - - - 5-25

(5,028,954) (5,028,954)

*** (2,377,812)

394,930,374 38,911,944 30,539,663 403,377,311 330,892,153 60,977,481 30,549,507 362,639,165 40,738,146 25-33.33

(61,004,670) (59,779,976)

5,123,665 1,600,040                         -   6,723,705 4,390,032 368,438 - 4,758,470 1,965,235 20-25

1,127,618,411 35,626,168 5,306,817 1,285,488,352 711,589,730 18,320,160 4,617,969 819,186,486 466,301,866 20-33.33

** 214,904,960 142,559,692

* (43,573,391) ** 19,763,144

(54,394,613) * (23,531,351)

(54,132,858)

205,364,061 1,844,218 - 158,233,746 181,208,267 11,554,770 - 143,849,917 14,383,829 20-25
(48,974,533) (48,913,120)

90,365,354 31,969,003         13,265,320 128,242,677 24,957,911 14,234,153 5,744,467 40,140,722 88,101,955 20

(7,357,000) (4,795,809)

6,048,277           (6,048,277) - - 6,048,277             (6,048,277) - - - 20

8,459,977 696,500 - 5,089,840 7,972,161 988,486 - 4,966,968 122,872 33.33

(4,066,637) (3,993,679)

         2,265,316,885 110,647,873          49,111,800         1,987,155,631       1,271,950,762          249,139,903            40,911,943       1,375,541,728            611,613,903 
(360,874,684)        (182,692,673)

 * (43,573,391)  *          (23,531,351)

 ** 214,904,960  **            19,763,144 

 *** (248,377,812)

* Represents transfer from owned assets to stock-in-trade
** Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets
*** Represents revaluation loss booked during the year

Depreciation 

Rate

Construction of shed

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Foreign 

currency 

translation 

reserve

As at

July 01, 2021

Additions / 

(disposals) / 

transfers

As at

June 30, 2022

As at

July 01, 2021

Charge for 

the year / 

(disposals) / 

transfers

As at

June 30, 2022

As at

June 30, 2022

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT

Foreign currency 

translation 

reserve

Mobile phones

June 30, 2022

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Owned

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land 

Computers and accessories 

Generators

Electrical devices 

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles
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WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Depreciation 

Rate

%

411,000,000 - - - 411,000,000 - - - - - 411,000,000 -

16,406,766                                 -   - - 16,406,766 4,071,893 - 820,338 - 4,892,231 11,514,535 5-25

189,421,226                112,203,221 101,475,312 (6,444,518) 394,930,374 146,968,807                112,036,133 79,966,954 (6,439,719) 330,892,153 64,038,221 25-33.33
(331,000) (246,155)

(1,393,867) ** (1,393,867)

4,423,665                                 -                          700,000 5,123,665 4,363,265 - 26,767 - 4,390,032 733,633 20-25

1,048,008,449                  11,915,886 9,724,400 - 1,127,618,411 579,187,949                    7,365,596 152,121,038 (571,311) 711,589,730 416,028,681 20-33.33
117,678,857 (902,126)  *** (26,513,542)

(58,807,055)

177,223,156 25,247,553 4,380,141 (1,450,122) 205,364,061 140,647,078                  25,247,554 16,800,424 (1,450,123) 181,208,267 24,155,794 20-25
(36,667)  ** (36,666)

9,863,338                  13,737,000                   33,994,867 - 90,365,354 1,424,171                  13,737,000 5,399,428 (872,761) 24,957,911 65,407,443 20

                       (41,500)                  (1,794,133)  ** (41,500)

                  34,605,782 5,311,573****

6,048,277 -                                  -   - 6,048,277 6,048,277 -                                  -   - 6,048,277 - 20

11,137,197 - 1,245,658 - 8,459,977 9,853,434 - 1,830,785 - 7,972,161 487,816 33.33
(857,230) (646,410)

(3,065,648)

 ** 

(3,065,648) ***** 

1,873,532,074 163,103,660                151,520,378 (10,590,899)            2,265,316,885                 892,564,874                 158,386,283                 256,965,734                   (9,333,914)             1,271,950,762 993,366,123

                  (1,188,230)                      (892,565)
 *                 117,678,857 **                  (4,537,681)
**                  (4,537,682) ***                (26,513,542)

***                (58,807,055) ****                    5,311,573 

****                  34,605,782 

* Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets
** Represents assets written off during the year
*** Represents transfer from owned assets to stock-in-trade
**** Represents assets transferred from ijarah lease

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land 

Computers and accessories 

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT

Owned

As at 

July 01, 2020

Additions / 

(disposals) / 

transfers

As at

June 30, 2021

Acquired under 

business 

combination

Foreign currency 

translation 

reserve

Charge for 

the year 

/ (disposals) 

/ transfers

As at

 June 30, 2021

As at

 June 30, 2021

-------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------

As at

 July 01, 2020

Foreign currency

translation 

reserve 

Generators

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles

Construction of shed

Mobile phones

June 30, 2021

Electrical devices 

**

 * 
***

**

 ** 

 **** 

**

Acquired under 

business 

combination
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

5.1.2

36 219,431,028 213,610,381
37 6,775,547 6,890,658
38 21,339,136 20,066,918
39 21,357,304 21,709,350

268,903,015 262,277,307

Owned

Leasehold land
165,000,000 - 165,000,000 203,879,310 38,879,310

Building on leasehold land 
9,000,000 - 9,000,000 11,120,690 2,120,690

174,000,000 - 174,000,000 215,000,000 41,000,000

Cost of sales and services
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Depreciation charge for the year has been 

allocated as follows:

Aggregate amount of assets 

disposed off having WDV 

more than Rs. 5,000,000 each

 Mr. M. Rafay Razzaq

Mr. A.Wasey Razzaq

Mr.Muhaymin Akram

Mr. Moiz Akram 

KarachiNegotiation

Research and development

5.1.1 Computers and accessories and vehicles includes assets costing Nil (2021: Rs. 4.443 
million) and Nil (2021: Rs. 1.972 million) respectively purchased on maturity of ijarah 
agreements. 

5.1.3 During the year, the Group has transferred tracking devices from stock-in-trade at a cost 
of Rs. 214.904 million (2021: Rs. 117.679 million) to owned assets. As of the reporting date, 
assets costing Rs. 1.041 billion (2021: Rs. 951.208 million) are in possession of third parties, 
on rental basis. The particulars of these assets have not been disclosed due to several 
numbers of parties involved.

5.1.4 Included in operating fixed assets are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs. 605.592 
million (2021: Rs.693.822 million).

5.1.5 During the year, the Group has written off fully depreciated assets costing Rs. 1.795 million. 
(2021: Rs 4.538 million).

5.1.6 The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

Original  / 
revalued

cost

Mode of 
disposal

Particulars 
of buyers

LocationWritten 
down value

Accumulated  
depreciation

--------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / (loss) 
on disposals

Computers and accessories 61,004,670 59,779,976 1,224,694 454,211 (770,483)  Various  Various  Karachi 

Electrical devices 54,394,613 54,132,858 261,755 155,000 (106,755)

Vehicles 7,357,000 4,795,809 2,561,191 7,084,741 4,523,550

Construction of shed 6,048,277 6,048,277 - - -

Furniture and fittings 48,974,533 48,913,120 61,413 - (61,413)  Various  Various  Karachi 

Mobile phones 4,066,637 3,993,679 72,958 124,665 51,707  Various  Various  Karachi 

181,845,730 177,663,719 4,182,011 7,818,617 3,636,606

2022 355,845,730 177,663,719 178,182,011 222,818,617 44,636,606

2021 1,188,230 892,565 295,665 334,965 39,300

Aggregate amount of assets 

disposed off not having WDV 

more than Rs. 5,000,000 each
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

5.2 Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance 161,691,639 78,265,139

Additions during the year 23,466,625 83,426,500

Closing balance 5.2.1 185,158,264 161,691,639

5.2.1 Represents expenditure in respect of leasehold improvements and renovation of office 
premises.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

6.

6.1 1,488,129,011 1,503,764,801

6.3 940,064,721 914,859,367

2,428,193,732 2,418,624,168

6.1 Intangible assets 

Owned

Goodwill - note 6.2 - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 
intangible assets - note 6.2 - 740,987,917 - - - 740,987,917 -

Marketing related 
intangible assets - note 6.2 - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 
computer softwares - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares - 327,552,022 314,208,091 8,110,606 322,318,697 5,233,325 20-33.33

PTA license - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 - 6.67

Decarta maps - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 - 20

Maps database - 147,858,790 90,827,990 7,525,184                  98,353,174 49,505,616 5

403,380,571

740,987,917

289,021,582

25,840,000

327,552,022

1,000,500

22,884,695

147,858,790

1,958,526,077 - 1,958,526,077 454,761,276 15,635,790 470,397,066 1,488,129,0112022

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development

WRITTEN

DOWN

VALUE

Amortisation 

rate

%------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------ 

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATIONCOST

As at July 01, 

2021

Additions / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2022

As at July 01, 

2021

Charge for the year 

/ transfers

As at June 30, 

2022

As at June 30, 

2022
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WRITTEN

DOWN

VALUE

Amortisation 

rate

%------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------ 

ACCUMULATED AMORTISATIONCOST

Acquired 
Under 

Business 
Combination

Additions / 

transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

As at July 01, 

2020

Charge for the year 

/ transfers

As at June 30, 

2021

As at June 30, 

2021

Owned

Goodwill - note 6.2 403,380,571 - - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 
intangible assets - note 6.2 453,635,249 287,352,668 - 740,987,917 - - - 740,987,917 -

Marketing related 
intangible assets - note 6.2 289,021,582 - - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 
computer softwares 25,840,000 - - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares 324,352,222 - 3,199,800 327,552,022 299,175,909 15,032,182 314,208,091 13,343,931 20-33.33

PTA license                   1,000,500 - - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500
- 6.67

Decarta maps                 22,884,695 - - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695
- - 20

Maps database               147,858,790 - - 147,858,790 83,302,806 7,525,184 90,827,990 57,030,800 5

1,667,973,609 287,352,668 3,199,800 1,958,526,077 432,203,910 22,557,366 454,761,276 1,503,764,8012021

As at July 01, 

2020

- Discount rates

 The calculation of discounted cashflow is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

 Key assumptions used in discounted cashflow calculations

 These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates and management assess how 
the unit’s position might change over the projected period. Management expects revenues and 
margins to improve on the basis of multiple strategies planned including increase in vehicle 
tracking sales volume and greater focus on container tracking business.

 Discount rates

 The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the 
business and is calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate reflects the 
Weighted Average Cost of Capital of the Group.

 Key business assumptions

 Goodwill acquired through business combinations and intangibles with indefinite useful lives 
have been allocated and monitored at the Group level (tracking business - excluding non-
operating assets). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives include customer and marketing 
related intangibles assets. The Group has performed its annual impairment test as at June 30, 
2022. The recoverable amount of the Group is determined based on using cash flow projections 
from financial budgets approved by the senior management covering a five year period. The 
discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 15.7 percent (2021:16.9 percent). The growth rate 
used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 5.8 percent (2021: 5.6 percent). 
As a result of this assessment, the management did not identify any impairment for the cash 
generating unit to which these assets are allocated.

6.2 Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

- Key business assumptions
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

 Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably possible 
change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to 
materially exceed its recoverable amount.

6.2.1 The Group has also determined the recoverable amount based on fair value less cost to 
sell considering the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 input 
of the fair value hierarchy - quoted prices of the Group, and its book value, among other 
factors. As a result of this analysis also, the management did not identify any impairment 
for the cash generating unit to which goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful 
lives are allocated.

6.3 Intangible assets under development

Opening balance 914,859,367 902,619,034

Additions during the year 25,205,354 12,240,333

Closing balance 6.3.1 & 6.3.2 940,064,721 914,859,367

6.3.2 The management has carried out an annual impairment assessment for intangible 
assets under development based on the discounted cashflow calculations. The discount 
rate applied to the cashflow projections is 15.7 percent (2021:16.9 percent) and the growth 
rate used to extrapolate the cashflows beyond the five year period is 5.8 percent (2021: 5.6 
percent). As a result of this assessment, the management did not identify any impairment 
in the carrying value of intangible assets under development as of reporting date. 

6.3.1 Represents expenditure incurred for development of map database including business 
intelligence and application solutions, etc. which is expected to be completed earliest by 
the first quarter of the fiscal year 2023. The Group has estimated that the total cost 
required to complete the development of these intangible assets aggregates to Rs. 1,620 
million, out of which Rs. 940.064 million has been incurred by the Group as of the reporting 
date. 

 - Discount rates

 The calculation of discounted cashflow is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

 - Key business assumptions

 Key assumptions used in discounted cashflow calculations

 Discount rates

 The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the 
business and is calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate 
reflects the target Weighted Average Cost of Capital of the Group.

 Key business assumptions

 These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates, management assess 
how the technology might change over the projected period. Management expects 
revenues and margins to improve on the basis of multiple strategies planned including, 
greater focus on development of new databases, applications and solutions, and 
expected increase in navigation business.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

6.3.3 The Group has also determined the recoverable amount based on fair value less cost to 
sell considering the relationship between its market capitalisation, using the Level 1 input 
of the fair value hierarchy - quoted prices of the Group, and its book value, among other 
factors. As a result of this analysis also, the management did not identify any impairment 
for the cash generating unit to which intangible assets under development are allocated.

 Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably 
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of 
the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

6.4 Amortisation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales and services 36 13,135,627 18,950,443

Distribution expenses 37 423,730 611,305

Administrative expenses 38 2,076,433 2,995,618

15,635,790 22,557,366

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

6.5 Included in intangible assets are fully amortised assets having cost of Rs. 355.581 million (2021: Rs. 
343.163 million).

 The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year is as 
follows:

7.1 Net carrying value basis - 2022

Vehicles Regional offices Total

Net carrying value basis - 2022

Opening net book value - July 01, 2021 397,690 16,819,589                 90,756,916 107,974,195

Additions during the year                      -                               -   79,727,647 79,727,647

(397,690)            (16,819,589) (51,893,124) (69,110,403)

Closing net book value - June 30, 2022 - - 118,591,439 118,591,439

Vehicles
Computers and 

accessories
Regional offices Total

Net carrying value basis - 2021

Opening net book value July 01, 2020 1,590,762 42,048,972                 28,629,444 72,269,178
Additions during the year                      -                               -   102,643,520 102,643,520

(1,193,072)            (25,229,383) (40,516,048) (66,938,503)

Closing net book value - June 30, 2021 397,690 16,819,589 90,756,916 107,974,195

--------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------- 

Less: Depreciation charge for the year

Less: Depreciation charge for the year

--------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------- 

accessories

Computers and 
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Rupees

 

Note

7.2 Gross carrying value basis - 2022

400,378,950 320,651,303

(281,787,511) (212,677,108)

Net book value 118,591,439 107,974,195

7.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales and services 36 58,059,650 56,235,035

Distribution expenses 37 1,872,892 1,814,034

Administrative expenses 38 9,177,862 8,889,434

69,110,404 66,938,503

8

Executives 122,076 482,270

Employees 2,738,896 1,000,554

2,860,972 1,482,824

Less: Current portion of long-term loans (2,389,360) (1,277,111)

471,612 205,713

8.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to executives

Opening balance 482,270 1,601,108

Less: Repayments (360,194) (1,118,838)

Closing balance 122,076 482,270

8.2 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to employees

Opening balance 1,000,554 1,162,375

Disbursements 3,080,000 562,000

Less: Repayments (1,341,658) (723,821)

Closing balance 2,738,896 1,000,554

  Less: Accumulated depreciation

LONG-TERM LOANS                                

    (secured, considered good)

Cost

8.1 & 8.3

8.4

13

8.2 & 8.3

8.4 The loans are provided to employees of the Group for the purchase of furniture and fixtures, 
renovation of house and marriage of self / children in accordance with the terms of employment 
and carrying mark up at the rate of 5 percent (2021: 5 percent) per annum. Further, it also 
includes loans provided on interest free basis amounting to Rs. 0.936 million (2021: Rs. 0.680 
million). All loans are repayable over a period of two years in equal monthly instalments and are 
secured against salaries and provident fund balances of the employees. The management of the 
Group has not discounted these loans to their present value, as they consider the impact is 
immaterial to these Consolidated Financial Statements taken as whole.

8.3 The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the executives & employees at the end of 
any month during the year were Rs. 0.421 million & Rs 3.968 respectively (2021: Rs. 1.375 million & Rs 
1.664 million respectively).
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

9. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits - leased and ijarah assets - 10,120,921

Less: Current portion of security deposits - (10,120,921)

- -
Utilities 177,450 177,450

Rent deposits 5,227,756 4,377,756

Cash margin against guarantees 32,294,741 21,639,662

37,699,947 26,194,868

10. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - net

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary differences:

Accelerated tax depreciation on:
Property, plant and equipment 51,990,846 42,138,071

Right-of-use assets (34,391,517) (31,312,517)

Intangible assets (15,564,979) (7,698,468)

2,034,350 3,127,086

Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:

Trade debts 6,961,980 5,794,722

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 2,642,191

Lease liabilities 40,580,880 37,571,694

Share based payments - 8,711,600

Tax losses 180,381,852 32,890,540

Minimum tax - 696,672

227,924,712 88,307,419
229,959,062 91,434,505

9.2

14

9.1

10.1 The movement in deferred tax assets is as follows:

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of 

incremental depreciation for the year - 200,366

Settlement of surplus on revaluation of PPE on disposal (2,642,191) -

Charged to profit or loss 141,166,748 27,469,391
138,524,557 27,669,757

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

9.1 Represents cash margin on guarantee issued by various commercial banks on behalf of the 
Group.

9.2 These are non-interest bearing, generally on a term of more than a year and are neither past due 
nor impaired.

10.2 As of reporting date, the Holding Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Nil (2021: Rs. 
79.621 million) on losses of Nil (2021: Rs. 274.556 million) in line with accounting policies of the 
holding company as stated in note 4.12 to these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

11. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Tracking devices 302,415,718 396,672,880

Spare parts 99,808,813 48,976,640

402,224,531 445,649,520

11.1

11.2

11.1 Includes stock of Rs. 3.361 million (2021: Rs. 15.737 million) held with third parties.

11.2 Represents bonnet locks, window motors etc. which are held for sale.

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

12. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Related parties 

TPL Insurance Limited 19,256,007 4,363,523

Others than related parties 918,724,113 1,304,735,279

937,980,120 1,309,098,802

Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (40,317,442) (31,084,020)

897,662,678 1,278,014,78212.2

12.3 & 12.4

12.1

12.5

12.1 The credit risk exposure on the Group's trade debts using provision matrix at year end is as 
follows:

2022
Expected credit loss rate

Estimated total gross 
carrying amount at default 

Expected credit loss

2021
Expected credit loss rate

Estimated total gross 
carrying amount at default 

Expected credit loss

4.30%

937,980,120

40,317,442

2.37%

1,309,098,802

31,084,020

17.86%

66,774,804

11,923,547

11.96%

124,002,246

14,833,745

68,763,323

11,676,021

10.12%

104,352,553

10,560,649

16.98%

0.46%

     700,063,766 

         3,240,683 

2.56%

     465,519,534 

       11,896,896           4,820,978 

1.43%

     336,922,459 

0.64%

     380,680,237 

          2,448,943 

180 days 

and above

 --------------------------(Rupees) --------------------------

Current

Days past due

Total

> 121 days upto 

180 days

> 30 days 

upto 120 days

12.2 Represent amount receivable from various customers on account of sale and installation of 
tracking devices and vehicle tracking services provided by the Group. These are unsecured, 
interest free and generally on 30 to 60 days terms.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

TPL Insurance Limited - 2022

TPL Insurance Limited - 2021

19,256,007

4,363,523

2,127,471

1,474,687

1,025,420

237,729

TPL Insurance Limited 19,256,007 4,363,523

12.5 Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 31,084,020 24,795,814

Acquired under the business Combination - 10,405,045

Add: Charge during the year 5,799,195 2,334,938

Less: Reversal during the year - (4,814,014)

Less: Write off during the year - (1,000,688)

Foreign currency translation reserve 3,434,227 (637,075)

Closing balance 40,317,442 31,084,020

1,149,266

14,037,686

1,501,841

2,065,430

> 30 days 

upto 120 days

Total Current 180 days 

and above

Past due but not impaired

> 121 days upto 

180 days

 ------------------------ (Rupees) -------------------------

12.3 The ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts due from related parties is as follows:

12.4 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month 
end balances are as follows:

13. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans – secured, considered good
Current portion of long-term loans 8 2,389,360 1,277,111

Advances – unsecured, considered good
suppliers 34,852,760 61,562,102
employees for expenses - 3,272,305
others - 184,704

13.1 34,852,760 65,019,111
37,242,120 66,296,222

14. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits
Security deposits 7,214,720 1,967,720
LC margin 377,546 3,772,346
Current portion of leased and ijarah deposits 2,286,826 10,120,921

Others 711,516 711,516
14.1 10,590,608 16,572,503

Prepayments
Insurance 4,174,712 6,872,493
Maintenance 7,894,553 4,808,824
Others 14,680,707 7,030,805

26,749,972 18,712,122
37,340,580 35,284,625

13.1 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.

14.1 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

15.
(unsecured, considered good)

Mark-up accrued on due from related parties
On current account:

   Ultimate parent company
   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH] 225,097,934 139,088,282

   Parent company
   -  TPL Corp Limited [TPLC] 64,304,940 106,632,497

Associates
   -  TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS] 4,326,421 4,326,421
   -  TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD] 1,291,055 1,186,702
   -  TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG] 8,460,845 7,309,315
   -  TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech] 16,139,391 14,802,938
   -  TPL Properties Limited [TPLP] 2,403,370 2,047,056

322,023,956 275,393,211

16. OTHER RECEIVABLES
(unsecured, considered good)

Earnest money 23,069,505 11,444,235
Insurance claims 5,498,488 5,030,029
Others 16.1 6,753,159 1,552,520

      35,321,152 18,026,784

17. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
(unsecured, considered good)

   Ultimate parent company
   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH] 17.1 699,627,685 697,831,944

   Parent company
   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

TPL Corp Limited [TPLC] 17.2 - 597,793,456

INTEREST ACCRUED 

Associates
TPL Properties Limited [TPLP] 17.3 - 7,420,642

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life] 17.3 21,233,637 5,118,741

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD] 17.3 850,070 850,070

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG] 17.3 9,380,446 9,380,446

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech] 17.3 42,993,993 42,993,993
774,085,831 1,361,389,292

16.1 These are non-interest bearing receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, and 
generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited [TPLH]         699,627,685        697,831,944 

   Parent company
   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

   -  

TPL Corp Limited [TPLC]         955,103,622        827,542,334 

Associates

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]           34,085,250            7,821,947 

TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life]           21,233,637            6,232,538 

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD]                850,070               850,070 

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG]             9,380,446            9,380,446 

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech]           42,993,993          42,993,993 

18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 351,135 761,091

At banks in local currency:

current accounts 14,366,516 20,443,534

saving accounts 18.1 107,809,310 118,508,981

122,175,826 138,952,515

122,526,961 139,713,606

17.2 Represents current account balances with related parties carrying mark-up at the variable rate 
of 3 months to 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent (2021: 3 months to 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) 
per annum and are repayable on demand.

17.4 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month 
end balances are as follows:

17.3 These are neither past due nor impaired.

17.1 Represents current account balance carrying mark-up at the fixed rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3 
percent (2021: 3 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) and is repayable on demand.

18.1 These carry mark-up at the rate of 2.95 percent to 6.96 percent (2021: 2.95 percent to 7.65 
percent) per annum.

19. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
                            10 - opening balance 668,205,100 100

              66,820,500 - issued during the year - 668,205,000

              66,820,510 668,205,100 668,205,100
              68,680,171 issued as other than cash 686,801,710 686,801,710
              51,762,412 issued as bonus shares 517,624,120 517,624,120

            187,263,093 1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930

           66,820,510 

2022
Number of shares

                         -   

           68,680,171 
           66,820,510 

           51,762,412 

187,263,093

19.1 These are ordinary shares carrying one vote per share and right to dividend.
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20. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance:

Leasehold land         271,024,056 274,630,291

Building on leasehold land           13,898,709 13,898,709

        284,922,765 288,529,000

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation recognised / 

(reversed on disposal) during the year:

Leasehold land       (271,024,056) -

Building on leasehold land         (13,898,709) -

      (284,922,765) -

Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of

   incremental depreciation charged for the year                         -   (690,918)

Deferred tax:

On account of surplus on revaluation of

building on leasehold land - net - (3,115,683)

Impact of deferred tax on incremental

depreciation charged for the year - 200,366

- (2,915,317)

-        284,922,765 

21. LONG-TERM FINANCINGS – secured

Sukuk financing I 21.1 - 350,000,000

Sukuk financing II 21.2      1,027,032,974 1,231,467,442

Diminishing musharaka I 21.3           27,912,021 43,263,634

Diminishing musharaka II 21.4           10,472,867 -

Diminishing musharaka III 21.5             2,498,982 -

Loan from Director         180,084,838 103,246,489

     1,248,001,682     1,727,977,565 

      (298,615,142) (575,080,546)

949,386,540 1,152,897,019

30Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 

21.1 Represents Sukuk certificates issued by the Holding Company of Rs. 600 million divided into 600 
certificates of Rs.1 million each for a period of 5 years under an agreement dated April 08, 2016 to 
be read with amendment agreement for Green Shoe Option dated May 08, 2016 and second 
supplemental agreement dated June 30, 2020. The said certificates got redeemed completely on 
13th April 2022. The rate for rental payment was 1 year KIBOR plus 3 percent (2021: 1 year KIBOR plus 
3 percent). These certificates were secured against ordinary shares of TPL Properties Limited 
(inclusive of 35% margin) owned by TPL Corp Limited (the parent Company), charge by way of 
hypothecation of Rs. 750 million (inclusive of 20% margin) over the hypothecated assets in favour 
of the trustee and a ranking charge ranking subordinate and subservient to the charge in favour 
of the existing creditors.

21.2 Represents Sukuk certificates issued by the Holding Company of Rs. 1,250 million divided into 1,250 
certificates of Rs 1 million each for a period of 5 years under an agreement dated December 22, 
2020.The said certificates are redeemable in periodic instalments by March 2026 and the rate for 
rental payment is 3 months KIBOR plus 3% per annum. These certificates are secured against first 
pari passu charge of Rs. 70 million on present and future moveable fixed assets of the Holding 
Company inclusive of 25% margin, first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 340 million on 
present and future current assets of the Holding Company inclusive of 25% margin; and first pari 
passu charge of upto Rs.1,500 million on present and future long-term investments of TPL Corp 
Limited (the parent company) inclusive of 25% margin and first charge over lien and set off 
against facility payment and facility service reserve accounts to the extent of Rs. 1,855 million. 
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Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

21.6 The movement in long-term financings is as follows:

Opening balance 1,727,977,565 497,450,437

Acquired under business combination - 59,527,000

Financings obtained during the year 61,422,831 1,280,042,148

Unwinding of transaction cost 3,898,864 -

Financings repaid during the year (575,111,796) (109,042,020)

Foreign currency translation reserve 29,814,218 -

Closing balance 1,248,001,682 1,727,977,565

22. DEFERRED LIABILITY - GRATUITY

Opening balance           13,182,747 -

Acquired under business combination -          13,869,608 
Charge during the year           11,239,335            2,676,950 
Paid during the year           (2,593,710)          (2,563,850)
Foreign currency translation reserve             3,806,748             (799,961)
Closing balance           25,635,120          13,182,747 

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

Current maturity of lease liabilities 30           50,088,139          47,668,312 

21.5 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of vehicles aggregating to Rs 
3.133 million from Islamic Financial Institution for a period of 3 years and carries mark-up at the 
rate of 6 month KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be purchased by 
November 2024. The facility is secured by post-dated cheques of all instalments and corporate 
guarantee of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company).

21.3 Represents diminishing musharaka facility obtained by the Holding Company to finance the 
purchase of computer servers and related accessories aggregating to Rs 58.615 million from an 
Islamic bank for a period of 5 years [2021: 5 years (after deferment of 1 year)] and carries mark-
up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 2 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be 
purchased by January 2024. The facility is secured by exclusive charge over the diminishing 
musharaka assets, first charge over all present and future current and fixed assets of the Holding 
Company and corporate guarantee of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company).

21.4 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of vehicle aggregating to Rs 
11.484 million from Islamic Financial Institution for a period of 5 years and carries mark-up at the 
rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be purchased by 
November 2026. The facility is secured by post-dated cheques of all instalments and corporate 
guarantee of TPL Corp Limited (the parent company).

22.1 As of reporting date, no actuarial valuation of gratuity has been carried out since the 
management believes that the effect of actuarial valuation would not be materially different. 
Further, provision of gratuity has been made at the year end.

Non current maturity of lease liabilities           89,833,930          81,889,252 

23.1         139,922,069        129,557,564 
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23.1 Reconciliation of total lease liabilities:

Opening balance 129,557,564 83,101,871

Additions for the year 79,727,647 102,643,520

Interest expense for the year 15,397,973 14,017,862

Payments made during the year (84,761,115) (70,205,689)

Closing balance 139,922,069 129,557,564

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of leases: 

7.4 69,110,404 66,938,503

Interest expense on lease liabilities 15,397,973 14,017,862

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 84,508,377 80,956,365

24. LONG-TERM LOANS

Term finance I 24.1 - 25,000,002

Term finance V 24.2 - 28,777,780

Term finance VI 24.3 23,856,264 69,416,504

Term finance VII 24.4 31,904,439 69,663,995

55,760,703 192,858,281

30 (55,760,703) (124,490,426)

- 68,367,855

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 

23.2 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 43.1 to these consolidated financial 
statements.

23.3 The Group had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 84.761 million (2021: Rs. 70.206 million) as of 
reporting date. The Group also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 
of Rs. 79.727 million (2021: Rs. 102.644 million). The Group do not have any future cashflows relating 
to leases other than as disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

24.2 The term finance facility of Rs. 37 million was obtained by the Holding Company for a period of 
five years from a commercial bank through an agreement dated April 29, 2020. The loan was 
repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 2.05 million each and carried mark-up at the 

24.1 The term finance facility of Rs. 100 million was obtained by the Holding Company for a period of 
three years from a commercial bank through an agreement dated November 27, 2017. The said 
loan was to be paid in equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 8.3 million each from the date of 
disbursement. It carried mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.1 percent per annum. The 
facility was secured against first pari passu charge over stocks and book debts for Rs. 144 million 
duly insured in bank's favour covering all risks with 25% margin and first pari passu charge over 
book debts and receivables with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 183 million in bank's favour. During 
the year, the Holding Company repaid the outstanding balance in full and charge on this facility 
was released.
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24.5 The movement in long-term loans is as follows:

Opening balance 192,858,281 327,919,795

Loans obtained during the year - 69,663,995

Loans repaid during the year (137,097,578) (204,725,509)

Closing balance 55,760,703 192,858,281

25. GOVERNMENT GRANT

Opening balance             6,747,703            4,490,049 
Recognised during the year - 12,730,320

41 (5,950,600) (10,472,666)

Closing balance 797,103 6,747,703

Current portion 30 797,103 5,950,600

Non-current portion - 797,103

797,103 6,747,703

Released to profit or loss during the year

24.3 The Holding Company and the parent Company (TPL Corp Limited) has obtained long-term 
financing from a commercial bank of Rs. 150 million under Refinance Scheme for payment of 
Wages & Salaries by State Bank of Pakistan. Out of total facility limit, Rs. 96.7 million was availed 
by the Holding Company and Rs. 51.7 million was availed by the parent company. It carries a flat 
mark-up at the rate of 3 percent per annum and is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments 
commencing from January 2021 discounted at effective rate of interest of 9.72 percent to 11.31 
percent per annum. The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (see 
note 25 to these consolidated financial statements) which will be amortised to interest income 
over the period of the facility. The facility is secured against existing charge over Holding 
Company's current assets, fixed assets and pledge of shares of TPL Insurance Limited and TPL 
Properties Limited.

24.4 The Holding Company has obtained long-term financing from a commercial bank of Rs. 98 
million under Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages & Salaries by State Bank of Pakistan. Out 
of total facility limit, Rs. 97.8 million was availed by the Holding Company. It carries a flat mark-up 
at the rate of 3 percent per annum and is repayable in 8 quarterly instalments commencing from 
January 2021 discounted at effective rate of interest of 10.25 percent to 10.26 percent per annum. 
The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (see note 25 to these 
consolidated financial statements) which will be amortised to interest income over the period of 
the facility. The facility is secured against ranking charge over current assets of the Holding 
Company and pledge of shares of TPL Corp Limited & TPL Properties Limited of Rs. 163.333 million 
with 40 percent margin.

rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.50 percent per annum which was fully settled during the year. The 
facility was secured against first parri passu equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 385 million over 
land and building of the Company and personal guarantees of directors / sponsors of the Holding 
Company.
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27. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term financings 907,744 21,256,181

Long-term loans 361,065 14,897,660

Running finance under mark-up arrangement 27,844,523 26,036,109

Short-term financings 2,822,667 3,739,838

Due to related parties 40,593,879 30,507,851

72,529,878 96,437,639

28. SHORT-TERM FINANCINGS

28.1 95,208,753 235,953,736

Payroll financing 28.2 101,492,618 -

196,701,371 235,953,736

Payable against FATR

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 26.1 600,357,469 512,122,313

Accrued liabilities 213,402,124 208,534,420

Unearned equipment rentals 26.2 118,998,792 108,580,014

Book overdraft 62,159,815 413,000,000

Other liabilities

Sales commission 16,049,345 23,747,196

Contract Liabilities - advance from customers 28,895,362 7,326,453

Sales tax payable 16,341,781 12,832,128

Withholding tax payable 246,504,164 172,590,101

Workers’ Welfare Fund 2,638,267 2,638,267

Provident fund 68,017,177 54,682,209

Others 26.3 1,661,798 1,661,798

380,107,894 275,478,152

26.4 1,375,026,094 1,517,714,899

26.4 These are non-interest bearing and generally on a term of 1 to 6 months except for creditors 
which are on a credit term of 30 days.

26.2 Equipment rentals transferred to revenue during the year amounts to Rs. 1.462 billion (2021: Rs. 
910.296 million).

26.3 Includes stale cheques amounting to Rs. 1.647 million (2021: Rs.1.647 million).

26.1 Included herein Rs. 25.660 million (2021: Rs. 57.978 million) and Rs. 28.985 million (2021: Rs. 27.696) 
payable to TPL Properties Limited and TPL Property Management (Private) Limited (the related 
parties) respectively, on account of rental, maintenance and other services.

28.1 Represents payable against FATR (Finance against trust receipt) facility obtained by the Holding 
Company from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of Rs. 285 million (2021: Rs. 
325 million). It carries mark-up ranging from 3 months KIBOR plus 2 percent to 3.5 percent and is 
secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 826 million (2021: Rs. 826 million) 
over all present and future stocks, book debts and fixed assets excluding land and buildings of 
the Holding Company with cash margins ranging from nil to 15 percent. As of the reporting date, 
Rs. 189.791 million (2021: Rs. 89 million) remains unutilized.
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31. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES - [unsecured]

   Parent Company
TPL Corp Limited [TPLC]         164,227,754 -

Associates

TPL Insurance Limited [TIL] 31.1         202,070,734 213,925,468

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS] 31.2           23,078,649 10,497,425

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]           25,376,529 -

        414,753,666        224,422,893 

28.3 The movement in short-term financings is as follows:

Opening balance 235,953,736 1,394,169,173

Financings obtained during the year 146,390,785 235,953,736

Financings repaid during the year (185,643,150) (1,394,169,173)

Closing balance 196,701,371 235,953,736

28.2 Represents payroll financing facility obtained by the Holding Company during the year against 
processing fee charges at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 2% per annum, calculated on a daily 
outstanding balance with settlement being done simultaneously along with the principal.

29. RUNNING FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENTS

-  registered hypothecation over stocks and book debts aggregating to Rs. 1,186 million 
(2021: Rs. 1,186 million) and pledge of the shares of TPL Insurance Limited, TPL Properties 
Limited and TPL Corp Limited having market value of Rs. 300 million.

-  personal guarantees of sponsors/directors of the Holding Company, 100% liquid security in 
shape of lien over Holding Company / related Company account/ lien over term deposit 
account on account of TPL Life Insurance Limited, 100% cash collateral under lien in the 
form of term deposit receipt or depository participants account (to be marked in group 
companies) / minimum 60% cash in shape of lien over term deposit receipt or depository 
participants account (to be marked lien in group associate Company i.e. TPL Life 
Insurance Limited) and maximum 40% to be placed in investor portfolio securities 
account of TPL Life Insurance Limited with 10% margin.

-  cash collateral in the form of lien over deposits held under islamic bank of Rs. 100 million in 
the name of TPL Insurance Limited and cross corporate guarantee of TPL Insurance 
Limited.

 These facilities are obtained from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of Rs. 795 
million (2021: Rs. 1,097.5 million) out of which Rs. 37.375 million (2021: Rs. 59.9 million) was un-
utilised as of the reporting date. The facilities carry mark-up ranging between 1 month KIBOR plus 
2 percent and 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5 percent to 3 percent (2021: 1 month KIBOR plus 2 percent 
and 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5 percent to 3 percent) per annum. These are secured by way of: 

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

30.

Long-term financings 21         298,615,142 575,080,546

23           50,088,139 47,668,312

Long-term loans 24           55,760,703 124,490,426

Government grant 25                797,103 5,950,600

        405,261,087 753,189,884

Lease liabilities

CURRENT PORTION OF NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES 



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Annual Report 2021-22 161

31.1 Included herein current account balance of Rs.72.929 million (2021: Rs. 61.07 million) carrying 
mark-up at the variable rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3 percent per annum and is repayable on 
demand. Further, it also includes outstanding loan of Rs. 275 million having facility limit of Rs. 300 
million (2021: Rs. 275 million) carrying mark-up at the rate of 1 year KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per 
annum and is repayable on demand.

31.2 Represent interest free current account balances with related parties, which are repayable on 
demand.

32. TAXATION - NET

Opening balance - payable (31,014,251) (13,685,055)

42 (30,526,025) (61,374,975)
Add: Income tax paid and deducted at source 33,441,300 44,045,779

Closing balance - payable (28,098,976) (31,014,251)

Less: Provision for current and prior taxation

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

33. ADVANCE MONITORING FEES

Opening balance 35,853,103 37,140,162

Billed during the year 514,303,971 440,750,688

Less: Transferred to revenue during the year (461,789,826) (442,037,747)

Closing balance 33.1 88,367,248 35,853,103

Date of 

institution
Party Relief Sought

Factual 

Description
Court

Dispute arising 

on the 

reimbursement 

on return of 

tracking device 

and un-utilised 

monitoring 

charges

April 01, 

2011

Geofizyka 

Krakow 

Limited vs 

TPL Trakker 

Limited

Reimbursement of Rs.10.929 million 

being the price paid for the equipment in 

respect of returned units and un-utilised 

monitoring charges

High Court of Sindh

Dispute arising 

due to the non-

functionality of 

tracking device 

April 08, 

2013

Muhammad 

Aziz Khan vs 

TPL Trakker 

Limited

Recovery of Rs. 1.350 million being the 

cost of the car and Rs.1 million as 

damages

District and 

Session Court (East)

34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

34.1.2 The Holding Company is defending various suits filed against it in various courts in 
Pakistan for sums, aggregating to Rs. 13.279 million (2021: 13.279 million), related to its 
business operations. The legal counsel is confident that these suits are expected to be 
decided in the favor of the Holding Company and, accordingly, no provision has been 
made for any liability against these law suits in these financial statements. Details of 
these legal cases are given below:

33.1 Represents monitoring fee invoiced in advance, which is taken to revenue as per the appropriate 
monitoring period.

34.1 Contingencies
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34.2 Commitments

34.2.1 Letter of credits - 235,953,736

34.2.2 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Holding Company         32,294,741         21,639,662 

35. TURNOVER - net

Tracking and other digital business
Equipment installation and sales 639,805,348 423,006,476
Monitoring fees 596,698,541 684,072,928
Rentals from tracking devices 1,179,135,788 1,054,806,707
Navigation revenue 212,782,469 190,936,999
Other services 34,999,460 56,806,674

2,663,421,606 2,409,629,784
Less: Sales tax (320,934,182) (298,372,629)

35.1 2,342,487,424 2,111,257,155

36. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Cost of equipment sold
Opening stock 445,649,520 246,221,725
Purchases during the year 583,064,717 520,867,430

1,028,714,237 767,089,155
Less: Units transferred to operating fixed assets 
           given under rental arrangements 5.1 (244,994,970) (117,678,857)
Less: Closing stock 11 (402,224,531) (445,649,520)

381,494,736 203,760,778
Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1 352,409,458 338,519,897
Activation and connection charges 239,704,405 297,016,151
Insurance 17,374,102 10,938,552
Vehicle running and maintenance 49,210,333 42,039,440
Depreciation 5.1.2 219,431,028 213,610,381
Depreciation on ROUA 7.4 58,059,650 56,235,035
Amortisation 6.4 13,135,627 18,950,443
License renewal fee 3,320,417 17,130,562
Communication 8,587,680 5,850,435
Travelling and conveyance 26,590,187 19,458,723
Utilities 17,387,509 14,738,220
Rent, rates and taxes 6,304,874 22,599,423
Entertainment 5,336,930 6,643,437
Commission 66,549,338 83,110,034
Ijarah rentals 3,566 1,086,811
Outsourcing expenses 5,984,986 7,650,500
Postage and courier 12,930,283 17,617,516
Printing and stationery 4,451,497 299,041
Repairs and maintenance 15,806,471 13,440,857
Training 1,568,574 900,399
Computer expenses 25,678,175 7,623,915
Others 1,687,303 4,742,328

1,151,512,393 1,200,202,100
1,533,007,129 1,403,962,878

35.1 Included herein revenue recognized during the year of Rs. 165.431 million (2021: Rs. 208.10 million) 
made to related parties.
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36.1 These include Rs. 10.685 million (2021: Rs. 8.342 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution).

37. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 37.1         66,701,391 64,893,837

Vehicle running and maintenance           2,248,785 1,921,094

Depreciation 5.1.2           6,775,547 6,890,658

Depreciation on ROUA 7.4           1,872,892 1,814,034

Amortisation 6.4              423,730 611,305

Sales promotion and publicity         15,161,853 10,948,435

Utilities           1,597,982 1,354,502

Rent, rates and taxes              743,053 2,663,426

Entertainment              609,115 758,230

Printing and stationery              853,785 47,082

Communication           2,060,200 1,403,530

Repairs and maintenance           1,124,465 956,177

Insurance           1,878,503 1,182,686

Computer expenses           4,624,482 1,373,020

Others              126,777 356,319

      106,802,560         97,174,335 

38. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 38.1       343,553,173 313,583,703

Legal and professional         30,041,794 23,523,309

Depreciation 5.1.2         21,339,136 20,066,918

Depreciation on ROUA 7.4           9,177,862 8,889,434

Amortisation 6.4           2,076,433 2,995,618

          5,799,195 (2,479,076)
Utilities           8,542,433 7,317,752

Rent, rates and taxes           9,575,294 19,322,716

Travelling and conveyance           7,125,213 5,015,901

Repairs and maintenance         10,930,573 8,261,188

Security services         16,990,624 18,627,518

Vehicle running and maintenance         36,711,733 33,293,172

Computer expenses         19,908,870 7,421,453

Communication         10,337,117 3,788,759

Late payment surcharge (net)         15,000,000 12,324,129

Training           1,175,607 674,827

Auditors' remuneration 38.2           4,030,000 7,400,000

Insurance         12,725,823 12,397,802

Entertainment           2,749,335 3,100,131

Printing and stationery           4,142,895 844,966

Ijarah rentals                  3,566 1,086,811

Subscription           9,278,077 1,462,000

Others           1,047,696 14,469,189

582,262,449 523,388,310

Charge / (Reversal) of allowance for expected credit losses

37.1 These include Rs. 2.150 million (2021: Rs. 1.679 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution).
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38.1 These include Rs. 17.718 million (2021: Rs. 8.735 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits 
(provident fund contribution and deferred gratuity).

38.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee – standalone 2,300,000 2,300,000

Audit fee – consolidation 500,000 500,000

Review fee – standalone 750,000 750,000

Code of corporate governance and other assurance services 330,000 3,700,000
Out of pocket expenses 150,000 150,000

4,030,000 7,400,000

38.3 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 
218 of the Companies Act, 2017, and the conditions specified thereunder.

39. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits      55,820,839 54,308,139

Depreciation 5.1.2      21,357,304 21,709,350

Rent, rates and taxes           476,612 1,708,385

     77,654,755 77,725,874

40. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:

Long-term financings    160,887,777 106,545,770

Lease liabilities      15,409,973 14,017,862

Long-term loans      10,503,478 42,099,560

Short-term financings      11,238,585 59,101,063

Running finance under mark-up arrangements    100,010,092 105,243,350

Due to related parties      10,086,027 58,504,501

Exchange Loss - net      15,422,317 -

Bank and other charges        3,770,763 4,172,099

   327,329,012    389,684,205 

41. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:

Interest income on loan given to employees 93,505 89,302

Mark-up on saving accounts 7,434,159 711,400

Fair value gain on investment in TME - 33,327,406

Gain on bargain purchase option - 89,486,545

7,527,664 123,614,653

Income from related parties:

Mark-up on current account 122,454,524 152,225,751

Other service income 11,182,765 10,672,983

133,637,289 162,898,734

141,164,953    286,513,387 
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Income from assets other than financial assets:

Gain on disposal of property, 

plant and equipment - net 44,636,606 39,300

Amortisation of government grant 25 5,950,600 10,472,666

Exchange gain - net - 3,173,759

Others 5,039,088 5,474,725

55,626,294 19,160,450

196,791,247 305,673,837

42.1 The returns of the total income of the Holding Company have been filed for and upto tax year 
2021 which are considered as deemed assessments.

42.2 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense 

42. TAXATION

Current (59,303,167) (65,249,589)

Prior 28,777,142 3,874,614

Deferred 10.1 141,166,748 27,469,391

110,640,723 (33,905,584)

42.2

Loss before taxation (87,777,234) (75,004,610)

Applicable tax rate 29% 29%

Prior year tax 28,777,142 3,874,614

Tax effect of income subject to lower tax rate 81,863,581 (37,780,198)

Taxation for the year 110,640,723 (33,905,584)

Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense 

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

 The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working 
capital with a view of maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to 
minimize risks. Taken as a whole, the Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. 
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes and assumptions during the year 
ended June 30, 2022. The policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below:

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
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2022

Financial assets 

(designated at FVTOCI)

Long-term investments                            -                           -                            -                              -                            -                              -                              -   

(at amortised cost)

Loans               1,687,376                237,133              1,924,509                  701,984                 234,479                  936,463               2,860,972 

Long-term deposits                            -                           -                            -                              -              37,699,947             37,699,947             37,699,947 

Trade debts                            -                           -                            -             937,980,120                          -             937,980,120           937,980,120 

Trade deposits                            -                           -                            -               10,590,608                          -               10,590,608             10,590,608 

Interest accrued                            -                           -                            -             322,023,956                          -             322,023,956           322,023,956 

Other receivables                            -                           -                            -               35,321,152                          -               35,321,152             35,321,152 

Due from related parties           774,085,831                         -            774,085,831                            -                            -                              -             774,085,831 

Cash and bank balances           107,809,310                         -            107,809,310             14,717,651                          -               14,717,651           122,526,961 

          883,582,517                237,133          883,819,650        1,321,335,471            37,934,426        1,359,269,897        2,243,089,547 

Financial liabilities 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings           298,615,142         949,386,540       1,248,001,682                            -                            -                              -          1,248,001,682 

Lease liabilities             50,088,139           89,833,930          139,922,069                            -                            -                              -             139,922,069 

Long-term loans             55,760,703                         -              55,760,703                            -                            -                              -               55,760,703 

Trade and other payables                            -                           -                            -             736,866,653                          -             736,866,653           736,866,653 

Accrued mark-up                            -                           -                            -               72,529,878                          -               72,529,878             72,529,878 

Short term financings           196,701,371                         -            196,701,371                            -                            -                              -             196,701,371 

Running finance under                         -   

mark-up arrangements           767,102,058                         -            767,102,058                            -                            -                              -             767,102,058 

Due to related parties           414,753,666                         -            414,753,666                            -                            -                              -             414,753,666 

       1,783,021,079      1,039,220,470       2,822,241,549           809,396,531                          -             809,396,531        3,631,638,080 

----------------------------------------------(Rupees)----------------------------------------------

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

43.1 Financial assets and liabilities (excluding statutory assets and liabilities) by categories and their 
respective maturities are as follows:
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2021

Financial assets 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term investments                            -                           -                            -                              -                            -                              -                              -   

Loans                  746,962                  55,487                 802,449                  530,150                 150,225                  680,375               1,482,824 

Long-term deposits                            -                           -                            -                              -              26,194,868             26,194,868             26,194,868 

Trade debts                            -                           -                            -          1,309,098,802                          -          1,309,098,802        1,309,098,802 

Trade deposits                            -                           -                            -               16,572,503                          -               16,572,503             16,572,503 

Interest accrued                            -                           -                            -             275,393,211                          -             275,393,211           275,393,211 

Other receivables                            -                           -                            -               18,026,784                          -               18,026,784             18,026,784 

Due from related parties        1,361,389,292                         -         1,361,389,292                            -                            -                              -          1,361,389,292 

Cash and bank balances           118,508,981                         -            118,508,981             21,204,625                          -               21,204,625           139,713,606 

       1,480,645,235                  55,487       1,480,700,722        1,640,826,075            26,345,093        1,667,171,168        3,147,871,890 

Financial liabilities 

(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings           678,327,035      1,049,650,530       1,727,977,565                            -                            -                              -          1,727,977,565 

Lease liabilities             47,668,312           81,889,252          129,557,564                            -                            -                              -             129,557,564 

Long-term loans           124,490,426           68,367,855          192,858,281                            -                            -                              -             192,858,281 

Trade and other payables                            -                           -                            -          1,005,101,019                          -          1,005,101,019        1,005,101,019 

Accrued mark-up                            -                           -                            -               96,437,639                          -               96,437,639             96,437,639 

Short term financings           235,953,736                         -            235,953,736                            -                            -                              -             235,953,736 

Running finance under 

mark-up arrangements        1,062,507,117                         -         1,062,507,117                            -                            -                              -          1,062,507,117 

Due to related parties           224,422,893                         -            224,422,893                            -                            -                              -             224,422,893 

       2,373,369,519      1,199,907,637       3,573,277,156        1,101,538,658                          -          1,101,538,658        4,674,815,814 

Total

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five Total

Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 

one year but 

less than five 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's 
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's 
long-term and short-term financing arrangements at floating interest rates to meet its 
business operations and working capital requirements.

43.2.1 Interest rate risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the 
position as at June 30, 2022.

43.2 Market risk

43.1.1 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these consolidated 
financial statements approximate their fair values.

----------------------------------------------(Rupees)----------------------------------------------
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(Rupees) 

2022 +100         20,507,122 

-100       (20,507,122)

2021 +100         35,864,599 

-100       (35,864,599)

Effect on profit 

/ (loss) before tax 

(Increase) / 

decrease in 

basis points

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in 
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the Group’s loss before tax 
(through impact on floating rate borrowings). There is no direct impact on Group’s equity. 
This analysis excludes the impact of movement in market variables on the carrying values 
of provisions and on non-financial assets and liabilities of the Group. 

43.2.2 Interest rate sensitivity

43.2.3 Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk 
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates primarily relates to the Group’s supplier 
payments and operating activities. The Group manages its currency risk by effective fund 
management and timely repayment of its current liabilities. The Group, however, has not 
hedged its foreign currency liabilities as the management has assessed that it will not be 
cost beneficial. 

2022 2021

----- Foreign Currency ------

Assets
Advances (USD)                    43,215                            -                   8,878,522                             -   

Liabilities
Trade creditors (USD)               (373,179)               (185,469)            (66,612,316)           (29,378,292)
Trade creditors (EUR)                 (90,000)                           -               (17,948,682)                             -   

The exchange rates applied during the year and at year end were as follows:

2022 2021 2022 2021

US Dollar 179.50 163.30 178.50 158.40

Euro 206.00 N/A 199.43 N/A

-------- Equivalent Rupees -------- 

Average rate 

-----------Rupees-----------

 Spot rate  

-----------Rupees-----------

 Sensitivity analysis

43.2.4 Other price risk

 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. 
Equity price risk is the risk arising from uncertainties about future values of investment 
securities. As at reporting date, the Group is not exposed to equity price risk.

 Every 5% increase or decrease in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, will 
decrease or increase loss before tax for the year by Rs 4.338 million (2021: Rs 1.469 million).

2022 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022 

Annual Report 2021-22 169

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

43.3 Credit risk

43.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for 
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The financial assets excludes 
statutory assets and includes deposits, trade and other receivables, interest accrued, 
investments, due from related parties and cash and bank balances. Out of the total 
financial assets of Rs. 2,243.090 million (2021: Rs. 3,147.872 million), the financial assets 
which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 2,240.229 million (2021: Rs. 3,146.389 
million). The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and bank 
balances. The Group has large number of customers, including corporate and individuals, 
due to large number and diversity of its customer base, concentration of credit risk with 
respect to trade debtors is limited. Further, the Group manages its credit risk by obtaining 
advance monitoring fee for device and service charges and effective implementation of 
credit policy for its customers. 

 The credit quality of financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed in 
note 12.1 to these financial statements. As at the reporting date, there are no financial 
assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been 
renegotiated. 

43.3.2 The Group monitors the credit policy of its financial assets with reference to historical 
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of 
financial assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as under:

Loans 8 2,860,972 1,482,828

Long-term deposits 9 37,699,947 26,194,868

Trade debts 12.1 336,922,459 380,680,237

Trade deposits 14 10,590,608 16,572,503

Interest accrued 15 322,023,956 275,393,211

Other receivables 16 35,321,152 18,026,784

Due from related parties 17 774,085,831 1,361,389,292

Bank balances 18 122,175,826 138,952,515

1,641,680,751 2,218,692,238

43.3.3 The credit quality of Group’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external 
credit ratings as follows:

Bank Balances 
by short-term 

rating category 

A-1+ 774,820 1,336,861

A-1 VIS 966 -

A-1+ 111,952,539 122,064,060

A-1 9,447,501 15,551,594

122,175,826 138,952,515

PACRA

Rating
Agency

PACRA

VIS
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43.4 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk represents the risk that a Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with 
the financial liabilities. The financial liabilities excludes statutory liabilities and provisions and 
includes long-term and short-term financing, trade and other payables, accrued mark-up and 
due to related parties. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of 
funding and flexibility through the use of various financing facilities. The table below summarizes 
the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities (excluding statutory liabilities) at June 30, 
2022 and 2021 based on contractual undiscounted payment dates and present market interest 
rates:

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2022

Long-term financings -                     - 298,615,142 949,386,540 1,248,001,682

Lease liabilities -                     - 50,088,139 89,833,930 139,922,069

Long-term loans -                     - 55,760,703 - 55,760,703

Trade and other payables -                     736,866,653 - - 736,866,653

Accrued mark-up 72,529,878
        

- - - 72,529,878

Short-term financings -
                     

101,492,618 95,208,753 - 196,701,371

Running finance under

mark-up arrangements 767,102,058
      

- - - 767,102,058

Due to related parties 414,753,666 - - - 414,753,666

1,254,385,602 838,359,271 499,672,737 1,039,220,470 3,631,638,080

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2021

Long-term financings 103,246,489 - 575,080,546 1,049,650,530 1,727,977,565

Lease liabilities - - 47,668,312 81,889,252 129,557,564

Long-term loans - - 124,490,426 68,367,855 192,858,281

Trade and other payables - 1,005,101,019 - - 1,005,101,019

Accrued mark-up 96,437,639 - - - 96,437,639

Short-term financings - - 235,953,736 - 235,953,736

Running finance under

mark-up arrangements 1,062,507,117 - - - 1,062,507,117

Due to related parties 224,422,893 - - - 224,422,893

1,486,614,138 1,005,101,019 983,193,020 1,199,907,637 4,674,815,814

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business sustain future development of the business and 
maximize shareholders value. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes 
during the year ended June 30, 2022. The parent company is committed to provide full support to 
the Group, as and when required.

43.5 Capital management

 The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in 
economic conditions. The Group monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt 
divided by total capital plus net debt. Equity comprises of share capital and reserves. The gearing 
ratio as at June 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

-------------------------------(Rupees) -------------------------------

-------------------------------(Rupees) -------------------------------
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

Long-term financings 21 1,248,001,682 1,727,977,565

Lease liabilities 23 139,922,069 129,557,564

Long-term loans 24 55,760,703 192,858,281

Accrued mark-up 27 72,529,878 96,437,639

Short-term financings 28 196,701,371 235,953,736

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 29 767,102,058 1,062,507,117

Total debts 2,480,017,761 3,445,291,902

Less: Cash and bank balances 18 (122,526,961) (139,713,606)

Net debt 2,357,490,800 3,305,578,296

Share capital 19 1,872,630,930 1,872,630,930

Capital reserves 202,650,046 232,690,046

Revenue reserve 22,611,573 (127,575,912)

Other components of equity (24,810,640) 291,140,941

Equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company 2,073,081,909 2,268,886,005

Total capital 4,430,572,709 5,574,464,301

Gearing ratio 53.21% 59.30%

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

  Level 3: Valuation techniques (non-market observables)

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

  Level 1: Quoted market price

- in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

- in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.

 The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value 
is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act 
in their economic best interest.

  Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)

43.6 Fair value of financial instruments

 As of reporting date, the Group has no assets carried at fair value.
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

44. SEGMENT REPORTING

 For management purposes, the activities of the Group are organised into one operating segment 
i.e. tracking and other digital business. The Group operates in the said reportable operating 
segment based on similar business, nature of the products, risks and returns, services, 
organisational and management structure and internal financial reporting systems. The 
operating interests of the Group are confined to Pakistan and UAE in terms of its business 
operations. Accordingly, the information and figures reported in these consolidated financial 
statements are related to the Group’s reportable segment in Pakistan and UAE.

 The details of customers with whom the revenue from sales transactions amount to 10% or more 
of the Group's overall revenue is as follows:"

TPL Insurance Limited - customer located in Pakistan 171,408,678 208,098,133

44.1 Geographical information

44.1.1 Revenues

Pakistan     2,106,468,500     1,886,241,808 

United Arab Emirates        236,018,924        225,015,347 

    2,342,487,424     2,111,257,155 

44.1.2 The revenue information is based on the location of customers.

44.1.3 Non-current assets

Pakistan     3,231,974,384     3,671,247,225 

United Arab Emirates          60,599,418          36,809,481 

    3,292,573,802     3,708,056,706 

45 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for the year are as follows:

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Basic salary 19,356,132 15,484,800 - - 88,966,475 61,877,511

House rent allowance 8,710,200 6,968,160 - - 41,507,339 28,091,664

Utilities 1,933,668 1,547,040 - - 10,482,210 6,573,307

Vehicle allowance - - - - 18,450,825 12,668,138

Retirement benefits 1,612,368 1,289,880 - - 7,715,914 4,873,512

Meeting fees - - 1,700,000 1,300,000 - -

31,612,368 25,289,880 1,700,000 1,300,000 167,122,763 114,084,132

Number of person(s) 1 1 3 4 34 27

Chief Executive Directors Executives

------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------  

44.1.4 Non-current assets of the Group are confined within Pakistan and UAE, and consist of 
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, long-term loans 
and deposits.
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45.1 The Chief Executive, Directors and certain executives of the Group have also been provided with 
Group’s owned and maintained cars and other benefits in accordance with their entitlements as 
per rules of the Group.

46. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 Related parties comprise of ultimate parent company, parent company, subsidiary company, 
companies where directors hold common directorship, key management personnel and their 
close family members and staff retirement benefit funds. Transactions and balances with related 
parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements are as 
follows:

          

2022 2021

Rupees

TPL Properties Limited [TPLP]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLP 3,333,561 22,080,546

Amount paid by the Company to TPLP 25,000,000 -

Amount received by the Company from TPLP 59,000,000 19,118,983

Expenditure incurred / paid by TPLP on behalf of the Company 2,130,731 1,241,154

Mark-up on current account 356,314 344,295

TPL Insurance Limited [TIL]

Sales made by the Company to TIL 171,408,678 208,098,133

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TIL 29,746,248 61,686,535

Amount received by the Company from TIL 1,091,563,750 1,379,000,000

Mark-up on current account 10,086,027 53,593,084

Payment made by the Company to TIL 906,516,000 996,670,203

Expenditure incurred / paid by TIL on behalf of the Company 4,252,442 41,476,059

TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD]

Mark-up on current account 104,353 86,057

TPL Holdings (Private) - Limited (ultimate parent company) [TPLH]

Amount received by the Company from TPLH 29,250,000 -
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLH 31,045,741 9,979,955
Mark-up on current account 86,009,652

-

72,775,079

Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TPLH 254,150,010

TPL Corp Limited – (parent company) [TPLC]

Amount received by the Company from TPLC 1,110,382,353 1,125,520,000
Amount paid by the Company on behalf of TPLC 414,884,799 1,373,638,537
Mark-up on current account 29,554,796 73,919,325
Settlement of amount receivable by the Company with TPL Life 20,284,690 59,421,786
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPLC 2,592,956 11,915,394

Expenditure incurred on behalf of the Company 120,714,275 122,454,115

Associated companies

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS]
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TSS 3,935,768 13,843,057

Expenditure incurred / paid by TSS on behalf of the Company 1,186,767 1,679,412

Services acquired by the Company from TSS 20,110,628 16,470,746

Amount received by the Company from TSS 2,000,000 20,179,425

Settlement of amount payable on behalf of
the Company from TSS for services received from suppliers 8,488,840 9,352,030

Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TSS 15,269,241 6,841,063
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TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life]

Amount received by the Company from TPL Life 44,026,400 264,300,240

Expenditure incurred / paid by TPL Life on behalf of the Company 4,473,847 12,163,843

Mark-up on current account - 4,911,418
Settlement of amount payable by the Company with TPLC 20,284,690 59,421,786

Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPL Life 26,330,453 45,043,994

Payments made by the Company to TPL Life 18,000,000 182,800,000

TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TRG - 1,764,213

Mark-up on current account 1,151,528 861,965

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech]

Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPL Tech - 2,029,825

Mark-up on current account 5,277,872 4,239,028

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

46.1 All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board 
of Directors of the Group. The related parties status of outstanding receivables / payables as at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in the respective note to these consolidated financial 
statements.

46.2 Certain employees of the group companies provide services to the Group and accordingly, their 
cost are proportionately charged to the Group on agreed terms. In addition, certain common 
expenses (other than salaries and other benefits) are also allocated within the group companies 
on agreed basis and terms.

Staff retirement benefit
Provident fund employer contribution 20,596,023 16,078,616

Gratuity contribution paid during the year 2,593,710 2,563,850

Key management personnel
Salaries and other benefits 62,035,393 48,588,151

Post employment benefits 3,339,824 4,738,826

Loan received by TME from a Director 47,024,131 48,574,706

          

2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

47. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 18 122,526,961 139,713,606

Running finance under mark-up arrangements 29 (767,102,058) (1,062,507,117)

(644,575,097) (922,793,511)
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2022 2021

Rupees

 

Note

48. EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE

Profit / (Loss) attributable to the ordinary shareholders 113,642,532 (58,346,036)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 187,263,093 187,263,093

Earnings / (Loss) per share – basic and diluted 0.61 (0.31)

------- Number of shares -------

49.2 All figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 26, 2022 by the Board of 
Directors of the Group.

49 GENERAL

49.1 Number of employees as at June 30, 2022 were 919 (2021: 827) and average number of 
employees during the year were 839 (2021: 741).

50. DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of TPL Trakker Limited (“Company”) will 

be held on Monday, October 24, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. through electronic mode, to transact the following 

business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To approve the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on October 21, 2021.

“RESOLVED THAT the minutes of Annual General Meeting of TPL Trakker Limited held on October 

21, 2021 at 03:00 pm be and are hereby approved.”

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company together with the Directors’, Auditors’ and Chairman’s Review Report 

thereon for the year ended June 30, 2022.

“RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Financial Statements of TPL Trakker Limited, together with 

the Chairman’s Review Report, Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended 30 June 

2022 be and are hereby approved.”

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2023 and fix their remuneration. M/s. BDO Ebrahim & 

Co., Chartered Accountants retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants be and are hereby appointed 

as Auditors of M/s. TPL Trakker Limited on the basis of consent received from them, at a fee 

mutually agreed for the period ending June 30, 2023.”

4. To elect directors of the Company for a three-year term. The Board of the directors has fixed the 

number of directors at Eight (8). The term of the following Eight (8) directors, in pursuance to the 

Section 158 of the Companies Act, 2017, will expire on October 28, 2022:

1. Mr. Jameel Yusuf S.St

2. Mr. Mohammad Riaz

3. Mr. Ahmad Zuberi

4. Ms. Nausheen Javaid Amjad

5. Mr. Omar Askari

6. Mr. Sarwar Ali Khan

7. Brigadier (R) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary

8. Mr. Ali Asgher

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of 

Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company for renewal of advance of Rs. 600 

million to the parent company, TPL Corp Limited.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to renew advance of Rs. 600 million to the parent company i.e TPL Corp 

Limited.”

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of 

Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company for renewal of advance of Rs. 250 

million to the subsidiary company, Trakker Middle East L.L.C.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to renew advance of Rs. 250 million to the subsidiary company i.e Trakker 

Middle East L.L.C.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 

199 of the Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 100 million 

to the associated company, TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is

hereby authorized to renew advance up to Rs. 100 Million to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited.”

8. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 

199 of the Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 700 million 

to the associated company, TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to renew advance up to Rs. 700 Million to TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 

199 of the Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company for renewal of advance of Rs. 50 million to 

the associated company, TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to renew advance of Rs. 50 million to the associated company i.e TPL Security 

Services (Pvt.) Limited..”

10. To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 

199 of the Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 20 million 

to the associated company, TPL Properties Limited.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to renew advance up to Rs. 20 Million to TPL Properties Limited.”

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Renewal of advance of PKR 600 Million to TPL Corp Limited:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to TPL Corp Limited. The renewal of advance has been 

recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 26, 2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

TPL Corp Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Parent

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

2022: (2.49), 2021: (1.02), 2020: (1.57)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

PKR 23.64 per share

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 11,362,094,433

Other assets 710,711,131

Total Assets 12,072,805,564

Total Liabilities 5,754,301,797

Represented by:

Paid up capital 2,672,977,630

Capital Reserve 60,855,762

Accumulated (loss) (1,175,020,162)

Other component of 

equity

4,759,690,537

Equity 6,318,503,767

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest and 

taxation

(137,839,197)

Financial charges (462,752,821)
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(Loss) before taxation (600,592,018)

Taxation (7,704,319)

(Loss) after taxation (608,296,337)

vi In case of investment in a project of an 

associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially 

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

Not Applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 600,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

None

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

information/justification for any 

impairment or write offs; and

None

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

3 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

3 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable
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xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

Letter of comfort/The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicable

xxiv. Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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Renewal of advance of PKR 250 Million to Trakker Middle East LLC:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to Trakker Middle East LLC. The renewal of advance has 

been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 26, 2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

Trakker Middle East LLC

ii. Basis of relationship Subsidiary

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

2022: (32,020.83) 2021: (19,702.61), 2020: (15,598.85)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

PKR (94,849.85) per share

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 60,599,418

Other assets 124,831,865

Total Assets 185,431,283

Total Liabilities 723,229,923

Represented by:

Paid up capital 315,383,544

Statutory Reserves 63,080,992

Accumulated (loss) (916,263,174)

Equity (537,798,638)

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest 

and taxation

(167,654,979)

Financial charges (13,903,107)

(Loss) before taxation (181,558,086)

Taxation -

(Loss) after taxation (181,558,086)

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act, 2017 relating to the said Special Business



Annual Report 2021-22 183

vi In case of investment in a project of an 

associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially 

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

Not Applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 250,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

None
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information/justification for any 

impairment or write offs; and

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

Letter of comfort/The loan is unsecured.
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If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact  

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicablexxiii.

Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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Renewal of advance of PKR 100 Million to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited. The renewal of 

advance has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 

September 26, 2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

N.A

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

N.A

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets N.A

Other assets N.A

Total Assets N.A

Total Liabilities N.A

Represented by:

Paid up capital N.A

Capital Reserve N.A

Accumulated (loss) N.A

Equity N.A

Profit and Loss

Profit/(Loss) before 

interest and taxation

N.A

Financial charges N.A

(Loss) before taxation N.A

Taxation N.A
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Profit/(Loss) after 

taxation

N.A

vi In case of investment in a project of an 

associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially 

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

Not Applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 100,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

None

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

information/justification for any 

impairment or write offs; and

None

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

Letter of comfort/The loan is unsecured.
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proposed investment;

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicable

xxiv. Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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Renewal of advance of PKR 700 Million to TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited. The renewal of advance 

has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 26, 

2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

2022: (34.91), 2021: (29.27), 2020: (41.45)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

PKR 190.85 per share

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 1,792,483,216

Other assets 1,629,047,529

Total Assets 3,421,530,746

Total Liabilities 2,701,187,471

Represented by:

Paid up capital 37,744,000

Capital Reserve 10,742,480

Accumulated profit 671,856,794

Equity 720,343,275

Profit and Loss

Profit before interest 

and taxation

154,265,983

Financial charges (285,911,701)

(Loss) before taxation (131,645,718)

Taxation (108,884)

(Loss) after taxation (131,754,602)
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vi In case of investment in a project of an 

associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

Not Applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 700,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

To make investment in associated company.

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Own Source

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

Not applicable

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

Mr. Jameel Yusuf is the director of the Company,

and TPL Holdings (Pvt.) Limited

xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

None
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information/justification for any 

impairment or write offs; and

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

Not applicable

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; Loan is repayable on demand

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

The average estimated borrowing cost of the 

Company is 3 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

Markup to be charged equivalent to 

the borrowing cost

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

Letter of comfort

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

None

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

The loan is unsecured.
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xxiii. If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicable

xxiv. Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.
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Renewal of advance of PKR 50 Million to TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited. The renewal of 

advance has been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 

September 26, 2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

2022: (9.97), 2021: (6.01), 2020: 5.37

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

PKR (26.58) per share

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 12,543,277

Other assets 96,857,322

Total Assets 109,400,599

Total Liabilities 165,239,243

Represented by:

Paid up capital 21,000,000

Capital Reserve

Accumulated (loss) (76,838,644)

Equity (55,838,644)

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest 

and taxation

(13,982,159)

Financial charges (169,156)

(Loss) before taxation (14,151,315)

Taxation (6,785,864)
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(Loss) after taxation (20,937,179)

vi In case of investment in a project of an 

associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially 

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

Not Applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 50,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

None
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xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

information/justification for any 

impairment or write offs; and

None

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the

Letter of comfort/The loan is unsecured.
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proposed investment;

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicable

xxiv. Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.
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Renewal of advance of PKR 20 Million to TPL Properties Limited:

The Company is desirous to renew advances made to TPL Properties Limited. The renewal of advance has 

been recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 26, 2022.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated 

December 06, 2017 is set out below:

S. 

No.

Requirement Information

i. Name of the associated company or 

associated undertaking

TPL Properties Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three 

years of the Associated Company

2022: 12.29, 2021: (1.72), 2020: 0.85

iv. Break-up value per share, based on 

latest audited financial statements

PKR 26.48 per share

v. Financial position of the associated 

company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 

profit and loss account of the associated 

company as at and for the period ended June 30, 

2022 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 9,029,215,796

Other assets 3,488,310,756

Total Assets 12,517,526,552

Total Liabilities 2,002,534,031

Represented by:

Paid up capital 5,107,332,456

Capital Reserve (313,405,756)

Accumulated profit 5,721,065,821

Equity 10,514,992,521

Profit and Loss

Profit before interest and 

taxation

5,210,263,357

Financial charges (332,568,498)

Profit before taxation 4,877,694,859

Taxation (620,714)

Profit after taxation 4,877,074,145

vi In case of investment in a project of an Not Applicable
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associated company / undertaking 

that has not commenced operations, 

in addition to the information referred 

to above, the following further 

information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its 

history since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 

completion; c) time by which such 

project shall become commercially 

operational;

d) expected return on total capital 

employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by 

the promoters distinguishing between 

cash and non-cash amounts;

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be 

made

PKR 20,000,000

viii. Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the 

investing company and its members 

from such investment and period of 

investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for 

investment and where the investment 

is intended to be made using 

borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment 

through borrowings;

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees 

provided and assets pledged for 

obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), if 

any, with associated company or 

associated undertaking with regards 

to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors, 

sponsors, majority shareholders and 

their relatives, if any, in the associated 

company/undertaking or the 

transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated 

company or associated undertaking 

has already been made, the 

performance review of such 

investment including complete 

information/justification for any 

None

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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impairment or write offs; and

xiii. Any other important details necessary 

for the members to understand the 

transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the 

investing company or in case of 

absence of borrowing the KIBOR 

(Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) for 

the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by 

investing company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion 

feature i.e. it is convertible into 

securities, this fact along with terms 

and conditions including conversion 

formula, circumstances in which the 

conversion may take place and the 

time when the conversion may be 

exercisable; and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be 

given to the associated company or 

associated undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 

advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being 

granted using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or 

advance out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets 

pledged for obtaining such funds, if 

any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing 

of the investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to 

be obtained in relation to the 

proposed investment;

Letter of comfort/The loan is unsecured.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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xxiii. If the loans or advances carry 

conversion feature i.e. it is convertible 

into securities, this fact

along with complete detail including 

conversion formula, circumstances in 

which the conversion may take place 

and the time when the conversion 

may be exercisable;

Not applicable

xxiv. Repayment schedule and terms of 

loans or advances to be given to the 

investee company

Repayable on demand.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

11. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

Danish Qazi

Company Secretary Karachi, October 03, 2022

Notes

1. Reason for holding AGM through electronic mode i.e. Contingency Planning:

In view of the threat of pandemic outbreak and to protect the wellbeing of shareholders, the 

Company requests its members to attend and participate in the general meeting through video 

link facility only to avoid large gathering at one place.

Therefore, to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility, members are requested 

to register their particulars (Name, Folio/CDS Account Number, CNIC Number and Cell Phone 

Number) with the Company Secretary by emailing to company.secretary@tplholdings.com at 

least 24 hours before the time of AGM.

The members can also provide comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda items of the 

Annual General Meeting by emailing the same to company.secretary@tplholdings.com.

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from October 17, 2022 to October 24, 

2022 (both days inclusive). Share Transfers received at M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 

32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A., Phase VII, Karachi-75500. Pakistan by the close of business 

hours (5:00 PM) on October 14, 2022, will be treated as being in time for the purpose of above 

entitlement to the transferees.

3. Participation in the Meeting:

As per directives of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to convene the general 

meeting with minimum members ensuring quorum of the meeting, the members are requested to 

consolidate their attendance and voting at Annual General Meeting through proxies.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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All members of the Company are entitled to attend the meeting and vote there at through Proxy. A 

proxy duly appointed shall have such rights as respect to the speaking and voting at the meeting 

as are available to a member. Duly filled and signed Proxy Form must be received at the Registrar 

of the Company M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A., 

Phase VII, Karachi-75500. Pakistan, not less than 48 hours before the Meeting.

4. For Attending the Meeting:

i. In case of individual, the Account holder and/or Sub-account holder whose registration details are 

uploaded as per the CDC regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by providing copy of 

his/her valid CNIC or passport along with other particulars (Name, Folio/CDS Account Number, Cell 

Phone Number) via email to aforementioned ID and in case of proxy must enclose copy of his/her 

CNIC or passport.

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen 

signature of the nominee shall be provided via email to aforementioned ID.

5. For Election of Directors:

In accordance with Section 159(1) of the Companies Act, 2017, the number of directors to be elected 

has been fixed at Eight (8) by the Board of Directors of the Company. In terms of section 159 (3) of 

the Companies Act, 2017, any person who seeks to contest election to the office of a director, 

whether he is a retiring director or otherwise, shall file with the Company at its Registered Office, 

not later than fourteen (14) days before the date of this meeting, the following documents:

a. Notice of his/her intention to offer himself/ herself for election as a Director. Provided that any 

such person may, at any time before the holding of election, withdraw such notice.

b. Consent to act as a Director u/s 167 of the Companies Act, 2017.

c. A detailed profile along with office address.

d. A Declaration confirming that:

i. He/ she is aware of the duties of directors under the Companies Act, 2017, the Memorandum 

and Article of Association of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations.

ii. He/ she does not violate any of the provisions or conditions prescribed by SECP for holding 

such office and further that such person shall fully comply with all the SECP directives 

issued or to be issued by the SECP in the form of circulars, notifications, directions, letters, 

instructions, and other orders.

iii. He/ she is not ineligible to become a director of the Company under any applicable laws 

and regulations.

iv. He/ she is not serving as a director of more than seven listed companies including this 

Company and excluding directorships in listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies.

6. Change of Address:

Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address to the 

Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commercial Street 2, D.H.A., 

Phase VII, Karachi-75500. Pakistan.

7. Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 have been placed on the website of 

the Company, http://tpltrakker.com/.

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the
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I/We                                                                S/o / D/o / W/o

Resident of (Full address)                                                                                                 

being a member(s) of TPL Trakker Limited, holding                                                         ordinary shares, 

hereby appoint                                                                                                                           S/o / D/o / W/o 

______________________________                                                                           resident of 

(full address) or failing him / her ___________________________________________ 

_______________________________                                                                 S/o / D/o / W/o 

resident of (full address)  as my / our proxy in my _________________________________

/ our absence to attend and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held on Monday, 24 October, 2022 and/or adjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hand (s) seal this on the day of ____________  ________________ 

2022.

Form of Proxy 

Annual General Meeting of TPL Trakker Limited

Signed by the said:

Folio No. / CDC Account No.
 

The signature should agree with                                                                                                                

the specimen registered with the 

Company.

 
In presence of:  

1. Signature:           ___________________  2.   Signature:       _____________________  

Name:                                     Name:                

Address:                                  Address:             

CNIC or Passport No:                                            CNIC or Passport No:____________             ______________ 

Important Instructions:
 

1. The Proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registrar’s Office of the Company not less than forty 

eight (48) hours before the time of holding the meeting. 
  

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are deposited by a member with the 

Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid. 

3. In case of a proxy for an individual CDC shareholder, attested copies of CNIC or the passport, account and participant’s ID 

number of the beneficial owner and along with the proxy is required to be furnished with the proxy form.  

4. In case of a corporate e ntity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with the specimen signature shall be 
submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form of the Company.  

Signature on  

Revenue Stamp of 

Appropriate Value.
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Important Instructions:

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are 

deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be 

rendered invalid. 

4.  In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with 

the specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along 

with the proxy form of the Company. 

3.  In case of a proxy for an individual CDC shareholder, attested copies of CNIC or the 

passport, account and participant’s ID number of the beneficial owner and along with 

the proxy is required to be furnished with the proxy form.  

1. The Proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registrar’s Office of 

the Company not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of holding the 

meeting.   
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